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Chairman’s Statement

EEHRE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “"Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Kangda International Environmental Company Limited (the
"Company") together with its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”), |
am pleased to present the annual report of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021 to you.

RESULTS REVIEW

In 2021, when the pandemic rebounded rapidly in most parts of the
world amidst the impact of variants of COVID-19, the Chinese
government insisted on safeguarding people’s health as its core
concern and successfully contained the rebound and spread of the
pandemic by maintaining high-intensity pandemic prevention and
control measures. While enhancing the wastewater-related regulation
as an important tool for pandemic prevention and control, the country
is also concerned about the long-term development of the wastewater
treatment industry as one of the foundations for building a beautiful
China. National ministries and commissions, including the State
Council and the National Development and Reform Commission,
successively released the Guiding Opinions on Promoting the
Recycling of Sewage ({ B HE#E)S/KER/IL T A BIEBE R)), the
Urban Wastewater Treatment and Recycling Program for the "14th
FiveYear Plan” Period " P4 " $8)5 /K B2 18 R &R F R 2 R R &),
the Water-saving Social Construction Planning for the “14th FiveYear
Plan” Period ((" + M f " 1K B At & 2R EI)), the Comprehensive
Management Planning for the Water Environment of Key River Basins
for the “14th FiveYear Plan” Period (" + PO " EE MR TR G A
I24#7&1)), the Comprehensive Work Plan for Energy Conservation and
Emission Reduction for the “14th FiveYear Plan” Period ({* +P/0F " &
BE R BE4R A T 1EJ77 %)) and other policy documents during the year,
which clearly stated the targets for wastewater collection, treatment
and recycling by 2025 and by 2035.

After the peak construction period in the past few years, the Group's
wastewater treatment facility projects under construction have been
completed and commenced commercial operation in an orderly
manner, significantly enhancing the Group’s wastewater treatment
capacity. The actual treatment volume of wastewater for the year
increased to 1,262.4 million tonnes, representing an increase of
approximately 11% as compared to 2020. Due to the higher gross
profit margin of the wastewater treatment operation business, even
though the total revenue for the year decreased by approximately 12%
to RMB2,919.0 million as compared to the previous year due to the
decrease in revenue from construction services, the gross profit for the
year still increased slightly by approximately 1% to RMB1,335.3 million
as compared to the previous year, and the overall gross profit margin
of the Group improved to 46% from 40% last year.
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Chairman’s Statement

EEHRE

With the unremitting efforts of the management, the Group has
retained positive operating cash flow for three consecutive years and
achieved RMB320 million for the year, representing a year-on-year
increase of approximately 31%, laying a solid foundation for the
Group's stable recovery to achieve a virtuous cycle. On the other hand,
due to the increase in administrative and other expenses and finance
costs, in particular, the total amount of tax exemptions and concessions
granted to wastewater treatment enterprises by the national
governments at various levels due to the impact from the pandemic
decreased by more than RMB40 million year-on-year, the profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Group for the year decreased
to RMB412.8 million, representing a decrease of approximately 12% as
compared with that of 2020. Basic earnings per share for the year was
RMB19.29 cents. As at 31 December 2021, the Group's net asset value
per share was RMB2.53, representing an increase of approximately 4%
as compared to the same period last year.

DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY AND FUTURE OUTLOOK

The Group will seize the opportunities provided by the national
policies, continue to focus on the development of the main business of
municipal wastewater treatment, and deepen energy saving and
consumption reduction measures by enhancing the wastewater
treatment volume and treatment standard. By exploring wastewater
resource recycling and reclaimed water utilization business, it will help
the country achieve its goals of pollution prevention, water
management and utilization, as well as energy saving and emission
reduction while increasing the Group's revenue and profit, creating
greater value for the Shareholders.

In terms of financial resources, the Group will continue to optimize its
debt structure and develop financing channels to reduce financing
costs. In early 2022, the Group obtained a green loan of US$16 million
in total certified by the Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency, which is
the first green financing completed by the Group in Hong Kong and
embodies the Group's green business concept of water-oriented
environmental pollution management in its corporate financing
activities.

Finally, I would like to take this opportunity to express our gratitude to
all the Shareholders and all the collaborative partners of our Group for
their dedicated support to the Group's development, and also to all
staff of our Group for their endeavors and contributions made during
the year.

Li Zhong
Co-Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE DN

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Reporting Period”),
the Group's principal business activities remained focusing on the
Urban Water Treatment, followed by the existing projects of Water
Environment Comprehensive Remediation and the Rural Water

Improvement.

The scope of Urban Water Treatment includes the design, construction,
upgrade and operation of wastewater treatment plants (the “WTPs"),
reclaimed water treatment plant (the "RWTPs"), sludge treatment
plants (the “STPs”), water distribution plants (the “WDPs"), and in the
operation and maintenance of wastewater treatment facilities entrusted
by governments (the "O&M"). The Group's business has covered the
overall industry chain in Urban Water Treatment industry by executing
contracts of Build-Operate-Transfer ("BOT") , Transfer-Operate-
Transfer (the “TOT"), Public-Private-Partnership (the “PPP"), Build-
Own-Operate (the "BOO"), Engineering-Procurement- Construction
(the "EPC") and O&M. The Group had 101 service concession
arrangement projects under operation while its operational treatment
capacity was over 4 million tons per day as at 31 December 2021.

The scope of Water Environment Comprehensive Remediation
includes river harnessing and improvement, foul water body treatment
and sponge city construction. The Group engages in Water
Environment Comprehensive Remediation by executing previously
signed contracts of PPP and EPC.

The scope of Rural Water Improvement includes the construction and
operation related to “the Water Environment Facilities of Beautiful
Village"” such as: wastewater treatment facilities and pipeline
construction for collecting wastewater so as to achieve rural living
environment improvement. The Group started to carry out this
business since 2016 by executing the contracts of PPP.

In the future, the Group will continuously focus on the business of
Urban Water Treatment to get steady cash flows and invest in high-
quality, value-adding upstream and downstream businesses of water
industry. The Group is very confident about the Group’s prospects and
future profitability and we will dedicate more efforts to enhance the
profitability and effectiveness of the Group.
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1.1 Urban Water Treatment

Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DN

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had entered into a total of
113 service concession arrangements projects, including 107
wastewater treatment plants, 1 water distribution plant, 3 sludge
treatment plants and 2 reclaimed water treatment plants. The

Group will further expand its Urban Water Treatment chain in the

future, in order to improve its profitability and competitiveness.

Analysis of the Group's projects on hand as at 31 December 2021

1.1 HEKE

AZE-—F+=ZRA=+—H0  £5H
HATZ 13 ARSI EELHEE
BIE107 &5 K EE R MR - 1A KR - 3
1 /5/&@1@@&21.%%7ﬁ@1§@ ° 5'5
R & B B iR — PR R IR KT i
WEXE BRARFMEHEFHFINIR
F o

AEER—_FT-_—F+-_A=1T—HHK

is as follows: WEBEESTWT :
Daily
Daily reclaimed Daily
wastewater  Daily water water sludge
treatment distribution  treatment  treatment
capacity capacity capacity capacity Total
BEK Btk HEEK A5k
EERED B0 BREEE D BRERED Bzt
(Tonnes) (1)
In operation EE 3,961,500 - 65,000 550 4,027,050
Not yet start operation/ WARREE HABR
Not yet transferred 305,500 30,000 - - 335,500
Total @it 4,267,000 30,000 65,000 550 4,362,550
(Number of projects) (B2 E)
In operation EED 96 - 2 3 101
Not yet start operation/ HAFIRES  HABR
Not yet transferred 11 1 - - 12
Total st 107 1 2 3 113
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE DN

Actual
processing
volume during
the year ended

Number of Treatment 31 December
projects capacity 2021
BZE
—EBE-—F
+=HA=+—8H
LFFEER
HEHE REE ERERES
(Tonnes/Day)  (Million Tonnes)
(W, H) (E&uE)
Wastewater treatment services 5K IR

Shandong IIES 47 1,270,000 351.0
Henan A 23 1,060,000 339.6
Heilongjiang EEET 6 425,000 152.1
Shanxi AN} 2 350,000 102.9
Zhejiang i pan 2 250,000 90.8
Guangdong xR 4 220,000 57.7
Anhui 2 3 175,000 54.2
Jiangsu P 6 102,000 30.3
Other provinces/municipalities* Hipg EHEm 14 415,000 79.6
107 4,267,000 1,258.2
Water distribution services ok RIS 1 30,000 -

Reclaimed water treatment B4 KEERE
services 2 65,000 4.2
Total A&t 110 4,362,000 1,262.4
Sludge treatment services SRR R 3 550 -
Total At 13 4,362,550 1,262.4

*

Shaanxi, Sichuan and Fujian.

Other provinces/municipalities include Beijing, Tianjin, Hebei, Jilin, Liaoning,

Hips /HETHEFELR  KE - ml &
Mo EE - BRE - W) AR
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE DN

1.1.1 Operation Services

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 96 wastewater
treatment projects, 2 reclaimed water treatment projects
and 3 sludge treatment projects in operation in Mainland
China. Total daily treatment capacity of wastewater
treatment plants, reclaimed water treatment plants, and
sludge treatment plants in operation for the year ended 31
December 2021 reached 3,961,500 tonnes (2020: 3,766,500
tonnes), 65,000 tonnes(2020: 65,000 tonnes), and 550 tonnes
(2020: 550 tonnes), respectively. For the year ended 31
December 2021, the annualized utilization rate for
wastewater and reclaimed water treatment plants in
operation was approximately 86% (2020: 83%). The actual
average water treatment tariff for the year ended 31
December 2021 was approximately RMB1.49 per tonne
(2020: approximately RMB1.46 per tonne).The actual
aggregate processing volume for the year ended 31
December 2021 was 1,262.4 million tonnes, representing an
increase of 11% as compared to the same period last year
(year ended 31 December 2020: 1,133.6 million tonnes),
which was in line with the increase in treatment capacity.

Total operation revenue of the Group’s Urban Water
Treatment services recorded for the year ended 31
December 2021 was RMB1,185.9 million, representing an

1.1.1 BE RS

N-ZTB-_—F+=-—A=+—H ' &K
EEEFHANEEEEFH
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3,961,500lE( — & — &= 4 :
3,766,500MF) ~ 65,0000 (= ZE ==
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increase of approximately 13% as compared to the same
period of last year (year ended 31 December 2020:
RMB1,053.4 million). The corresponding increase was
primarily due to the increase in the number of
commencement of operation of new water treatment
projects through construction.

1.1.2 Construction Services

The Group entered into a number of service concession
arrangements under BOT, BOO and PPP contracts in
relation to its Urban Water Treatment business. Under the
International Financial Reporting Interpretation Committee
12 Service Concession Arrangements, the Group recognises
the construction revenue with reference to the fair value of
the construction service delivered in the building phase.
The fair value of such service is estimated on a cost-plus
basis with reference to a prevailing market rate of gross
margin at the inception date of service concession
agreement. Construction revenue from BOT, BOO, PPP
and EPC projects is recognised by using the percentage-of-
completion method.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE DN

For the year ended 31 December 2021, construction
revenue was recognised for 25 projects, including 20
wastewater treatment plants, 2 water distribution plants, 1
reclaimed water treatment plant, and 2 sludge treatment
plants, which were mainly located in Shandong, Shanxi
provinces, and the city of Tianjin in Mainland China. Total
construction revenue of those projects for the year ended
31 December 2021 was RMB780.7 million, representing a
year-on-year decrease of approximately 35% (year ended
31 December 2020: RMB1,192.9 million). The corresponding
decrease was primarily due to a decrease in the project
numbers during the main construction period. As at 31
December 2021, the total daily treatment capacity of the
service concession arrangements plants, which were still in
the construction stage, was 210,500 tonnes, including
180,500 tonnes of wastewater treatment plants and 30,000
tonnes of water distribution plants.

1.2 Water Environment Comprehensive Remediation

In the year of 2021, the Group continued to devote efforts to
implementing the existing projects of Water Environment
Comprehensive Remediation. As at 31 December 2021, most of
the projects have been completed. The Group devoted efforts to
lower the risk and enhance the reasonable profit for the existing
projects. The Group will integrate resources to execute the Water
Environment Comprehensive Remediation projects under the
contracts of EPC and O&M.

The Group had 7 Water Environment Comprehensive
Remediation projects under construction during the year ended
31 December 2021. The projects were mainly located in Jiangxi
and Shandong provinces in Mainland China. For the year ended
31 December 2021, total revenue of those projects was RMB147.7
million, representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately
53% (year ended 31 December 2020: RMB311.7 million). The
corresponding decrease was primarily due to the completion of
partial existing EPC projects.

1.2
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE DN

1.3 Rural Water Improvement
In the year of 2021,
Improvement project in Guizhou province. As at 31 December

the Group disposed 1 Rural Water

2021, the existing 2 projects of Rural Water Improvement which
were under construction were located in Guangdong province in
Mainland China. For the year ended 31 December 2021, total
revenue of those projects was RMB102.9 million, representing a
year-on-year decrease of approximately 15% (year ended 31
December 2020: RMB121.2 million). The corresponding decrease
was primarily due to net impact of the decrease in the
construction work of existing projects and the increased
operation revenue due to the partial operation of these two
projects.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recorded a revenue
of RMB2,919.0 million, representing a decrease of approximately 12%
as compared to the previous corresponding period of RMB3,332.4
million. The decrease was mainly due to the decrease in construction
revenue of RMB604.6 million, which was partially offset by the increase
in operation revenue of RMB142.2 million, and the increase in financial
income of RMB49.0 million. The decrease in construction revenue was
mainly due to the decrease in the number of projects during the main
construction period of Urban Water Treatment services, and the
completion of partial existing EPC projects of Water Environment
Comprehensive Remediation services. The increase in operation
revenue was mainly due to the increase in commencement of operation
of new BOT and upgrade projects of Urban Water Treatment. The
increase in financial income was mainly due to the increase in the
financial assets.

Cost of Sales

The Group's cost of sales for the year ended 31 December 2021
amounted to RMB1,583.7 million, including construction costs of
RMB824.7 million and operation costs of water treatment plants of
RMB759.0 million, representing a decrease of approximately 21% as
compared to the previous corresponding period of RMB2,006.8 million.
The decrease was due to the decrease in construction costs. The
decrease in construction costs was mainly due to the decrease in the
construction work of existing projects which was in line with the
decrease in construction revenue. The increase in operation cost was in
line with the increase of daily wastewater treatment capacity.
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EEENWE DN

Gross Profit Margin

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's gross profit margin
was approximately 46%, representing an increase of 6 percentage
points as compared to the previous corresponding period of
approximately 40%. The increase was primarily due to the increase in
the proportion of operation revenue and financial income recognized
in this period.

Other Income and Gains

The Group recorded other income and gains of RMB106.6 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021, representing a minor decrease as
compared to the previous corresponding period of RMB107.2 million.
The amount for the Reporting Period primarily included government
grants of RMB60.5 million, which mainly comprised of VAT refund
under “Notice on the Issuing of the Catalogue of Value-Added Tax
Preferences for Products and Labor Services Involving the
Comprehensive Utilization of Resources (Cai Shui [2015] No. 78)"* (7
RENE CERGFAMAERMBBILERERR ) /@A (B 75[2015]
785%32)) and grants for environmental protection, bank interest income
of RMB2.6 million, interest income of RMB23.6 million from loans to
third parties and a joint venture, gains on foreign exchanges of RMB7.3
million, other investment income of RMB8.5 million.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

The Group's selling and distribution expenses for the year ended 31
December 2021 was RMB1.1 million, representing a significant
decrease of approximately 56% as compared to RMB2.5 million in the
previous corresponding period, which was a result of stringent
management and cost control.

Administrative Expenses

The Group's administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December
2021 was RMB246.0 million, representing an increase of approximately
13% as compared to the previous corresponding period of RMB217.6
million. The increase was mainly due to the increase in staff costs and
professional fees. The increase in staff costs was primarily due to the
increased numbers of operating wastewater treatment plants.

Other Expenses

Other expenses for the year ended 31 December 2021 was RMB76.4
million, representing a large increase as compared to the previous
corresponding period of RMB35.9 million. The increase was mainly due
to increase in impairment losses, non-operating expenses, and losses
on disposal of subsidiaries recognised in the Reporting Period.

2 For identification purposes only
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Finance Costs

The Group's finance costs for the year ended 31 December 2021 of
RMB565.7 million mainly comprised interests on interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings and corporate bonds, representing a slight
increase as compared to RMB561.8million in the previous
corresponding period. The increase in finance costs was mainly due to
the increase of average interest-bearing bank and other borrowing and
corporate bonds. The average balance of interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings and corporate bonds increased by RMB180.2 million
and the average interest rate was 6.04%, representing a decrease of
0.07 percentage points as compared to that in the previous
corresponding period. The decrease in average interest rate was
mainly due to the increase in short-term interest-bearing bank and
repayment of the corporate bonds. The Group will further seek
practical ways to optimize loan structure, expand financing channels
and methods and lower the average interest rate in the coming year.

Share of Profits and Losses of Associates

The Group's share of losses of associates for the year ended 31
December 2021 was RMBO.3 million, representing a major decrease as
compared to share of losses of associates of RMB2.7 million in the
previous corresponding period. The Group will further execute
practical ways to reduce the losses brought by the associates.

Share of Profits and Losses of Joint ventures

Share of losses of joint ventures for the year ended 31 December 2021
was RMB2.2 million, representing a major decrease as compared to
share of losses of joint ventures of RMB4.8 million in the previous
corresponding period. The Group will further execute practical ways to
reduce the losses brought by the joint ventures.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense for the year ended 31 December 2021 included
the current PRC income tax of RMB44.3 million and deferred tax
expenses of RMB87.8 million, which were RMB34.2 million and
RMB103.1 million for the previous corresponding period, respectively.
The Group's effective tax rate for the year ended 31 December 2021
was approximately 24%, representing an increase of 1 percentage
points as compared with approximately 23% for the previous
corresponding period, which was mainly due to the decrease in effect
of lower tax rates for specific provinces or enacted by local authority.

LS =%
BHE-_Z-_—F+-_A=1+—HIFE  ~&
EMREXAARESSTEET TEBE
FFERITERMEMERRARESELDF
B BEAFEREARES61.8E & T AUEM -
BRA A A NN E B R AR FIE B RITE A
HERRABESEN - FHHBRITIER
MEAE R D BEHFHREIZMNA R 180.2
BET FHERFEE604%  8EFHHE
B 0.07 EE DB - ZFHERREHFFIED
WA EBRAREBEREMEARESFNE
B AEEBE - FERATHEEELERE
% TWRBERENT R K EAEN TS
KREHFIE -

DIEBEE QBRI R BB
BE-_ZT-—F+-A=1+—HILFE K&
BEohEEARBRAARKIIEETL &
EERBNRHERREEARE27TAE L
RIER A o NEBE#E—FRITRITHEELUR
DH N R REEE -

DTEEELEBIRERE
BE-_ZT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE X%
EohaEtEBBAARK22EETL &
EFRBPOMBELREIBARKISEHEE T
KGR A o AN B S — 2P NIT A TTHREBE DARL
LEEPELIREERE -

FriEHimx

BHE-_Z- S+ _A=+—HIFENFRE
RAXBEEHPPRHMEHARKMIEET
MEERERY ARES78HET  MEFR
HoRABAREM2EETRARK103.18
B AEEEE_T-_—F+=-A=1+—H
I FENEBRRRLN E24%  REFRIBHL
2% EA1EEDE  TEAREBETEOHHE
M EBRAHOSERENEZERD -

BEBEBRRRERRAR/ 2 —FEHE

13



14

Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE DN

Financial Receivables SRl E W IE
As at
"
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
+=ZB=+—H ‘f‘_ﬂ:‘f‘ H
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T
Receivables for service concession AR A 45 S 4 S e BEFE U FX T8

arrangements 10,978,212 10,006,697
Portion classified as current DI REEARE S (1,878,059) (1,692,798)
Non-current portion FEENEREL > 9,100,153 8,313,899

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's financial receivables of
RMB10,978.2 million (31 December 2020: RMB10,006.7 million)
increased by RMB971.5 million, which was mainly due to the increase in
financial receivables which were reclassified from contract assets once
the construction and upgrade period is ended for the water treatment

RZE_—F+=—A=+—H" $Elﬁﬁﬁ
WkB A ARE109782BEEL( T -2 4F
+ZA=F+—8: ARK100067E &) %
MARBINSEEL TBRANKEERE
BRERREABEREMEGHVEEET D

projects. S REWRIERIE N -
Contract Assets BHEE
As at
i

31 December 31 December
2021 2020
—B-——F —E-TF
+=—BA=+—-H +=—A=+—H
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
Contract assets EBHEE 1,973,035 2,297,247
Portion classified as current D ABNEAE (323,761) (222,337)
Non-current portion JERNEREL 1,649,274 2,074,910

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's contract assets of RMB1,973.0
million (31 December 2020: RMB2,297.2 million), decreased by
RMB324.2 million, mainly due to the net impact of reclassification from
contract assets to financial receivables and the increase of construction
of the Group's projects under BOT, PPP, and EPC contracts.

RZEZ—F+-A=+—0 XEELEHE
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Trade and Bills Receivables

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's trade and bills receivables of
RMB1,776.6 million (31 December 2020: RMB1,527.0 million) mainly
arose from the provision of wastewater treatment and sludge treatment
services for Urban Water Treatment projects as well as construction
services for the Group’s Water Environment Comprehensive
Remediation projects. The balance increased by RMB249.6 million,
mainly due to (i) the increase in Urban Water Treatment projects
receivables of approximately RMB401.1 million, (i) the net decrease of
Water Environment Comprehensive Remediation projects receivables
of approximately RMB145.9 million, which included EPC project
receivables of approximately RMB46.9 million arising from the progress
billing and cash collected from EPC and Build-Transfer projects of
approximately RMB192.8 million, and (iii) the increase in Rural Water
Improvement projects receivables of approximately RMB10.0 million.

Prepayments, Other Receivables and Other Assets

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's prepayments, other receivables
and other assets of RMB855.1 million (31 December 2020: RMB791.2
million) increased by RMB63.9 million, mainly arising from the increase
in other operational receivables and accrued interests of approximately
RMB140.9 million , the decrease in prepayments and deposits of
approximately RMB31.6 million related to the construction of
wastewater treatment plants, the decrease in deductible input VAT of
approximately RMB24.4 million, and decrease in loans to a third party
of approximately RMB10.0 million.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's cash and cash equivalents of
RMB289.9 million (31 December 2020: RMB430.3 million) decreased by
RMB140.4 million as compared with that as at the end of previous
corresponding period. The decrease was due to the increase in cash
outflows in investing activities of the Group.

HEeERBEESLEEY
RZZE-——F+-A=+—0 KXE=EHRLE
ReEZEBYABARE280FE T (T -TF
+—A=+—8: AR¥4303EET) &=
FREHRBDARK 14048 ETT ° 2D
FERHNAEBRE MRS R L IE AT
g(o

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1+—-HLKFE

2021 2020
—E-—F T T4
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET AREFIT
Net cash flows used from e REMMERESREFRD
operating activities!” 320,165 243,726
Net cash flows used (in)/from HEEE (FTA) FrE
investing activities WE e F5E (122,083) 337,174
Net cash flows used in financing activities REEB (FTR)REREFE (337,877) (380,765)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and BeRBESEEWORD),/
cash equivalents fioay i pecg (139,795) 200,135
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HNPEFE RSB ) s & (569) 4,455
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning REVIMIR S MIREeFEY
of the period 430,262 225,672
Cash and cash equivalents at end of RERNIBE S RIREEEY
the period 289,898 430,262
Note: ffsE -

(1) For the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group invested RMB507.1
million and RMB791.8 million, respectively, in the Group’s BOT/TOT and PPP
projects. Such investments were accounted for as cash flows used in operating
activities. Under the relevant accounting treatment, part of such cash outflows used
in operating activities was used to form the non-current portion of financial
receivables and contract assets in the Group's consolidated statement of financial
position. For the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group would have
incurred cash inflows of RMB827.3 million and RMB1,035.5 million, respectively, if
the Group's investments in BOT/TOT and PPP activities were not accounted for as
cash flows used in operating activities.

Trade and Bills Payables

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's trade and bills payables of
RMB2,056.8 million (31 December 2020: RMB2,059.9 million) decreased
by RMB3.1 million, which was in line with the decrease of the Group's
construction work in progress and the settlements.
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Other Payables and Accruals

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s other payables and accruals of
RMB278.2 million (31 December 2020: RMB240.2 million) increased by
RMB38.0 million, which was mainly due to the increase in salary and
welfare payables, acquisition of non-controlling interests payables, and
amounts due to related parties.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group's principal liquidity and capital requirements primarily relate
to investments in Urban Water Treatment projects, Water Environment
Comprehensive Remediation projects, and Rural Water Improvement
projects, merger and acquisition of subsidiaries, costs and expenses
related to the operation and maintenance of the Group's facilities,
working capital and general corporate purpose.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of the Group's cash and
cash equivalents was RMB289.9 million, representing a decrease of
approximately RMB140.4 million as compared to RMB430.3 million as
at 31 December 2020, which was mainly due to the net cash inflows of
RMB320.2 million from operating activities, the net cash outflows used
in financing activities of RMB337.9 million, settlements of acquisition
and investing payables of RMB1.8 million and cash outflows of
RMB149.4 million for purchases of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets in investing activities, cash outflows of RMB118.3
million for increase in pledged deposits, repurchase of other current
financial assets of RMB133.5 million, cash inflows of RMB13.5 million for
disposal of subsidiaries from investing activities, and cash inflows of
RMBO.4 million for disposal of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets from investing activities.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s total interest-bearing debts
increased to RMB9,469.7 million (31 December 2020: RMB9,272.8
million), which comprised of bank and other borrowings only (31
December 2020: bank and other borrowings of RMB8,688.5 million and
corporate bonds of RMB584.3 million). As at 31 December 2021, 66.2%
(31 December 2020: 75.6%) of the Group's interest-bearing debts are
long term; over 59% of interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
bear interest at floating rates.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had banking facilities amounting
to RMB58,417.5 million, of which RMB49,552.6 million have not been
utilized. The unutilized amount of RMB49,332.6 million were mainly
limited to be utilized on environmental protection infrastructure and
comprehensive management.
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As at 31 December 2021, the gearing ratio of the Group (calculated by
total liabilities divided by total assets) slightly decreased to 70.4%,
while the gearing ratio was 71.0% as at 31 December 2020.

Charges on the Group’s Assets

Outstanding balance of interest-bearing bank and other borrowings as
at 31 December 2021 was approximately RMB9,469.7 million, which
were repayable within one month to twenty-four years and were
secured by financial receivables, service concession intangible assets,
property, plant and equipment, trade receivables, contract assets and
pledged deposits of which the total amounts of the pledge of assets
amounted to RMB9,286.6 million.

Capital Expenditure

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's total capital
expenditure were RMB649.4 million, compared to RMB1,171.0 million
in 2020, primarily including the consideration of approximately
RMB636.5 million for construction and acquisition of BOT, TOT, BOO
and PPP projects and the consideration of approximately RMB11.8
million for acquisition of equity interests in subsidiaries, and an
associate.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Group had 2,426 employees as at 31 December 2021. The
remuneration package of the Group is generally determined with
reference to market conditions and individual performance. Salaries
are normally reviewed annually based on performance appraisals and
other relevant factors. The Group provides external and internal
training programs to its employees.

In respect of pension scheme contributions, the Group adopts a
defined contribution plan. The Group’s contributions to the defined
contribution plan are recognised as expenses when incurred. Forfeited
contributions (by employers on behalf of employees who leave the
scheme prior to vesting fully in such contributions) may not be used by
the Group and its subsidiaries to reduce the existing level of
contributions.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities (31 December 2020: Nil).
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

Majority of the subsidiaries of the Company operate in the PRC with
most of the transactions denominated and settled in RMB. As at 31
December 2021, except for the bank deposits and certain amount of
interest-bearing bank borrowings denominated in foreign currencies,
the Group did not have significant foreign currency exposure from its
operations. Currently, the Group has not used derivative financial
instruments to hedge its foreign currency risk.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed, no significant events took place subsequent to 31
December 2021.
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Directors and Senior Management

ESREREERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhao Juanxian (alias, Zhao Junxian)

Mr. Zhao Juanxian (alias, Zhao Junxian), aged 69, is the founder of
the Group. He is an executive Director, and the co-chairman of the
Board (the “Co-Chairman”) of the Company, responsible for strategic
development and planning, overall operational management, market
development and major decision making. He was appointed as a
Director on 22 August 2011. He has acted as a director and the chief
executive officer of Chongging Kangda since the beginning of the
establishment of Chongging Kangda and ceased to be the chief
executive officer of Chongging Kangda in September 2012. Mr. Zhao
has served as the chairman of the board of directors and general
manager of Chongqging Kangte Environmental Protection Industry
Holdings Co., Ltd.* (EE E&IRIREZEIEARBR A F]) since November
1994. He graduated from the political administration at elementary
level* (EBHEBEMRIZFZ) from Sichuan University* ()11 X&)
located in Chengdu City, Sichuan Province and Sichuan Higher
Vocational and Examination Committee* (IU)I| &SR EHEEEZE
FIEELZE®) in June 1988, and attended a one- month education
programme of Sichuan foreign-related business from Shenzhen
University* (FJIIKX2) located in Shenzhen City, Guangdong Province,
in July 1988.

Mr. Zhao Juanxian has over 25 years of experience in the environmental
protection and wastewater treatment industry and was awarded for
several times for his valuable contribution to the development of
environmental protection and his expertise in environmental protection
technology by relevant environmental protection industry associations
from 2004 to 2009. Mr. Zhao Juanxian was granted the title of
Outstanding Environmental Technology Entrepreneurs by the Chinese
Society for Environmental Sciences* (FBIIRIZERIZE22) in September
2004. He received the China Environmental Protection Industry
Development Award granted by the China Association of
Environmental Protection Industry* (FBIIRIBIREEZEHE) in January
2005. He was also granted the title of Outstanding Individual of
Environmental Protection by the People’s Government of Chongging
Municipal* (EEMAREM) in July 2006 and Outstanding
Entrepreneur of China Environmental Protection Industry by China
Association of Environmental Protection Industry* (F BIBRIZ{R EE 1%
@) in October 2009. Mr. Zhao Juanxian served as the vice president of
the 3rd and 4th Session of Chongqging Municipal Environmental
Protection Industry Association* (EEMRIEREEXHSE-—ANE
MUJEEEE) in 2005 and 2012, respectively, and the vice president of
the 3rd and 4th Session of China Association of Environmental
Protection Industry* (PEIREREEZHEFE—ELFENEEES) in
2005 and 2009, respectively. In January 2015, he served as the vice
chairman of the board of directors of China State-owned Industry
Innovation Alliance (# EIEI& Bl (b ZE S A T EREEE BR) and the vice
chairman of the board of directors of Hong Kong-Mainland
International Investment Society (B BB E 48 2), respectively.
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Directors and Senior Management

EENSREERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Li Zhong

Mr. Li Zhong, aged 53, was graduated from Beijing University of
Chemical Technology* (It F{t T K&) with a major in polymer
materials, and obtained a master degree in business administration
from Saint Mary’s University of Canada in 1997. He has served in
national state-owned enterprises and well-known Global 500
enterprises in the Mainland China and Hong Kong for over 20 years.
Since 2002, he has dedicated himself to urban public utilities with a
focus on water affairs, as well as the investment, management and
operation of infrastructure projects. Since 2004, he has been a director
of Shenzhen Bus Group Co. Ltd. Mr. Li Zhong also serves as deputy
president of China Environment Chamber of Commerce, executive
director of the China Overseas Friendship Association, and the
honorary chairman of the Hong Kong Volunteers Association. Currently,
he is also an executive director of China Water Affairs Group Limited
("China Water”, a company listed on the Main Board of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 855). He joined the Group in 2019.
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Directors and Senior Management

EENSREERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Ms. Liu Yujie

Ms. Liu Yujie, aged 57, was graduated from University of International
Business and Economic* (¥ MEEE 5 KE) located in Beijing and
obtained a master degree in business administration. Ms. Liu Yujie has
been working in Hong Kong, Singapore and the PRC for over 20 years
in total and is familiar with the business environment and regulatory
system of the three places. She has comprehensive experience in
capital market, business promotion and corporate management,
participated in IPO and underwriting of over 30 companies on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange, led and completed merger and
acquisition of three companies in Hong Kong and Singapore, assisted
capital raising and management of large-scale industrial fund for
investment in the PRC, and acted as executive directors of listed
companies in Hong Kong and Singapore which engaged in utilities and
infrastructure investment. Currently, she is also an executive director of
New Universe Environmental Group Limited (stock code: 436), an
executive director of China Water and an independent non-executive
director of Zhongyu Gas Holdings Limited (stock code: 3633), which are
listed on the main board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. She
joined the Group in 2019.

Mr. Duan, Jerry Linnan

Mr. Duan, Jerry Linnan, aged 31, studied in Beijing Normal University
with a major in psychology. He joined China Water as the president
assistant in 2011, mainly focusing on hotel operating and intelligent
water businesses. At the same time, Mr. Duan, Jerry Linnan assisted
the directors of China Water in capital market and investor relations,
etc. In 2015, Mr. Duan, Jerry Linnan was appointed as the general
manager of the hotel under China Water in Nanjing, and was in charge
of the construction, procurement and daily operation of various hotels
of China Water. Mr. Duan, Jerry Linnan has comprehensive experiences
in human resources and corporate management. Currently, he is also
an executive director of China Water. He joined the Group in 2019.
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Directors and Senior Management

ESREREERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chau Kam Wing

Mr. Chau Kam Wing, aged 59, has over 20 years of experience in
auditing, taxation and financial management and had been appointed
as financial controller of a number of companies listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange. Mr. Chau obtained a master degree in business
administration from the University of San Francisco in the United States
in 2000. He is also a fellow member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a practicing member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Chau is currently the
finance director of Winox Holdings Limited (stock code: 6838) and an
independent non-executive director of each of Carpenter Tan Holdings
Limited (stock code: 837), Ching Lee Holdings Limited (stock code:
3728) and China Water, which are listed on the main board of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange. Mr. Chau is also an independent non-executive
director of Eco-Tek Holdings Limited (stock code: 8169) and was an
independent non-executive director of Zhejiang Chang’an Renheng
Technology Co., Ltd. (stock code: 8139) from 8 May 2014 to 11 May
2019, which are both listed on the GEM of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange. He joined the Group in 2019. He is also the chairman of the
audit committee and nomination committee and a member of the
remuneration committee of the Company.

Mr. Chang Qing

Mr. Chang Qing, aged 64, was graduated from the Chinese Academy
of Social Sciences* (F BRI ZT) with a doctorate degree in
agricultural economics and management in 2001, graduated from Jilin
University (F#AE2) with a bachelor's degree in economics in 1982
and a master’s degree in national economics in 1985. Mr. Chang had
successively served as a research assistant, a deputy research fellow
and a research fellow of Development Research Center of the State
Council (B2 R ITH L) from 1985 to 2005 and the vice chairman
of China Futures Association (FBIEIE X HE) from 1999 to 2006. Mr.
Chang has worked in the College of Economics and Management of
China Agriculture University (B2 % X240 E B B7) since 2005.
He has also served as the chairman of the board of Jinpeng
International Futures Co., Ltd (EEIE K4 AR AT since 1993. Mr.
Chang is currently an independent non-executive director of China
Chengtong Development Group Limited (stock code: 217) and
Honghua Group Limited (stock code 196), which are both listed on the
main board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. He joined the Group in
2016. He is also the member of the audit committee and nomination
committee of the Company.
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Directors and Senior Management

ESREREERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Mr. Peng Yongzhen

Mr. Peng Yongzhen, aged 73, was graduated from Harbin Institute of
Technology* (Y5F/E L% KXE) (formerly known as Harbin University of
Architecture and Engineering (|8 B/ KE2), the same below) in
June 1995 with a doctor degree in environmental engineering and was
a senior visiting scholar in Gunma University (H AEEHKE) from
October 1996 to April 1997. Mr. Peng previously held various positions
in water supply and sewerage engineering major in the urban
construction department of Harbin Institute of Technology* (Y537 T
# K E), including the teaching assistant position from September 1976
to October 1978, the teaching assistant, lecturer and associate
professor positions from December 1981 to September 1993, and the
professor position from September 1993 to February 2000. Since 2000,
he has been a chief professor of the environment engineering
department, a professor, a tutor of doctoral candidates and the chief
of the environmental engineering department and water pollution
control research laboratory in Beijing University of Technology* 3t 2 T
% K2, Director of National Engineering Lab for Advanced Municipal
Wastewater Treatment and Reuse Technology (¥ 857K E R IR B4
TRAEF AT BIZR TIRESRE) and the chief of Beijing Engineering
Technology Research Center of Sewage Nitrogen and Phosphorus
Removal* (At =TS KRB B R 12 TR LM ITH L) of Beijing
University of Technology, concurrently.

He has long been engaged in the research of urban sewage disposal
measures, of which some technological achievements have been
massively applied into practice. Mr. Peng has earned diverse national-
level titles and awards for his academic achievements, including
without limitations National Role Model Lecturer* (& BIE & Z4EM) in
2007, National Outstanding Faculty* (EIRZZ2%EM) in 2009 and
National Excellent Technical Personnel* (2BIEFHRHZ T E#E) in 2012.
He was selected to be one of the first talents sponsored by National
Special Support Plan for High-level Personnel* (BIZ = B IX A A 55k
#F5TEl) in 2013. He was granted the Second Prize of the State Scientific
and Technological Progress Award* (B BHEH#E 22 48) in 2004, 2009 and
2012, respectively, the Second Prize of the State Technology Invention
Award* (BIREHLEERAE) in 2020, the First Prize of Beijing Science and
Technology Progress Award* (1t R RHE#E 25 48) in 2012 and 2020,
respectively, and First Prize of Shanghai Science and Technology
Award for Technical Invention* (L8 T EH%ERF4E) in 2020. Mr. Peng
received a special allowance from China’s State Council in 2000, and
was appointed as member of Chinese Academy of Engineering (B T
#2Ft) in 2015. He joined the Group in 2015. He is also the chairman of
the remuneration committee and a member of the audit committee
and nomination committee of the Company.
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Directors and Senior Management

EENSREERE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the senior management of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this
annual report are set out below:

Mr. Zhou Wei

Mr. Zhou Wei, aged 42, was appointed as the chief financial officer of
the Group on 9 April 2019. Mr. Zhou Wei graduated from Nanjing
Audit University* (B8R ExT2Ft) located in Nanjing and obtained a
bachelor degree in auditing. Mr. Zhou Wei is currently a certified tax
agent of the People’s Republic of China. From 2002 to 2007, he worked
in several domestic and international accounting firms. In August 2007,
Mr. Zhou Wei joined China Water and successively served as the chief
financial officer of Huizhou Zhongshui Water Development Co., Ltd.*
(B FPKKIEERABRAF], a subsidiary of China Water), the vice
general manager of the investment department of China Water, the
general manager of Huizhou Dayawan Yiyuan Jingshui Co., Ltd.* (/!
KNI mRF/KB R AT]), a subsidiary of China Water), and the chief
financial officers of Shenzhen Jinda Environment Holding Co. Ltd.* (&
INEERBIERBBRAF]), a subsidiary of China Water) and
Guangdong Xinsheng Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd.* (E*R
FIRRIREEBRAF), a subsidiary of China Water). Mr. Zhou Wei is
experienced in financial management and investment and financing
area.
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Corporate Governance Report
TREL®RE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Adapting and adhering to the recognised standards of corporate
governance principles and practices has always been one of the top
priorities of the Company. The Board believes that good corporate
governance is one of the areas that lead to the success of the Company
and in balancing the interests of Shareholders, customers and
employees, and the Board is devoted to ongoing enhancements of the
efficiency and effectiveness of such principles and practices.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has complied
with all the applicable provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
("CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”).

The Group further strengthened the control over budget, risk,
performance and responsibilities, optimised management approaches
and strategies, improved supporting mechanism and enhanced control
effectiveness and operational efficiency of the Group.

The Group enhanced overall control over target responsibilities and
budget control, which was promoted and implemented within the
entities under the Group as well as management level, and
implemented the main body responsibility system through organic
combination of the trinity to fully stimulate team members’ initiative.

The Group also took initiative to enhance efforts in fund management,
financial risk control, project investment decisions, legal risk control,
information disclosure and maintenance of investor relationship to
strive for more effective and transparent management in accordance

with the CG Code.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors (“the "Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules as a code of conduct regarding the Directors’ dealings in
the Company’s securities. Having made specific enquiries of all the
Directors, each of the Directors has confirmed that he/she has
complied with the required standards as set out in the Model Code
during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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Corporate Governance Report
TREL®RE

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company
and overseeing the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and
performance. The Board has delegated to the chief executive officer,
of which the Directors also undertake, and through him, to the senior
management the authority and responsibility for the day-to-day
management and operation of the Group. In addition, the Board has
established Board committees and has delegated to these Board
committees various responsibilities as set out in their respective terms
of reference.

As at 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this annual report, the
composition of the Board is set out below:

Executive Directors

Zhao Juanxian (alias, Zhao Junxian) (Co-Chairman)
Li Zhong (Co-Chairman)

Liu Yujie

Duan, Jerry Linnan

Independent non-executive Directors
Chau Kam Wing

Chang Qing

Peng Yongzhen

The Directors have no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships with each other.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board at all time
complied with the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive Directors
with at least one independent non-executive Director possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of
the independent non-executive Directors of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
independent non-executive Directors to be independent in accordance
with the independence guidelines as set out in the Listing Rules.

A code provision of the CG Code requires Directors to disclose to the
issuer the number and nature of offices held in public companies or
organisations and other significant commitments as well as the nature
of such companies or organisations and the time involved in such
offices, each Director has agreed to disclose their commitments to the
Company in a timely manner.
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Corporate Governance Report
TREL®RE

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles and duties of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
have been clearly defined in writing and are carried out by different
individuals in order to preserve independence and a balance of views
and judgement.

With the support of the senior management, the Chairman is
responsible for ensuring that the Directors receive adequate, complete
and reliable information in a timely manner and appropriate briefing
on issues arising at Board meetings. The Chief Executive Officer
focuses on implementing objectives, policies and strategies approved
and delegated by the Board. He is in charge of the Company’s day-to-
day management and operations. The Chief Executive Officer is also
responsible for developing strategic plans and formulating the
organisational structure, control systems and internal procedures and
processes for the Board's approval.

As at 31 December 2021, Mr. Zhao Juanxian and Mr. Li Zhong were the
Co-chairmen of the Company and Mr. Duan, Jerry Linnan was the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into service contract with
the Company for an initial fixed term of three years and will continue
thereafter until terminated by not less than three months’ notice in
writing served by either party to the other.

Each of the independent non-executive directors has entered into
service contract/letter of appointment with the Company for an initial
fixed term of one year and will continue thereafter until terminated by
not less than one month’s notice in writing served by either party to the
other.

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company (the
"Articles of Association”), all Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years and any new Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall submit himself/
herself for re-election by Shareholders at the first general meeting after
his/her appointment or in case as an addition to the Board, the new
Director shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and then be eligible for re-election.
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Corporate Governance Report
TREL®RE

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS (Continued)

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors are laid down in the Articles of Association. The
Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board
composition, monitoring the appointment and succession planning of
Directors and assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors.

The Board is collectively responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties and formalised the inclusion of the following
corporate governance duties into the terms of reference of the Board:

a. to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

b.  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

c.  to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

d. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

e. to review the Company's compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report in the annual
report of the Company.

The Board had reviewed and approved the corporate governance
report contained in this annual report. The Board had also reviewed
the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

ZEREREE ()

RE BRLKEREFTNRERFLBREHEANE
BERAA - REZEGRERINEFTEN
MR EREENTENEREE  ARFHE
B IFMITERNBILIE

EESHAFAAERTOEEREM  AHAT
CEEABEMAESSHREBEN
a. BIERBHARANEREABRRLT

B YAEESFL#ERRS

b. BRIAREFREENSHREZEOHIINR
SEEXERR

¢ BHRERARAEETEEREER
EHEEOBERER

d #IE BRIREREANEERESHN
BRI RARTFMIE) R

e. RHEARAEBTEEERTANERLL
EARRBFERPOEEEARSHOWE -

EEeCma MUERFHRAFNLEELRR
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TREL®RE

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Board had adopted a board diversity policy aiming to set out the
approach to achieve the diversity of members of the Board to enhance
the effectiveness of the Board. The Company recognises and embraces
the benefits of diversity of Board members. It endeavours to ensure
that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s
business. All Board appointments will continue to be made on a merit
basis with due regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board
members. Selection of candidates of Board members will be based on
a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, experience (professional or
otherwise), skills and knowledge. The ultimate decision will be made
upon the merits and contribution that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board.

Each newly appointed Director receives formal, comprehensive and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to
ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations of
the Company and full awareness of Director’s responsibilities and
obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements.

Directors are continually updated on the statutory and regulatory
regime and the business environment to facilitate the discharge of
their responsibilities. Continuing briefing and professional
development for Directors will be arranged where necessary. Individual
Directors also participated in the courses relating to the roles, functions
and duties of a listed company director or further enhancement of their
professional development by way of attending training courses or via
online aids or reading relevant materials.

ZEREREE(5)

EZECRMEFENEZTTIEBR - §&Y
HREREZTERBETEAERETEME
MERBMA T Et - KRR BAILBEEEEKE
ZTENFR YENHERESSEESAR
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REEMBEREANREL A RESSRH
H B R AERTE °
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TRERKE

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

The Company is committed to arranging and funding suitable training
to all Directors for their continuous professional development. All the
Directors also understand the importance of continuous professional
development and are committed to participating any suitable training
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Directors participated

in the following continuous professional development:

EEHEI

AARBNH L BEENBFESLRRARS
THABEOE - WIRGEAR - 2EEFNT
BHESLERNSEY  YAHSRITE
A DR RE RSO ME R -

RE-T-—#+-A=t+-ALFE 5
SN FORETERR

Reading Materials
update on rules

Attend training and regulations

EHEE
FRAIRER
Name of Directors EEHA A Y B FE AT R
Executive Directors HITES
Zhao Juanxian (alias, Zhao Junxian) HEB(HELTE)
(Co-Chairman) v v
Li Zhong (Co-Chairman) Frh (BEERE) v v
Liu Yujie BIEAR v 4
Duan, Jerry Linnan (Chief Executive Officer) ER N (7TIECAE %) v v
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES
Chau Kam Wing ISEGES v v
Chang Qing A 4 v
Peng Yongzhen k& v 4

BEBEBRRRERRAR/ 2 —FEHE
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TREL®RE

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board is provided with relevant materials in relation to the matters
brought before the meetings. Reasonable notices of meetings are
given to the Directors and the Directors are encouraged to propose
new items as any other business for discussion at the meetings. The
Directors have separate access to the Company’s senior management
for information at all times and may seek independent professional
advice at the Company's expenses, if necessary. Minutes are kept by
the company secretary and are open for inspections by all Directors at
any reasonable time. Procedures for convening meetings of the Board
and Board committees and preparing minutes of the meetings have
complied with the requirements of the Articles of Association and
applicable rules and regulations.

The attendance records of each Director at the Board meetings and
the annual general meeting during the year ended 31 December 2021
are set out below:

ExggE

EFRRREHARMNER LIRENSEMNIERH
Bf - BEFEREESRNGHEBA - R IRE
BEFREZMNBREREMNEMEBRANGH
titim - EEABERBIEBARRNSRE
BENTRER MERE - TASKBUE
XER  BRAARAAR - @RCEART
WERE  YRNEMSERERARTREES
5 AEHEFEREFRES SR MRERE
FAEHEF T AESERAR ZERR R &
MBI E

HE-Z - —F+_A=1+—HILFE &
EHFEFggRMRERGNIDHEHI W
™

Attendance/ Attendance/
Number of Number of
Board Meetings General Meeting
BEEged BRAE
HERE, HERE,
Name of Directors EENA BITRE BITIRE
Executive Directors HITES
Zhao Juanxian (alias, Zhao Junxian) HEE (HELE)
(Co-Chairman) 4/4 (Al
Li Zhong (Co-Chairman) Fh (BELE) 4/4 1/1
Liu Yujie 2EAR 4/4 1/1
Duan, Jerry Linnan (Chief Executive Officer) xR (7TIBCAREL) 4/4 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BIUFHITEE
Chau Kam Wing BFGES a/4 1/
Chang Qing ®E 4/4 1/
Peng Yongzhen PoxER 4/4 11
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TREL®RE

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board undertakes responsibility for decision making in major
Company matters, including the approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, material transactions (in particular those that
may involve conflict of interests), financial information and other
significant financial and operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as
well as the advice and services of the company secretary, with a view to
ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable laws and regulations
are followed. Each Director is normally able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company's
expense, upon making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to its Chief Executive Officer and the senior

management.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the nomination
committee, the remuneration committee and the audit committee.

EEERE
EXgAFHARAEAFTERLARAE  B8F
WENEEMARREER  BRERBELEZ
AREELERERHE BEARSZ(LER
AREFRMNEFRNRS) MBEEMREM
BEAMBIEREER -

EREST LRIUSAHERBERAL AT
ENBRMRE  UBRTEEFSHAFTER
ARETHBERERRAN - MEEGRT
ZRiE FEF-RAREEBR NEHEL
BEXER  BERAARREE-

ARRBEERE  TRMEESHETRER
rEREEEaR -

EEZEE
Exgcu=EZ8e IREXZES ¥
MEZEGNERZES -

=
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TREL®RE

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) to make recommendations to the Board on
the appointment or re- appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman and the chief
executive. As at 31 December 2021, the Nomination Committee
consisted of five members, comprising Mr. Chau Kam Wing (chairman),
Mr. Zhao Juanxian (alias, Zhao Junxian), Mr. Li Zhong, Mr. Peng
Yongzhen and Mr. Chang Qing.

The Nomination Committee reviewed the size, structure and
composition of the Board to complement the Group’s corporate
strategy and made recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and re-appointment of Directors during the year ended 31 December
2021.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year ended
31 December 2021 and the attendance records are set out below:

REEES
ARRERZRAEZEE(RBEEE]) 3
RESBEESEREETNEIHIEREE
FROBREH)AEEERTEZZ R-F
——Ft-A=t—B REZEEHEEX
S - BESRELE(XF)  BEELE
Fhid  EKBRELERTEBRE -

HE_Z-—F+-_A=+—HILFE &%
ZEERNEFENMRR - RELMEKNUES
AEBHLRRE  YHEFSZEMEFNZ
TEFRHHERES -

HE-_Z-—F+-A=+—HILFE &%
ZEERT-REE  ZSERNHHETEHT
LU

Attendance/

Number of

Meetings

SEHERE

Name of Directors EEHF BITIRE
Mr. Chau Kam Wing EFEy 1”71
Mr. Zhao Juanxian (alias, Zhao Junxian) HEBELE 11
Mr. Li Zhong FrhEsE 171
Mr. Peng Yongzhen EZ & Jlas 1/1
Mr. Chang Qing NPt 1/1

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee (the
"Remuneration Committee”) to review and approve the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals
and objects and make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration package of individual executive Directors and senior
management. As at 31 December 2021, the Remuneration Committee
consisted of three members, namely Mr. Peng Yongzhen (chairman),
Mr. Zhao Juanxian (alias, Zhao Junxian) and Mr. Chau Kam Wing.

FMEES

ARFERIFHESS (HHEER]) - A
SEEERNOEEBERE B RIEEE
BOHMAR  LHENATESRSRER
BOHBEAMEE SRR - N =T —
F+=A=+—R HWEEEHM=EREM
W BEAHAE (E)  HEE SRR
Bt -
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TREL®RE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Remuneration
Committee reviewed the Directors’ fees (including executive Directors
and independent non-executive Directors) in consideration of the
increasing level of duties and responsibilities and market conditions;
and approval of the remuneration incentive structure of the Group as a
whole taking consideration of factors such as salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and their responsibilities.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year
ended 31 December 2021 and the attendance records are set out

FMEZEEE @)
BE-_Z-—F+_-_A=+—HBILFE M
ZEGEREBENIEINMNBE REEKFEU
KSR ERTES(BERTESRB L
FHITEF)NEE  UEEBEAELLEAT]
FifftmEe B HMERMERESR
ERHERE B BT RS -

BHE_Z_—F+_A=+—BILFE %
ZEGRTREH  BSEENHFEREHD

below: RN
Attendance/
Number of
Meetings
SEHERE
Name of Directors BEENA BITIRE
Mr. Peng Yongzhen TR 11
Mr. Zhao Juanxian (alias, Zhao Junxian) HEELE VAl
Mr. Chau Kam Wing [E SR ek S 11

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The Company has established a formal and transparent procedure for
formulating policies on remuneration of senior management of the
Group. Details of the remuneration of each of the Directors for the year
ended 31 December 2021 are set out in Note 8 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

The biographies of the senior management are disclosed in the section
headed "Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report.
Remuneration paid to the senior management (excluding the Directors)
by bands for the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out below:

EENRGSREEENHH

ARBDEI IR AR E DR E IR E HBBR
MIEAMEROEF BE-_FT—_—F+_A
=t RLFERESNHMFERNGAM
BIRRMIFES -

SREEENBENATFR  EE R RERE
Bl —fEE 22T -_—F+_A=1+—
AEFEERGEESS» N TEREEE(TE
BEFR)NWHMEI AT -

Number of
individuals
Remuneration bands M EE AB
HK$1,500,000 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,000 7% 7T & 2,000,000 7T 1
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TRERKRE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (the "Audit
Committee”) to assist the Board in providing an independent view of
the effectiveness of the financial reporting process, internal control and
risk management systems, oversee the audit process, monitor, review
and assist in the research of the Company’s environmental, social and
governance matters, and perform other duties and responsibilities as
assigned by the Board. As at 31 December 2021, the Audit Committee
consisted of three independent non-executive Directors, being Mr.
Chau Kam Wing (chairman), Mr. Peng Yongzhen and Mr. Chang Qing.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the annual results and annual
report of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021. The Audit
Committee has also discussed matters with respect to the accounting
policies and practices adopted by the Company and internal control
with senior management members of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Audit Committee
discussed with the management of the Company about the internal
controls, financial reporting and environmental, social and governance
matters, and reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group and the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
system. The Audit Committee also met with the external auditor to
review the annual report of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2021 and the interim report of the Company for the six
months ended 30 June 20271 and discuss about the annual audit
planning of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021.

EREES

RRREKIERZEG ([EREEE]) - U

B EFS MM BERRET - AE B%;TW B

EBEZFNAERMREBECER BEEFZE

T? CEE - BERMBMAEAR TE’Jiaii ran
MEREE  URBITESSHERMNEME

W&Hﬁ% CRIEBE_—Ft+-_A=t+—H &
T BEmM=RBIIFNTERAK - BIEER
REE(ER)  ZXBEREREBRE -

BENRZEBECENAREBERE T _—F1=

A=t —BLFENFERERFR BZZ
el ARm s EEEKRETRARRA
RBFTERME S 5T BER KB FIA B A BB EE 12 9

o

it
}

BHE-_Z-_—F+-_A=1+—HBIEE 8%
ZECHRANREE B mAITER - IS
HWUARIRE HEREARAEE TR AEH
ey 5t R A A8 5 A R A £ E /R 2B s o
BIEBBME - BEZEZEENE T RINEZE
- ABHARRHZ-_Z-_—F+_A4
—t+—HUIEFENFREARRHE-T=—
FRAZTHIEANEANFRHRS REFTARQ
AEE-_Z-—F+-_A=t—HILFENE
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The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31  #HZ —F+-_A=+—HILFE &
December 2021 and the attendance records are set out below: ’f?i,\ = ¢TTI§ﬁ/K§E§ BEEMHE LR
FEnR
Attendance/
Number of
Meetings
eEHERE
Name of Directors EENA BITRE
Mr. Chau Kam Wing JESREE A& 2/2
Mr. Peng Yongzhen TR 2/2
Mr. Chang Qing BESE 2/2
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TREL®RE

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2021. The Directors consider that the Group has
adequate resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future
and are not aware of material uncertainties that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and other statutory and regulatory requirements.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the Company’s consolidated financial
statements, which are put to the Board for approval.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is solely responsible for the risk management and internal
control system to protect the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole. To achieve its aim, the Board monitors and
approves the strategies and policies of the Group's risk management
and internal control systems. The purpose of the relevant strategies
and policies is to evaluate and determine the nature and extent of risks
to make it suitable for the Group's strategic objectives and risk
endurance. The main target is to provide reasonable assurance against
material misstatement or loss, rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives. To this end, management continues to
allocate resources for an internal control and risk management system
compatible with the COSO (Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission) standards to provide reasonable, though
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure in the operating system
of the Group and in achieving business objectives by the Group.

BEREZX
EERAEGRARAHE-S-—F+ =7
=+ —HILEFENGANERENET -ES
REBAEEBERRER e A AR AR REE
HER AU THBRUERESAQGTFEL
LR NTFRNERNTHBEE -

EXRRRUFERTHRE  AREHNRS
K ETR AR EARTE MBS E AR T B RV EAM
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MEEFSHRIESSHENANRAGEH
B AL ABRHE

JEL B T 3 % P EB BE 4
EXgHRERERENAMPEZERGAEDIE
- UREBARFLHERRNERNE - B
b BEFEEEEBELESRASENRREER LA
PRESYE R ATHV SRS B HR - MR RES PR 5
EAEREERREEREENEARENR
BERELERARESN  TBEENRRAEM
RETGHLBEBRERMIIBR - MIEHBR KRR
EREBERORR - REIEEBEY  BE
[ COSO (Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission)
B FESRERT AABEEE R AR ERE R
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TREL®RE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has continuously monitored
and annually reviewed the effectiveness of risk management and
internal control system of the Group and its subsidiaries, and is of the
view that the existing risk management and internal control system is
sufficient and effective. The review covered all material aspects with
regard to control, including financial control, operational control and
compliance control. The internal audit reports submitted to the Audit
Committee by the Group also covered aspects of risk management
and internal control. The Board is not aware of any significant areas of
concern which may affect the Shareholders, and believes that the
Group has fully complied with the code provisions on internal controls,
including compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, as set
forth in the CG Code. The Board, through the appraisal performed by
the Audit Committee, reviewed the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programs received by the staff
and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal auditing and financial
reporting function at the Board meeting. In light of the Group's nature
of business and the recommendations on the Board's role in risk
management, the Group has developed risk management system and
policies, and established a risk control department, which is
responsible for the Group's risk management, to communicate and
assess the Group's risk profile and material risks, and track the progress
of mitigation plans and initiatives of material risks and report on
detailed examinations of specific risks as required.

B EERANIPEEE &)

EXERCERERRESNAKELENBA
ANEREE R AMEERRELBRETR
BEBRFERY  URASRENERERER
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TEERKRE

RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION SYSTEM

The Group has established a comprehensive organization structure to
manage the risks encountered by the Group. The risk management
structure comprises two key factors: risk management structure and
risk management program.

RElEEASER

AREDRY —ERENABES  HAEE
FEHMARETEE - AR EREERER
ERRE  ApEREENARERER -

The Board (Supervision)

Bxg (8

REEZE

Risk Management Structure
RBREERE

Risk Risk
Management ~ Collection of Risk Nlls
: anagement
Program Information Assessment Siigies
[ R (G =
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TREB®SE

RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION SYSTEM Rl ERASBR @)

(Continued)
1. Risk management structure - RBEBREEZES

> determine the overall objective, risk appetites and risk tolerance for corporate risk
management, and approve risk management strategies, major risk mitigation solutions and
risk management measures;

BECEAREZARARE BRFEL  RRIDE  HERREERBENEARRSTET

KUK B EIRIE M
REGULATORY »  understand and manage each major risks faced by the enterprise and its existing management
ORGANISATION situations, and make effective risks control decisions; approve the decision- making standards
EERE or mechanisms regarding major decisions, major risks, major events and major business
processes;

BRNZECEAGRNZEEAR L LERBRERRMN - MEBRIEHIREBRARE  EE
RRE - EAAR EAZHNEEZRBRIBADRRIZ LSS

»  approve risk management report related to major decisions; and

HAEBRKRAREZENEREERS © &

»  approve the annual comprehensive risk management report.

HEFEZHRRERRE -

>  review the establishment and planning of the comprehensive risk management system;

FRTHREREERRNZRMRE

RISK >  review the proposal on the structure of the risk management organisations and their
MANAGEMENT responsibilities;
ORGANISATION ERARERARMERE REMITR
Sk »  review the annual comprehensive risk management report and submit to the Board;
il FRYNEFRRLFE AR ETRRE

»  review risk management strategies, major risk management solutions and risk management
measures; and
EREREIERE EXEREEBRSEURERERER &

>  review the annual risk management work plan.

ERFERRER IS -
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TREB®RSE

RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION SYSTEM Rl ERASBR @)

(Continued)

1.

LEADING RISK
MANAGEMENT
AND
SUPPORTING
ORGANISATION
RRER
FERXE
i

Risk management structure (Continued) - EREEEEE)

responsible for the establishment and amendment of the Company's risk management

policies and mechanisms;

BERYMERT AR R AR EIEBUR R

establish anti-corruption mechanisms, and check for possible corruption conduct during the
internal audit process, and make suggestions for dealing with corruption conduct;

BN R SRS  WHEARBABETREAIAFENZERTR  BEETRARLREES
formulate annual risk management work plan and submit to the Board and the Audit
Committee for their review;

REFERREETIFAE  RRXEFE BRZESER

regularly collect first-hand information regarding risk management, carry out risk assessment
and discuss major risks faced by the Company;

EHWERREREER - E£TRRFE - AwiRE AR EENERER

assess the soundness, reasonability and the effectiveness in implementation of the risk
management system, and review the annual comprehensive risk management report, risk
management proposals and day-to-day risk management solutions;
FHEEREERGNREENE  AEMENNTHNAERE  EXFEL2ERREERS - ARE
BHRMATRREEBERTE

accept reports from employees and cooperating organizations, organize investigations and
provide handling advices, and investigate and deal with people and matters that violate
Company and legal regulations;

XEETIRAFEEMNER ARRAEIREEEER  ERERARMERRENAME
assist the Group in carrying out risk management work, and formulate internal auditing plan in
accordance with the result of risk assessment; and

BHAEERREARERTE  RERRFGERSEAEIETE &

test the effectiveness of risk management through implementing accounting methods like
walk through test and analytical review on its audit.

ETFTRAR - DMTEBRF DAERETRBRRREENARIL
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TEERKRE

RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION SYSTEM Rl ERASBR @)

(Continued)
1. Risk management structure (Continued) -  EREEREEE)

> implement the basic procedures in risk management;
K HITRREREARE :
[MPLEMENTATION

research and propose decision-making standards or mechanisms regarding major decisions,
ORGANISATION major risks, major events and major business processes of the functional department;

BT R AP IEARE - BARAK  BASHNEBLBHIRAREEEL S

Ll »  research and propose risk assessment report of the functional department; properly carry out
risk management work of the functional department; and
IR AR AL EPT 0 BB ST 3R MIF AR S FIER ER TIE : &
»  establish comprehensive risk management procedures for the functional department.
BN 2 2R E AR B P A R B B IR AR o
2. Risk management program = EREEEX

The Group has established a comprehensive risk management AEBRREY—EXTENRARERR

program which is led and implemented by the internal audit and A ZERABHAEEZTERERAED

inspection department. The risk management program is as FIBIEATT R EIRIZR AT ¢
follows:

(1) to collect first-hand information for risk management; (1) EREEIGETWE

(2)  to analyse and assess risks; 2  RBEofTFErd

(3) to propose risk management strategies and formulate risk 3) IEHEAREHRE  WEKRRE
management solutions; and BERAFZE &

(4)  to supervise the implementation of risk management works @) HEREKBECVRREEIIEEGS
performed by each business units and verify the overall EITEEWZ RS FTHE -
appraisal.
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RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION SYSTEM

(Continued)

2. Risk management program (Continued)
Key risk management program of the Group

Risk
Management
Program
EREE
B
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Functions
B RE
HE
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EEEASER &

= EREEEXE
FEEFRABEERR

Risk
Management
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SUPERVISION AND ENHANCEMENT OF RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Group has set up basic procedures that cover the whole process
of risk management, connecting the channels of communication of risk
management information along the reporting lines and among various
departments and business units to ensure timely, accurate and
complete sharing of information and this has laid the foundation for
the supervision and enhancement of risk management.

The senior management of the Group, focusing on material risks,
material matters and material decisions, important management
matters and the business flow, supervises the work relating to the first-
hand information collection for risk management, risk assessment, risk
management strategies, critical control activities and the
implementation of risk management solutions. The internal audit and
inspection department carries out an annual review and examination
on the implementation of the works on risk management by different
departments and business units and its effectiveness for the year,
assesses risk management strategies and evaluates inter-departmental
risk management solutions and business units’ risk management
solutions, proposes suggestions for adjustments and recommendations
for improvements and issues evaluation and recommendation reports
which will be sent to the relevant senior management in a timely

manner.

MATERIAL RISKS THE GROUP MAY FACE

In 2021, during the course of business planning, we identified material
risks that the Group may face which include risk of delayed collection,
risk of breach of agreement by governments, risk in relation to short-
term borrowing solvency, risk in relation to amount of water intake and

water quality and risk in relation to litigation disputes.

The potential risk of delayed collection arises from the impact of the
general market environment, the inability of the government to pay
large sums due to financial constraints, resulting in damage to the
Company's interests and extension of the collection period. The
Group's corresponding measures on such risk include maintaining
good relationship with the government, and urging the operating
subsidiaries to duly complete regular reconciliation.
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The potential risk of breach of agreement by governments arises from
economic losses due to fiscal stress of local government and unilateral
non-compliance with stipulated terms. The Group's corresponding
measures on such risk include maintaining good communication with
local governments and entering into cooperation memorandum for
follow-up and coordination.

The potential risk in relation to short-term borrowing solvency arises
from the rapid development of the Company, causing a lack of
liquidity, unreasonable debt structure, lack of financing ability and
excessive cost of capital acquisition. The Group's corresponding
measures on such risk include enhancing profitability and operating
cash flow, improving quality of asset, optimizing debt structure and
formulating reasonable debt repayment plans.

The potential risk in relation to the amount of water intake and water
quality arises from lack of proper monitoring of water quality and timely
adjustment of technique, resulting in a larger difference in the amount
of water and non-compliance with intake water quality. The Group's
corresponding measures on such risk include in-depth research on
government planning, enhancing the monitoring of intake water quality
and timely adjustment of technique based on water intake.

The potential risk in relation to litigation disputes arises from the
incomprehensive dispute resolution mechanism, not solving disputes
by making full use of litigation / arbitration or insufficient awareness on
monitoring disputes. As a result,the Company loses the best timing to
deal with disputes. The Group's corresponding measures on such risk
include formulating a comprehensive dispute resolution mechanism,
seeking assistance from professionals, dealing with disputes by means
of litigation / arbitration, monitoring and properly handling disputes.
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MANAGEMENT OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group has formulated a set of program of continuing obligations
on information management and disclosure to formally regulate the
monitoring of inside information that arises during the course of its
current business development and has established the practice of
delivering such information to the Shareholders, the media and
analysts. When handling the relevant matters, the Group will comply
with “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the
Securities and Futures Commission and the related provisions issued
by regulatory organisations and the Group has clearly stated that the
unauthorised use of confidential or inside information is prohibited.
The Group has set up a system of answering enquiries from external
parties about the Group's affairs, and will appoint and authorise the
senior executives of the Group to act as the Company’s spokesperson
in response to enquiries on a particular area.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITOR'’S
REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about its
reporting responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial Statements is
set out in the “Independent Auditor’'s Report” on pages 68 to 75.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the remuneration paid/
payable to the Company’s independent auditor, Ernst & Young, is set
out below:
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Annual audit services FEETRE 2,826
Non-audit services IEE T AR 404
Total fees 4 & 3,230

Non-audit services included tax advisory services and environmental,
social and governance advisory services. The Audit Committee is
satisfied that the non-audit services did not affect the independence of
the external auditor.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS/INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor
understanding of the Group's business performance and strategies.
The Company also recognises the importance of transparency and
timely disclosure of corporate information, which will enable
Shareholders and investors to make the best investment decisions. The
general meetings of the Company provide a forum for face-to face
communication between the Board and the Shareholders dialogue.
The Chairman as well as chairmen of the Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee or, in their absence,
other members of the respective committees and, where applicable,
the chairman of the independent Board committee, are available to
answer questions at general meetings.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains on its
website up-to-date information and updates on the Company’s
business operations and developments, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information, which are
posted and are available for public access.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company has not amended its constitutional documents during
the year ended 31 December 2021.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution
is proposed for each substantially separate issue at Shareholders’
meetings, including the election of individual Directors.

All resolutions put forward at Shareholders’ meetings will be voted on
by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Company and of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
after each general meeting.

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries to the Board
could send their enquiries to the Company’s principal place of business
in Hong Kong or the headquarters in the PRC or by email to
kangda@kangdaep.com. Shareholders can contact Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, the Hong Kong branch share
registrar of the Company, if they have any enquiries about their
shareholdings and entitlements to dividend.
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CONVENING OF EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETINGS AND PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, any one or more members
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company, to
require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Wong Wan Sing is the company secretary of the Company. During
the year ended 31 December 2021, he has undertaken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training.
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The Board is pleased to present its report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Details of the
principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to
the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Business review of the Group is set out in “Business Review” section of
“Management Discussion and Analysis”.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s results, assets and liabilities, which are
extracted from the annual audited reports, are set out on page 231 and
page 232 of this annual report. This summary does not form part of the
audited consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 and its
financial position at that date are set out on the financial statements on
pages 76 to 79 of this annual report.

The Board did not recommend payment of the final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2021 (year ended 31 December 2020: nil).

DIVIDEND POLICY

The declaration, form, frequency and amount of any dividend payout
of the Company must be in accordance with relevant laws, rules and
regulations and subject to the Articles of Association. Subject to
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and the Articles of
Association, in deciding whether to propose any dividend payout, the
Board will take into account, among other things, the financial results,
the earnings and distributable reserves, the operations and liquidity
requirements, the debt ratio and possible effects on the credit lines,
and the current and future development plans of the Company.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The transfer books and register of members of the Company will be
closed from Thursday, 2 June 2022 to Wednesday, 8 June 2022, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of Shares can be
registered. The record date for entitlement to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the “Annual
General Meeting”) is Wednesday, 8 June 2022. In order to be qualified
for attending and voting at the Annual General Meeting, all transfers of
Shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 1 June 2022.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The political, economic and social conditions in China are experiencing
changes and reforms, which may adversely affect our business, growth
strategies, operating results and financial condition.

Demand for the Group's services and business, financial condition,
results of operations and prospects may be adversely affected by the
following factors:

o political instability or changes in social conditions in China;
. changes in laws, regulations and administrative directives;
. measures which may be introduced to control inflation or

deflation; and
o changes in the rate or method of taxation.

These factors are affected by a number of variables which are beyond
control.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group has implemented internal recycling program on a
continuous basis for consumable goods such as toner cartridges and
paper to minimise the operation impact on the environment and
natural resources. Recycled papers have also been used as key printing
materials for internal use.

The Group has also implemented energy saving practices in offices
and the Group's wastewater plants to enhance the efficiency of
electricity consumption.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to applicable
laws, rules and regulations in particular, those have significant impact
on the Group. Any changes in the applicable laws, rules and
regulations are brought to the attention of relevant employees and
relevant operation units from time to time.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 12
to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands where the
Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer
new Shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company'’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 80 of this annual report respectively.

As at 31 December 2021, the Company's reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of Companies
Law, amounted to approximately RMB1,676.0 million (2020: RMB1,715.0
million).
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's five largest
suppliers accounted for 16.9% of the Group's total purchases and
purchase from the Group's largest supplier included therein amounted
to 4.9% of the total purchases for the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's sales to its five
largest customers accounted for 30.6% of the Group's total sales and
sales to the largest customer included therein amounted to 7.9% of the
total sales for the year.

Jiangxi Silver Dragon Water Environment Construction Co., Ltd.* (T F§
IRBEKIRIEERBREM AR (“Jiangxi Silver Dragon”) is one of the
five largest suppliers of the Group during the year ended 31 December
2021. Jiangxi Silver Dragon is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of China
Water, a substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr. Li Zhong, Ms. Liu
Yujie and Mr. Duan, Jerry Linnan, the executive Directors of the
Company, are also the executive directors of China Water and Mr.
Chau Kam Wing, an independent non-executive Director of the
Company, is also an independent non-executive director of China
Water. Further details are set out in the section “Connected
Transaction” below. Save as disclosed, none of the Directors or any of
their close associates or any Shareholders (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company'’s
issued share capital) had any interest in the Group's five largest
customers and suppliers.

BANK LOANS

Particulars of interest-bearing bank and other borrowings of the Group
as at 31 December 2021 are set out in note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

Details of the Group's policies on capital management are set out in
note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD
For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group did not hold any
material investments in the equity interest of other companies.
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MATERIAL INVESTMENT AND FUTURE PLANS OF
CAPITAL ASSETS

As of 31 December 2021, Group had no material investment and other
plans for capital assets.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any
material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries and associates.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS
EMPLOYEES

Employees are regarded as the most important and valuable assets of
the Group. The objective of the Group's human resource management
is to reward and recognise performing staff by providing a competitive
remuneration package and implementing a sound performance
appraisal system with appropriate incentives, and to promote career
development and progression by appropriate training and providing
opportunities within the Group for career advancement.

CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group's customers are generally municipal, district or county level
governments or their designees in China. We typically enter into
agreements with the Group’s customers to provide wastewater
treatment and other services on a project-by-project basis.

The Group's business is built on a customer-oriented culture, and are
focused on establishing relationships with district or county level
governments or their designees in China. The Group also understands
that it is important to maintain good relationship with its suppliers and
customers to fulfil its immediate and long-term goals. To maintain its
market competitiveness within the industry, the Group aims at
delivering constantly high standards of quality in the service to its
customers.

SHAREHOLDERS

One of the corporate goals of the Group is to enhance corporate value
to Shareholders. The Group is poised to foster business developments
for achieving the sustainability of earnings growth and rewarding
Shareholders.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the

date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors:

Zhao Juanxian (alias, Zhao Junxian) (Co-Chairman)
Li Zhong (Co-Chairman)

Liu Yujie

Duan, Jerry Linnan (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent non-executive Directors:
Chau Kam Wing

Chang Qing

Peng Yongzhen

In accordance with the Articles of Association, Mr. Li Zhong, Ms. Liu
Yujie and Mr. Peng Yongzhen will retire at the Annual General Meeting,
and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

Details of the Directors to be re-elected at the Annual General Meeting
are set out in the circular to the Shareholders.

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Group are set out on pages 20 to 25 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into service contract with
the Company for an initial fixed term of three years and will continue
thereafter until terminated by not less than three months’ notice in
writing served by either party to the other.

Each of the independent non-executive directors has entered into
service contract/letter of appointment with the Company for an initial
fixed term of one year and will continue thereafter until terminated by
not less than one month’s notice in writing served by either party to the
other.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS OF
SIGNIFICANCE, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this annual report, no Director or his/
her connected party had a material interest, either directly or indirectly,
in any transactions of significance, arrangements or contracts to the
business of the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party during the year ended 31 December 2021.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

According to the Articles of Association, every Director or other officer
of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets
and profits of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he/she
may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/her
office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has arranged
appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the
Directors and officers of the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2021.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted the share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) on 14 June 2014 (the “Adoption Date”). The
following is a summary of principal terms of the Share Option Scheme:

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to give the Eligible
Persons (as defined in the following paragraph) an opportunity to have
a personal stake in the Company and help motivate them to optimise
their future performance and efficiency to the Group and/or to reward
them for their past contributions, to attract and retain or otherwise
maintain on-going relationships with such Eligible Persons who are
significant to and/or whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the
performance, growth or success of the Group, and additionally in the
case of Executives (as defined below), to enable the Group to attract
and retain individuals with experience and ability and/or to reward
them for their past contributions.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
Who may join in the Share Option Scheme
The Board may, at its absolute discretion, grant options (“Option(s)")

to subscribe for such number of Shares in accordance with the terms
set out in the Share Option Scheme to:

(a)

(9)

any executive Director of, manager of, or other employee holding
an executive, managerial, supervisory or similar position in any
member of the Group (“Executive”), any full-time or part-time
employee, or person for the time being seconded to work full-
time or part-time for any member of the Group (“Employee”);

a Director or proposed Director (including an independent non-
executive Director) of any member of the Group;

a direct or indirect shareholder of any member of the Group;

a supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group;

a customer, consultant, business or joint venture partner,
franchisee, contractor, agent or representative of any member of
the Group;

a person or entity that provides design, research, development
or other support or any advisory, consultancy, professional or

other services to any member of the Group; and

an associate of any of the persons referred to in paragraphs (a) to
(f) above (the person referred above are the “Eligible Persons”).

Maximum number of Shares
A resolution was passed by the shareholders of the Company at the
annual general meeting of the Company on 10 June 2020, approving,

inter alia, to refresh the limit of the Share Option Scheme to
213,973,500 shares of the Company, representing 10% of the issued
shares of the Company as at 10 June 2020. For further details please

refer to the Company’s announcement dated 10 June 2020.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Maximum entitlement of each participant

No Option may be granted to any one person such that the total
number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of Options
granted and to be granted to that person in any 12-month period
exceeds 1% of the Company’s issued share capital from time to time.

Where any further grant of Options to such Eligible Person would result
in the Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all Options
granted and to be granted to such Eligible Person (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding Options) in the 12-month period up to and
including the date of such further grant representing in aggregate over
1% of the Shares in issue, such further grant shall be separately
approved by the Shareholders in general meeting with such Eligible
Person and his or her associates abstaining from voting.

Offer and grant of Options

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the Board shall be
entitled at any time within 10 years from the Adoption Date to offer the
grant of an Option to any Eligible Person as the Board may in its
absolute discretion select to subscribe at the subscription price for
such number of Shares as the Board may (subject to the terms of the
Share Option Scheme) determine (provided the same shall be a board
lot for dealing in the Shares on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange or an
integral multiple thereof).

Minimum holding period, vesting and performance target
Subject to the provisions of the Listing Rules, the Board may in its
absolute discretion when offering the grant of an Option impose any
conditions, restrictions or limitations in relation thereto in addition to
those set forth in the Share Option Scheme as the Board may think fit
(to be stated in the letter containing the offer of the grant of Option)
including (without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing)
qualifying and/or continuing eligibility criteria, conditions, restrictions or
limitations relating to the achievement of performance, operating or
financial targets by the Company and/or the grantee, the satisfactory
performance or maintenance by the grantee of certain conditions or
obligations or the time or period before the right to exercise the Option
in respect of any of Shares shall vest provided that such terms or
conditions shall not be inconsistent with any other terms or conditions
of the Share Option Scheme. For the avoidance of doubt, subject to
such terms and conditions as the Board may determine as aforesaid
(including such terms and conditions in relation to their vesting, exercise
or otherwise) there is no minimum period for which an Option must be
held before it can be exercised and no performance target which need
to be achieved by the grantee before Option can be exercised.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Amount payable on acceptance of the option and the
payment period

To accept the grant of an Option, HK$1 as consideration for the grant
of an Option must be received by the Company from the grantee
within 28 days from the date on which the board resolution approves
the grant of Options.

Subscription price

The subscription price in respect of any particular Option shall be such
price as the Board may in its absolute discretion determine at the time
of grant of the relevant Option (and shall be stated in the letter
containing the offer of the grant of the Option) but the subscription
price shall not be less than whichever is the highest of:

(@)  The nominal value of a Share;

(b)  The closing price of a Share as stated in the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the offer date; and

() The average closing price of a Share as stated in the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange's daily quotations for the 5 business days (as
defined in the Listing Rules) immediately preceding the offer
date.

The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme
The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there is no Option granted,
lapsed or exercised under the Share Option Scheme. As at 31
December 2021, no Option was outstanding under the Share Option
Scheme.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Remuneration Committee was set up for reviewing the Group's
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors
and senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group's
operating results, individual performance of the Directors and senior
management and comparable market practices.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five highest paid
individuals are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) (i) which were required to be notified
to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or (i) which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered into the register maintained by the Company, or (jii)
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:
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Approximate
percentage of
issued share

Number of capital of

Name of Director Nature of Interest Shares  the Company

RN

E#TRAH

EEnA EEME gk 2 ¢=| BB

Mr. Zhao Juanxian Person acting in concert 546,728,004 25.56%
(alias, Zhao Junxian)™ —EHITEAL (long position)
HEBELED (412 )

Mr. Li Zhong Beneficial owner 10,000,000 0.47%
FHREA EnlaA (long position)
(4 8)

Ms. Liu Yujie Beneficial owner 10,000,000 0.47%
BlEARL L EmAA (long position)
(4 8)

Mr. Duan, Jerry Linnan Beneficial owner 10,000,000 0.47%
BN EREAAN (long position)
(4F%)

Mr. Chau Kam Wing Beneficial owner 2,000,000 0.09%
EFEPe EmEBA (long position)
(4 8)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (Continued)

EENRESITRAERKRS - 1HE
R REEENEZER AR @

Approximate
percentage of
issued share

Number of capital of

Name of Director Nature of Interest Shares  the Company

SR NG

EBRITRAN

EEnA EENE RO EE BMAOBE D

Mr. Chang Qing Beneficial owner 2,000,000 0.09%
wBiE BEmlEE A (long position)
(412 )

Mr. Peng Yongzhen Beneficial owner 2,000,000 0.09%
TXERE Ema A (long position)
(1F%)

Note: Bt 5E

(1) By virtue of Mr. Zhao Juanxian acting in concert with Mr. Zhao Sizhen, being the son
of Mr. Zhao Juanxian, under the SFO, Mr. Zhao Juanxian is deemed to be interested
in Mr. Zhao Sizhen's interests in the Company.

Save as disclosed, as at 31 December 2021, none of the Directors and
the chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to have any
interest or short position in the Shares, underlying Shares or
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) that was required to be recorded in the
register of the Company required to be kept under Section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the
year ended 31 December 2021 were rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any Director or their respective spouse or children under 18
years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company and any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors, or their respective spouse or children under 18
years of age, to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the
following persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the
Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares which fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:
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Number of Percentage of

Shares/ Issued Share

Underlying Capital of

Name Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares held the Company

gk, HEDTERT

wE/ AR B EEME HEROGBE REWEIL

China Water Affairs Group Limited® Interest of controlled corporation 953,119,996 44.54%
PERBEEFR AR OO REGDEE S (long position)
(#F2)

Sharp Profit Investments Limited Beneficial owner 953,119,996 44.54%
("Sharp Profit"”)M®) BEnEA A (long position)
(#F2)

Mr. Zhao Sizhen? Interest of controlled corporation 543,828,004 25.42%
Zhao Sizhen %4 @ SIEHEE S (long position)
(4F%)

Beneficial owner 2,900,000 0.14%
EnlEEA (long position)
(#F2)

Kangda Holdings Company Limited® Beneficial owner 543,828,004 25.42%
FREERBER ARG EnlEEA (long position)
(41 %)

Baring Private Equity Asia V Beneficial owner 344,129,996 16.08%
Holding® Limited (“BPEA V")4®) BEmilEA A (long position)
(#F%)

Beneficial owner 344,129,996 16.08%
EREAA (short position)
k7))
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND

TERRRNRD R B G A

SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND mRRE E)
UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)
Number of Percentage of
Shares/ Issued Share
Underlying Capital of
Name Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares held the Company
R, HAATCRIT
wE LB B HnttE HERGEE REANBEDL
The Baring Asia Private Equity Fund V, L.P.#®  Interest of controlled corporation 344,129,996 16.08%
REHEE R (long position)
(& &)
Interest of controlled corporation 344,129,996 16.08%
REHEEER (short position)
(#E)
Baring Private Equity Asia GP V, L.P.4® Interest of controlled corporation 344,129,996 16.08%
SEHEE S (long position)
(4 &)
Interest of controlled corporation 344,129,996 16.08%
Tind A E LS (short position)
C#E)
Baring Private Equity Asia GP V Limited®® Interest of controlled corporation 344,129,996 16.08%
RiEHEE R (long position)
(4 8)
Interest of controlled corporation 344,129,996 16.08%
PG EE S (short position)
C&E)
Mr. Jean Eric Salata®® Interest of controlled corporation 344,129,996 16.08%
Jean Eric Salata 5t 4 @® TG EE S (long position)
(5F&)
Interest of controlled corporation 344,129,996 16.08%
A EES (short position)
O#E)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

Notes:

m

Save

Sharp Profit is wholly owned by China Water Affairs Group Limited. China Water
Affairs Group Limited is therefore deemed to be interested in Sharp Profit's interests
in the Company under the SFO.

By virtue of Mr. Zhao Juanxian acting in concert with Mr. Zhao Sizhen, under the
SFO, Mr. Zhao Juanxian is deemed to be interested in Mr. Zhao Sizhen'’s interests in
the Company.

Kangda Holdings Company Limited is wholly-owned and controlled by Mr. Zhao
Sizhen and Mr. Zhao Sizhen is therefore deemed to be interested in the shares held
by Kangda Holdings Company Limited under the SFO.

BPEA V is held as to approximately 99.35% by The Baring Asia Private Equity Fund V,
L.P. Baring Private Equity Asia GP V, L.P., is the general partner of The Baring Asia
Private Equity Fund V, L.P. Mr. Jean Eric Salata is the sole shareholder of Baring
Private Equity Asia GP V Limited, the general partner of Baring Private Equity Asia
GP V, L.P. Each of The Baring Asia Private Equity Fund V, L.P., Baring Private Equity
Asia GP V, L.P., Baring Private Equity Asia GP V Limited and Mr. Jean Eric Salata is
deemed to be interested in BPEA V's interests in the Company. Mr. Jean Eric Salata
disclaims beneficial ownership of such interests, other than to the extent of his
economic interest in such entities.

On 8 May 2020, BPEA V issued exchangeable bonds with principal amount of
HK$361,336,495.8 to Sharp Profit (“Exchangeable Bonds”), which entitled the holder
of the Exchangeable Bonds to exchange for 344,129,996 shares of the Company (at
the initial exchange price of HK1.05 per share of the Company) beneficially owned
by BPEA V. As at 31 December 2021, Sharp Profit beneficially owned 608,990,000
shares of the Company and is the holder of the Exchangeable Bonds with principal
amount of HK$361,336,495.8 which are exchangeable into 344,129,996 shares of the
Company beneficially owned by BPEA V.

as disclosed above, and as at 31 December 2021, the Directors

were not aware of any persons (who were not Directors or chief

executive of the Company) who had an interest or short position in the

Shares or underlying Shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
would be required, pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be entered

in the register referred to therein.
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Report of Directors

EEERE

DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, as at 31 December 2021, none
of the Directors or their respective associates had engaged in or had
any interest in any business which competes or may compete with the
businesses of the Group.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 25 September 2020, Kangda Investment (Hong Kong) Company
Limited (“Kangda Investment (Hong Kong)”), an indirectly wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a framework
construction services agreement (the “Construction Services
Agreement”) with Jiangxi Silver Dragon, pursuant to which, the parties
agreed that Jiangxi Silver Dragon may be selected to provided civil
works, construction, installation works and supply of equipment for
projects of the Group relating to the construction, upgrading,
reconstruction and expansion of wastewater treatment facilities
through a tender process in compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations in the PRC. The term of the Construction Services
Agreement commenced from the date of the Construction Services
Agreement and ending on 31 December 2022. Jiangxi Silver Dragon is
a non-wholly owned subsidiary of China Water, a substantial
shareholder of the Company. Therefore, Jiangxi Silver Dragon is an
associate of China Water and a connected person of the Company.
The transactions in relation to the Construction Services Agreement
constitute continuous connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, and the Company’s independent
shareholders approved the continuing connected transactions in
relation to the Construction Service Agreement in the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 16 November 2020. The
annual caps under the Construction Services Agreement for the period
commenced from the date of the Construction Services Agreement
and ended on 31 December 2020 and years ending 31 December 2021
and 2022 are RMB180 million, RMB300 million and RMB300 million,
respectively. The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with the Listing Rules. Further details of
the Construction Services Agreement were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 25 September 2020 and circular
dated 30 October 2020.
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Report of Directors

EEERE

CONNECTED TRANSACTION (Continued)

As set out in note 36 of the consolidated financial statements, certain
bank borrowings of the Group were secured by Mr. Zhao Juanxian,
which constitute continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. However, pursuant to Rule 14A.90 of the Listing
Rules, as the guarantees provided by Mr. Zhao Juanxian were
conducted on normal commercial terms and not secured by the assets
of the Group, the guarantees provided by Mr. Zhao Juanxian set out in
note 36 of the consolidated financial statements are fully exempted
from reporting, announcement, annual review and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.09 of the Listing Rules, as Huizhou Kangda
Yingzhihuang Water Co., Ltd.* (BN EEER 2 2K HR A ), Jiaoling
Kangda Environmental Governance Co., Ltd. (BfERERFAEAR A
7)), Pingdingshan City Bay Water Treatment Co., Ltd.* (FIEIL T8 &K
AR A7), Jilin Kangda Environmental Protection Co., Ltd.* (B M
EIRIRBPRAA]), Weihai Kangda Ecological Environment Treatment
Co., Ltd.* (BUBREFELRERFGFAIGIE AR A F)and Shenyang Jinhai
Kangda Environmental Protection Water Co., Ltd.* (&8 FRERR
K BBRAT]) are insignificant subsidiaries of the Group, the related
party transactions between the Group and their respective non-
controlling shareholders set out in note 36 of the consolidated financial
statements do not constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions under the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, the other transactions set in note 36 of the
consolidated financial statements either do not constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions of the Company or
are exempted from reporting, announcement, annual review and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

*  For identification purposes only
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Report of Directors

EEERE

CONFIRMATION FROM INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions of the Group and have confirmed
that these transactions have been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i)  on normal commercial terms; and

(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing such
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

The auditors of the Company have reported to the Directors that
nothing has come to their attention that causes the auditors to believe
that, during the year ended 31 December 2021:

() the above continuing connected transactions have not been
approved by the Board,;

(i)  the above continuing connected transactions that involve
provision of goods or services by the Group, were not, in all
material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of the
Company;

(iii)  the above continuing connected transactions were not entered
into, in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant
agreement governing such transactions; and

(iv)  the respective cap amounts set out for the relevant agreement
referred to above have been exceeded.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

The material post balance sheet events are disclosed in note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements in this report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee had reviewed together with the management
and independent auditor the accounting principles and policies
adopted by the Group and the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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Report of Directors

EEERE

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING DIRECTORS’
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code contained in the Listing Rules.
Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors and the Directors
have confirmed that they had complied with such code of conduct
during year ended 31 December 2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of shareholders of the Company
and to enhance corporate value and accountability. During the year
ended 31 December 2021, the Company has compiled with all the
applicable provisions of the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
share capital, the prescribed minimum percentage of public float
approved by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and permitted under the
Listing Rules, are held by the public at all times during the year ended
31 December 2021 and up to the date of this annual report.

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young has acted as auditor of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2021.

Ernst & Young shall retire at the Annual General Meeting and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the
re-appointment of Ernst & Young as auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Li Zhong
Co-Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2022

FRESETRZREINTRTA

ARREREFTETESFRGRA—ETRE
A BRI ER £ R P ER X <T AIU A
HORERE - BOERESFLARSEN
% BEFRENFRBE_T_—F+_A
=t RLEFERA-BEETHERITRER -

TEER
RABBONERSEENDEE A MRER
NEIMBREFZERIEACEEERMEE M - #
EIE_—F+ZA=1+—HILEE KA F
BET ETRBIK S 14TE S EERTRIAT
BEAK -

EHABRERE

RIEAQG A ERNAMENMRESHAN
HE - Z-—F+-_A=+—HBIEFEEEXK
WEBH  ARRBBITRARBEHEL25%
(BB Tt RARIR T AR BIFT 7t 3R A9 48
TREAZERASL) " ERAZRESE -

¥ BB
RKEFMEEAIRBE_ZT_—F+_H
=+ RIEFERERRFZEED

KGR BB N ERBFEARE LRI
BRaERKBMERZEE BWERBLKE
AR AARBZBEN R RZESR - B
RBFAELEE -

RKEEFE

b EE
ZFH

A E-_F=A=-+)N\H

BEBEBRRRERRAR/ 2 —FEHE

67



Independent Auditor’s Report
B % B AR

Ernst & Young TG MERKAT Tel E:E: +852 2846 9888
27/F, One Taikoo Place, EBHEH Fax {E: +852 2868 4432
979 King’s Road, HEIEOT79%E ey.com
f,i Quarry Bay, Hong Kong K — EE2THE
To the shareholders of BEEEBRRRBRAT

Kangda International Environmental Company Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kangda
International Environmental Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the "Group”) set out on pages 76 to 230, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs"”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing (“ISAs”) issued by the International Auditing and Assurance
Standards Board ("IAASB”). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
BARENSEE

BRREETTEE %)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEENETNMEERRETSHE

Provision for impairment of trade receivables and financial receivables

B 5 WA R & o IE SRR E R

Trade receivables and financial receivables were significant to
the consolidated financial statements and the majority of the
receivables were generated from service concession
arrangements, engineering procurement construction (“EPC")
contracts, and build-transfer contracts. Expected credit losses
("ECLs") allowances for trade receivables are made based on
the assessment of the recoverability of receivables due from
customers. The Group is required to regularly assess the
recoverability of its trade receivables and financial receivables.
This involves significant judgement and estimation as the ECLs
allowances must reflect information about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future conditions.
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Relevant disclosures are included in note 2.4 summary of
significant accounting policies — “impairment of financial
assets”, note 2.5 significant accounting judgements and
estimates — estimation uncertainty — “Provision for expected
credit losses on trade receivables, financial receivables and
contract assets”, note 19 “financial receivables”, and note 21
“trade and bills receivables” to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Our procedures to assess the recoverability of trade
receivables and financial receivables included,
among others, obtaining confirmations of trade
receivables and financial receivables, examining
evidence of collection of trade receivables and
financial receivables after the year end, recalculating
the ageing analysis by customers, examining the
Group's assessment of the customers’ financial
circumstances and ability to repay the debt,
comparing the Group's provisioning rates against
historical collection data, and considering the
customers’ historical payment habits along with other
macroeconomic information and other reasonable
and supportable forward-looking information.
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We also assessed ECLs allowances model and
checked the calculations.
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In addition, we evaluated the adequacy of the
disclosures regarding the ECLs allowances for trade
receivables and financial receivables.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
BARENSEE

BRREETEE @)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEENETNMEERRETSHE

Recognition and measurement of the contract revenue for service

IR FAAEE LR T B A R At B

The Group engages in certain service concession
arrangements under the terms of Build-Operate-Transfer
("BOT") in which the Group carries out the construction work
of municipal infrastructure for certain governmental authorities
or their designees (the “Grantors”) and receives in return the
rights to operate municipal infrastructure concerned in
accordance with the pre-established conditions set by the
Grantors. The measurement of revenue for service concession
arrangements which is accounted for under IFRIC 12 Service
Concession Arrangements involves significant management
judgements and estimates including determination of
applicable accounting model, estimation of the future
guaranteed receipts, prevailing market rate of construction
gross margins, and discount rates as used in the valuation
process.
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Relevant disclosures are included in note 2.4 summary of
significant accounting policies — “service concession
arrangements”, note 2.5 significant accounting judgements
and estimates — judgements — "accounting for service
concession arrangements” and “percentage of completion of
construction services”, note 4 “revenue” and note 19 “financial
receivables” to the consolidated financial statements.
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concession arrangements

We reviewed the contract terms of the service
concession arrangements and assessed the
accounting model adopted and the future
guaranteed receipts. We evaluated the competency
and objectivity of the external appraiser engaged by
management to assist the determination of the gross
margin for construction service and discount rates.
We also evaluated the basis and assumptions in the
valuation and performed a comparison of the inputs
used in the valuation against external market data. In
addition, we involved our internal valuation
specialists to assist us in evaluating the gross margin
for construction service and the discount rates. We
reviewed the methods and assumptions adopted by
management in determining the total budgeted
costs. We checked the relevant supporting
documents for actual costs on a sampling basis. We
also performed cut-off testing procedures to check
whether material costs had been recognised in the
appropriate accounting periods.
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We also assessed the adequacy of the relevant
disclosures.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated

financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B % B AR

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
B % B AR

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Tsang Pang Sum Joe.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 March 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

AiExT

Year ended 31 December 2021

Hip 2 HE U@ &R

E_T_—F+_A=+—RILFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FTHF
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
Bt ARBTRT ARBTET
REVENUE & 4 2,918,958 3,332,432
Cost of sales $HE R AN (1,583,680) (2,006,795)
Gross profit EAH 1,335,278 1,325,637
Other income and gains A YA g 5 106,557 107,157
Selling and distribution expenses HE RO HEFX (1,117) (2,530)
Administrative expenses THAY (245,965) (217,593)
Other expenses HMFs (76,400) (35,902)
Finance costs & AR 7 (565,688) (561,781)
Share of profits and losses of: DIEA T AREE
Associates YN (270) (2,688)
Joint ventures aEhE (2,150) (4,761)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBL AT F 6 550,245 607,539
Income tax expense FriS a2 10 (132,064) (137,282)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR F R 418,181 470,257
Attributable to: THEIBEA
Owners of the parent BRBEEA 11 412,752 470,488
Non-controlling interests SRR = 5,429 (231)
418,181 470,257
EARNINGS PER SHARE BAREBERSHEAREER
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY 2R
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
Basic for profit for the year FREERNEF
(expressed in RMB per share) (AR ARE ABBEA) " 19.29 cents?  22.39 cents 73
Diluted for profit for the year FREETET
(expressed in RMB per share) (LABRAR®BRELR) 11 19.29 cents B 22.39 cents >
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

mEeEskEMEEKRER

Year ended 31 December 2021 #Z_—_ZE_-_—F+_A=1+—HItFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
Bt ARBTRT ARBTET
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hip2HE W=
Other comprehensive income that HrerEgiRERsEEER
will not be reclassified to profit or ZEMEEmNE :
loss in subsequent periods:
Equity investments designated at BEERRATES ARMEE
fair value through other W IRIER & -
comprehensive income:
Changes in fair value N EE (90,000) (25,000)
Income tax effect TSt & 13,500 3,750
(76,500) (21,250)
Net other comprehensive income that BTrentgiMENsERER
will not be reclassified to profit or 2 Hiv 2 EW TR
loss in subsequent periods (76,500) (21,250)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FRHEMEEYES - NBRHEEA
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (76,500) (21,250)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREEREAE
FOR THE YEAR 341,681 449,007
Attributable to: THIEIBRES ¢
Owners of the parent ISYNEIEZSPN 336,252 449,238
Non-controlling interests FEFE S RESS 5,429 (231)
341,681 449,007

BRRREARLAR/ T —FERE
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PR R

31 December 2021

—E-—F+=-R=+—H

2021 2020
—E--F —ZZFTHF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B =E AR¥ TR AR®TT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BB MR 12 66,784 119,472
Investment properties REME 12,094 12,970
Right-of-use assets EREEE 13 1,718 1,887
Investments in associates REEE N TR E 14 376,773 375,239
Investments in joint ventures NEEDPEMNKE 15 82,009 84,159
Equity investments designated at fair B B AT EF AHMEE S
value through other comprehensive IR AETS &
income 16 248,000 338,000
Service concession intangible assets ML EE — TR s 17 1,084,506 1,133,188
Other intangible assets HihmpaeE 2,577 3,436
Goodwill EES 18 58,325 60,219
Financial receivables 5 R FE UG I8 19 9,100,153 8,313,899
Deferred tax assets RIEFRIBE B 20 96,409 81,036
Prepayments, other receivables and FERTFRIE  H A WG IE & EAth
other assets BiE 22 120,765 173,457
Contract assets BREE 23 1,649,274 2,074,910
Total non-current assets FRBEERE 12,899,387 12,771,872
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories T8 17,077 14,834
Contract assets BHEE 23 323,761 222,337
Financial receivables 5 R FE UG I8 19 1,878,059 1,692,798
Trade and bills receivables B 5 W EIE K RN EE 21 1,776,560 1,527,023
Prepayments, other receivables and TERTFRIE  H b REWCRRIE R EAth
other assets BiE 22 734,365 617,705
Pledged deposits HIRF K 25 333,870 215,550
Cash and cash equivalents NENREEEY 25 289,898 430,262
Other current financial assets HiheshemEE 24 28,431 153,449
Total current assets MENEEBE 5,382,021 4,873,958
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Trade and bills payables E 5 RN FUE M ENEE 26 2,056,753 2,058,172
Other payables and accruals H At e FIE R EETE A 27 247,192 217,116
Deferred income FEIEUTA 7,027 1,260
Interest-bearing bank and other ETERITREAMER
borrowings 28 3,197,997 1,934,372
Corporate bonds NEES - 327,262
Tax payable FERH B8 58,491 41,955
Total current liabilities mEBEERE 5,567,460 4,580,137
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)  RBIEE (&E)FHE (185,439) 293,821
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EERERABAMR
LIABILITIES 12,713,948 13,065,693
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e bR R

31 December 2021 —ZE=-—F+-A=+—H

2021 2020
—E--fF C—T-THF
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000
B =E ARETR ARETT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEME
Trade payables E SN FIE 26 62 1,756
Interest-bearing bank and other FHEERTT R A M AR
borrowings 28 6,271,742 6,754,171
Corporate bonds NEESH = 256,985
Deferred income PEIEY A 1,930 1,260
Other payables and accruals HEtEMRIENEAER 27 30,991 23,063
Deferred tax liabilities EIERIEEE 20 1,001,602 910,260
Total non-current liabilities BB B 7,306,327 7,947,495
Net assets BEFE 5,407,621 5,118,198
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners of [SYNCIE 2PN Sy £
the parent
Share capital [N 29 17,125 17,125
Reserves EE 30 5,252,881 4,901,605
5,270,006 4,918,730
Non-controlling interests FEIE PR RE RS 137,615 199,468
Total equity M EEE 5,407,621 5,118,198
Li Zhong Duan Jerry Linnan
Z 22N
Director Director
EF EF

BERFRRERAR/ T —FERSE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 December 2021 EHE—ZT-_—F+_A=+—HIFE
Attributable to owners of the parent
BATHE AR
Fair value
reserve of
financial
assets at
fair value
Share  through other Non-
Issued Share Merger Special option  comprehensive Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve income profits Total interests equity
RAYE
FARM
2EEN
RRE SREE FER
BRIRE RiEE Ui HhIRE R AVERE REEA Eh B EnliE
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETn  ARETT  ARETR  ARBTT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR
Asat 1 January 2020 RZZ-2%-F-H 16143 1,643,661 378422 - 65,553 (119,850) 2411173 4,395,102 199,050 4,594,152
Profit for the year FRER - - - - - - 470,488 470488 (231) 470,257
Other comprehensive income FREMIENE
for the year.
Changes i fair value of equity RERRATEFAZMZE
investments designated at fair hatREREATERD
value through other comprehensive  IBHE
income, net of tax - - - - - 21,250 - (21,250 - 21,250
Total comprehensive income for the year £ 92 A 2% - - - - - (21,250) 470488 49238 (231) 49,007
Exercise of share options EBRE 982 73713 - - - - - 74,105 - 74,705
Capital contribution from FRRRETE
non-controlling shareholders - - - - - - - - 1317 1317
Movement in merger reserve of RE-FBEDAANEELRY
investment in an associate - - (315 - - - - (315 - (315
Disposal of a subsidlary HE-FHBAA - - - - - - - - (668) (668)
Transfer to special reserve () EREERIEE« - - - 8207 - - (24.207) - - -
Utilisation of special reserve (c) BEBRIREEQ - - - (24,207) - - 2207 - - -
As at 31 December 2020 s s s s 17125 1,717,384 378,107* - 65,553 (141,100 2,881,661 418,730 199,468 5,118,198
Asat 1 January 2021 RZFZ-§-A-B 17,125 1,717,384 378,107 - 65,553 (141,100) 2,881,661 4,918,730 199,468 5,118,198
Profit for the year ERER - - - - - - 412,752 412,752 5429 418,181
Other comprehensive income EREM2ENE
for the year:
Changes in fair value of equity RRARATEFAZM2E
investments designated at fair YatREREATERS
value through other comprehensive 7B 8
income, net of tax - - - - - (76,500) - (76,500) - (76,500)
Total comprehensive income for the yearF N2 M4 - - - - - (76,500) 412,752 336,252 5429 341,681
Capital contribution from FRRRETE
non-controlling shareholders - - 121 - - - - 121 1,552 1,673
Acquisition of non-controlling FERERREAZNER
equity holders (2) - - 14,903 - - - - 14,903 (58,576) (43,673)
Disposal of subsidiaries (b) HERBAR (D) - - - - - - - - 927 927
Dividends paid to non-controlling ~ FA—#FEARBER L[ 2RE
shareholders - - - - - - - - (11,185) (11,185)
Transfer to special reserve (¢) EREEIRE - - - 14912 - - (14912) - - -
Utlisation of special eserve (¢ PREIREQ - - - (14912) - = 14,912 > > =
As at 31 December 2021 RZE--%+-A=1-H 17125 1,717,384+ 393,131* -+ 65,553* (217,600 3,294,413+ 5,270,006 137,615 5,407,621
These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of RMB5,252,881,000 (31 * ZEREERBIES B
December 2020: RMB4,901,605,000) in the consolidated statement of financial 5,252,881,000 0 (—Z T F 1+ —
position. # 4,901,605,000 7T ) KO AR & 6 1 o
Notes: et
(a) In 2021, non-controlling interests were derecognised from the acquisition of 30% (a) R —F - el W B R KEE
interests in Xinzheng Xinkang Water Co., Ltd., and 30% interests in Zhengzhou FR X 7] 30% 42 7 N2 BB M 37 R MK 15 B BR A 5 30% 18
Xinzhongzhou Water Co., Ltd. AR R
(b) In 2021, Chongqing Kangda Environmental Protection Industry (Group) Co., Ltd., an (b)) RZZT=—F ARFHEZENBAREERE
indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, disposed of its entire 90% RREX(EE)ARANEEEN BT KEERER
interests in Xishui Kangda Environmental Treatment Co., Ltd., and 80% interests in BHERABMNE 0% LN FIEILTINE L
Pingdingshan Rulan New Energy Co., Ltd., which resulted in recognition of non- JRAERATIH80% I - BMERIFIERERAR
controlling interests of RMB927,000. #927,000 7T °
() From 14 February 2012, the Group provided for and utilised the safety production () B-ZT——F_A+WUHE AEERBEPEAR
expense fund according to the Circular on Printing and Distributing the HMEMHBREARL 2 EEEEERERBMT
Management Measures on the Enterprises Production Safety Expense of Enterprises (EREBE<PELT2AEEBRDAEAEEMN
Appropriation and Utilisation (2012 No.16) issued by the Ministry of Finance and the JE>EVRAD (201211657 stiefME AL 2 A£EE A
State Administration of Work Safety of the People’s Republic of China. S o
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

MEREIMNER

Year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE—_ZE-—F+-_A=+—HItFE

2021 2020
—B--F C—E-FF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
N AR¥ TR AR®KTT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHIBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax MRELADRF 550,245 607,539
Adjustments for: AR TIEIA
Finance costs BB AR 7 565,688 561,781
Foreign exchange differences, net IMNEZRE - JFRE 6 (7,250) (5,557)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEN B AR EIE 31 4,530 708
Share of profits and losses of SEBE AR REEREER
associates and joint ventures 2,420 7,449
Bank interest income RITHBULA 5 (2,557) (4,665)
Interest income from loans to M =7 ERF BHA
third parties 5 (22,869) (18,099)
Interest income from loans to a M—REETEER
joint venture K F A 5 (700) (820)
Investment income from other EfngemEEnRERA
current financial assets 5 (8,508) (26,246)
Covid-19-related rent concessions RE M AR 2019 FH AT
from lessors MRS ABENHSESR 13 = 89
Depreciation of property, W% - B REETE
plant and equipment 6,12 6,814 10,471
Depreciation of investment properties EMENE 6 876 933
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 6,13 283 1,932
Amortisation of service concession MILEE — B SRy
intangible assets 6,17 63,925 57,870
Amortisation of other intangible assets H 8 A g 6 385 501
Gains on disposal of service concession  HEEFEE — I ELHEN
intangible assets, net W HE 6 (694) -
Loss on disposal of items of property, LEYHE  BEREREEEDN
plant and equipment 518 6 478 1"
Impairment of goodwill R E 6 1,894 -
Impairment of financial receivables © B EYGRIRRE 6,19 452 1,801
Impairment of contract assets AHEERE 6,2 962 403
Impairment of prepayments, other TERTFRIE  HoAth WKk IE Je Bt
receivables and other assets BERE 6,22 17,295 7,875
Impairment of trade receivables B Z W IERE 6,21 26,404 22,459
Loss for debt restructuring B EHAEE 2,408 -
1,202,481 1,226,257
Increase in inventories FEEh (2,330) (1,304)
Increase in financial receivables <& Bl e WOk IE S N (971,881) (850,523)
Decrease/(increase) in contract assets BHNEERL, /() 317,072 (190,705)
Increase in trade and bills receivables B 5 e W FTE K e W ZE RN (284,481) (188,377)
Decrease in prepayments, other TERTFRIE  E At R IE & EAth
receivables and other assets BERD 17,382 11,251
Increase in trade and bills payables B 5 EF0E M ER E N 16,416 256,162
Increase/(decrease) in other payables H b e~ 08 L FEEH B A
and accruals a1, O ) 34,248 9,574)
Decrease in contract liabilities AHBERD - 8,001
Increase in deferred income IEAE U AIE N 14,365 2,520
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

MEREIMNER

Year ended 31 December 2021 #Z_—_ZE_-_—F+_A=1+—HILtFE

2021 2020
—B--F C—E-FF
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
(ks ARETR ARETET
Cash generated from operations KREFTEIE S 343,272 263,708
Interest received B U FI 8 4,693 3,141
Income taxes paid [ iREYi (27,800) (23123)
Net cash flows from operating activities & EEMSIR T R=/F5 320,165 243,726
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ;&ﬁféﬁﬁﬁ%aﬁ?%
ACTIVITIES
Purchase of items of property, BEYE  WENMXEER
plant and equipment 12 (1,059) (1,247)
Additions to intangible assets NEEWEE (148,404) (226,096)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEWE - BERREE
property, plant and equipment 15 B PS8 447 831
Decrease in other current financial assets Eﬁﬂmﬁjﬁmﬁﬁﬁf_ﬁd‘ 133,526 623,621
Acquisition of subsidiaries, WIEN B AR - HIBRFTESRS
net of cash acquired - (63,743)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEKBA 31 13,531 847
Additions to investments in associates B R BB B 1N (1,804) (691)
Increase in pledged deposits EARTEFAE N (118,320) (52,383)
Interest received from third parties BE=FHE - 26,035
Decrease in loans due from a third party B —RZE=7TEFURLD - 30,000
Net cash flows (used in)/from investing EESR(A),/ BREnE %8
activities (122,083) 337,174
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEIHFERSTE
ACTIVITIES
Increase of interest-bearing bank and ST BEERIT M HE b S I N
other borrowings 4,410,532 4,974,455
Repayment of interest-bearing bank and  {BiE5T BIR1T M EMER
other borrowings (3,607,982) (3,974,191)
Proceeds from issue of corporate BTN A RMESTSKIE
bond payable 300,000 -
Interest paid AT FLE (553,670) (537,337)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests U B8 JF1Z i i 25 (10,000) -
Repayment of corporate bonds EBEARES (876,016) (915,994)
Principal portion of lease payments HENZKHAREE (243) (2,403)
Proceeds from exercise of share options ~ 17{& E%Hx%ﬁﬁ@?ﬁ( - 74,705
Dividends paid to a non-controlling A FEE Hxﬂxﬁﬁﬁz%ﬁ g
shareholder (498) -
Net cash flows used in financing activities BI& /ZEFTAREREF5A (337,877) (380,765)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN RERBREEEWEM (BD)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FE (139,795) 200,135
Cash and cash equivalents at FHReRBLEZEY
beginning of year 430,262 225,672
Effect of foreign exchange rate R F e B F
changes, net (569) 4,455
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT &£ XBSRBLSZEY
END OF YEAR 25 289,898 430,262
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Kangda International Environmental Company Limited (the
“Company"”) was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman Islands. The registered address of
the Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The Company’s
shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 4 July 2014.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are engaged in the design, construction, operation
and maintenance of waste water treatment plants (the "WTPs"),
reclaimed water treatment plants (the "RWTPs"), water
distribution plants (the "WDPs"), sludge treatment plants (the
"STPs”) and other municipal infrastructure in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC", or Mainland China, which excludes
for the purpose of this report, the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region of the PRC or Hong Kong, the Macau
Special Administrative Region of the PRC or Macau, and Taiwan).

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the “Directors”),
the Company has no controlling shareholders.

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are as
follows:

1.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE I EwAR M EE

31 December 2021

AR R EEER
RERBIRRARAR(ARE )R
EHEAMKLAERRERAR - &
N &) 7 ffft 3% =5 R #h 1E & Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands ° 7%
NEIBRDR T —NFLANBERE
BERZMER AR ([BRAT]) £k E
7 o

ARBA/—RREZRATF - HMBE L
AIEPEARAMBE(HE] FBERA
o MABEMS - TEBTEELER
AITHESNEL - FEDRPIRBITTHRE
SORFIN B E) EFRA - 2 2ER
HESKEEB(D5KEER]) - BE
KEEBEBm(TBEXKEER]D - HKEK
(MK R 1) ~ 05 e B 32 iR (105 ke 12
A1) Ko E At T R BT B B

ARRNEE(EENRE AAFLE
PRRRARER o

EENMBEARINER
BARRBIEENBARMNF BRI
T

Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/ Percentage of
registration registered equity attributable
Company name and operation share capital to the Company Principal activities
NREH AL, BRAEE/
BRREXDLY AftRE  AAFAREREESN FEXE
Direct Indirect
B F3
Kangda Environmental The BVI US$1 100 - Investment holding
Protection Investment Limited company
(RERRREBRLA)
RERRREBRAT RBRAHS 1% 100 - REERRA
Kangda Investment (Hong Kong) Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
Company Limited company
(FERE (BR)BRAA)
FERE (BR)BRAA BB 1T - 100 RERBEAT]

BEBEBRRRERRAR/ 2 —FEHE 83



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M EE

31 December 2021 —ZE=-—F+-A=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are as

AAIREBER @)

FRNBLTNER (@)
BRARREEMNERANFEEHIIM

84

KANGDA INTERNATIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL COMPANY LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2021

\

follows: (Continued) T (&)
Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/ Percentage of
registration registered equity attributable
Company name and operation share capital to the Company Principal activities
NAEH AR BRITEE/
BRRERBY dfRE  AAIEGREESN TERE
Direct Indirect
E& GE3
Kangyu Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/ US$200,000,000 - 100 Investment activities in
(BaREBRLNR) " Mainland China Mainland China
FAREARARF" E/RER 200,000,000% 7 - 100 RepEMLHEREED
Chongging Kangda Environmental PRC/ RMB1,876,019,000 - 100 Investment in WTPs
Protection Industry (Group) Mainland China and construction of
Co., Ltd. ("Chongqing Kangda”) municipal infrastructure
(EERERRES (RE)BRAR)* in Mainland China
EERERRESX e/ RER ARE - 100 EFEIRMRE
(RE)ARRA(EREE]) 1,876,019,000 7T SKERB R
R HARR
Kangda Environmental PRC/ RMB80,000,000 - 100 Construction of WTPs
Protection Water Co., Ltd. Mainland China and provision of WTP
(RERRKBERAR) operation services
in Mainland China
RERRKEARAF* E/REN ARE - 100 EREIRMERSTKEERR
80,000,0007C RN R e
Kangda Environmental Protection PRC/ RMB63,000,000 - 100 Construction of WTPs
(Shanggjiu) Water Co., Ltd. Mainland China and provision of WTP
(REBRR(BE)KBERAR) operation services
in Mainland China
FERR(BL)KBERAR* i/ hE A ARE - 100 EREIREERTKERRR
63,000,000 7C RN R e
Kangda Environmental Protection PRC/ RMB23,000,000 - 100 Provision of WTP
(Suzhou) Water Co., Ltd. Mainland China operation services
(RERR(BN)KBERAR) in Mainland China
FERR(BM)KBBERAR* E/RER ARE - 100 EFERREHR
23,000,000 SKEEMEE RS
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are as

PrEIREBER @)
EEKMBARNER (8)

BERAARREZENBARMNFIEEIIWM

follows: (Continued) T (&)
Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/ Percentage of
registration registered equity attributable
Company name and operation share capital to the Company Principal activities
NAER AR BRITEE/
BRREXBH dfRE  AAIEGREESN TEXE
Direct Indirect
B E3
Guangrao Kangda Environmental PRC/ RMB8,320,000 - 100 Construction of WTPs
Protection Water Co., Ltd. Mainland China and provision of WTP
(BERERRKEBRAR) * operation services
in Mainland China
BERERRKEERAR i/ hE A ARE - 100 EREIREERTKEERR
8,320,0007C A KEERE LR
Harbin Kangda Environmental PRC/ RMB30,000,000 - 100 Construction of WTPs
Protection Investment Co., Ltd. Mainland China and provision of WTP
(BRERERRIEGRAR) operation services
in Mainland China
RERRERRREFRAA i/ hEN ARE - 100 ERERERFKEER R
30,000,0007C RN BT e
Linying Kangda Environmental PRC/ RMB6,000,000 - 100 Provision of WTP
Protection Water Co., Ltd. Mainland China operation services in
(BB RERRKEBRAR) * Mainland China
BRRERRKEERDA i/ hEN ARE - 100 EFERREHR
6,000,0007C BKEEREE RS
Weifang Kangda Environmental PRC/ RMB94,180,000 - 100 Construction of WTPs
Protection Water Co., Ltd. Mainland China and provision of WTP
(T RERRKEERAR) operation services
in Mainland China
BHRERRKBERA R i/ ER ARE - 100 7EREIAMERTKERER R
94,180,000 7C RS KRR R 2 RS
Kangda Environmental Protection PRC/ RMB17,000,000 - 100 Construction of WTPs
(Gaomi) Sewage Treatment Co., Ltd. Mainland China and provision of WTP
(REBR(RH)TKERBRAR) * operation services
in Mainland China
FERR(BE)TKREAERAR E/RER ARE - 100 FEREIAMERTKEER R
17,000,0007C BRta kR B R 2 RS

BEBEBRRRERRAR/ 2 —FEHE
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. REAIRKEEER®
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) EBRAMBATINER (&)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are as EBEAATETENBARINSEY W
follows: (Continued) T (&)
Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/ Percentage of
registration registered equity attributable
Company name and operation share capital to the Company Principal activities
NAER AR BRITEE/
BRREELH dfRE  AAIEGREESN TEXE
Direct Indirect
B GF:
Kangda Environmental Protection (Gaomi) ~ PRC/ RMB8,500,000 - 100 Provision of WTP
Fengcheng Sewage Treatment Co., Ltd. Mainland China operation services
(RERR(R%) BREE 5K in Mainland China
BEBRARA)
RERR(B%)BRAR E/REN ARE - 100 FERER R
AKERAR LA 8,500,000 DKERRE R
Rushan Kangda Water Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB24,000,000 - 100 Construction of WTPs
(LEEKEERAT)* Mainland China and provision of WTP
operation services
in Mainland China
AWFERBERAR FE/RERM AE® - 100 7R EIAMERTKEIER R
24,000,000 7C BR{to KRR R & R
Shangaiu Kangda Sewage PRC/ RMB20,250,000 - 100 Construction of WTPs
Treatment Co., Ltd. Mainland China and provision of WTP
(BEREKREERAR) operation services
in Mainland China
BERETKREARAR" R/ HER ARE - 100 FEREIAMERTKEER R
20,250,0007C REUTKEERES RS
Haiyang Xingcun Kangda Water Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB19,490,000 - 100 Construction of WTPs
(BBITREEKEERAR) Mainland China and provision of WTP
operation services
in Mainland China
B TREEKBERAR R/ B ARE - 100 EREIRMRRTKERER
19,490,000 7T RATKREREZ R
Shanxian Kangda Environmental PRC/ RMB26,500,000 - 100 Construction of WTPs
Protection Water Co., Ltd. Mainland China and provision of WTP
(BERERRKBERAR) operation services
in Mainland China
BERERRKBERA R RE/HER AR® - 100 FEREAMERSKEERR
26,500,000 RETKREREE RS
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mE I EwAR M EE
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. REAIREEER®

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are as

follows: (Continued)

FRNBLTNER (@)
BRARREEMNERAFEEHIIM
™ (&)

Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/ Percentage of
registration registered equity attributable
Company name and operation share capital to the Company Principal activities
NAER AR BRITEE/
BRRERBH dfRE  AAIEGEREESNH TEXE
Direct Indirect
E& E:3
Kangda (Dongying) Environmental PRC/ RMB 163,263,000 - 100 Construction of WTPs
Protection Water Co., Ltd. Mainland China and provision of WTP
(e (R BRBKBERAR) * operation services
in Mainland China
FE(RE) RS HE/REN ARE - 100 FEAREAMERTKEER R
BRAR* 163,263,000 7C Rtk R ERE 2 RIS
Beijing Chang Sheng Si Yuan PRC/ RMB 150,000,000 - 100 Investment, management
Environmental Protection Mainland China of environmental projects
Technology Co., Ltd. and public infrastructure
(EREREBRERBEERAG) projects in Mainland
China
IRREBREREZERAF E/REN AR® - 100 EREAMRE - BERR
150,000,000 7C RERRHERRIEER
Yucheng Dongjiao Chengjian PRC/ RMB10,000,000 - 100 Construction of WTPs
Sewage Treatment Co., Ltd. Mainland China and provision of WTP
(BRRAIRRKERBRAR) operation services
in Mainland China
BRESHESKEEERAR* E/RER ARE - 100 7EREIAMERTKEERR
10,000,000 RETKEERES R
Puyang Kangda Environmental PRC/ RMB50,000,000 - 100 Construction of WTPs
Protection Water Co., Ltd. Mainland China and provision of WTP
(BBEERRKBERAR)* operation services
in Mainland China
BHRERRKBAERAR e/ RER ARE - 100 EREIRMRRTKERER
50,000,000 7C REKEERES RS

BEBEBRRRERRAR/ 2 —FEHE
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are as

AAIREBER @)

FRNBLTNER (@)
BRARREEMNERANFEEHIIM
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follows: (Continued) T (&)
Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/ Percentage of
registration registered equity attributable
Company name and operation share capital to the Company Principal activities
ARER B3N BRTER/
BRRERBH dfRE  AAFEGEREESN TEXE
Direct Indirect
B GF:
Liangshan Kangda Water Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB1,000,000 - 100 Construction of WTPs
(RUEEABERDT)* Mainland China and provision of WTP
operation services
in Mainland China
RIIFREKBEERAR E/REN ARE - 100 EREIREERTKEERR
1,000,000 72 BN R e
Jining City Xinkangda PRC/ RMB64,000,000 - 100 Construction of WTPs
Sewage Treatment Co., Ltd. Mainland China and provision of WTP
(BEMEREKBEERAR) operation services
in Mainland China
BENEREKEAR, i/ hE R ARE - 100 ERERERRTKEER R
64,000,000 7 RN R e
Shen County Kangda Sewage PRC/ RMB 121,000,000 - 100 Construction of WTPs
Treatment Co., Ltd. Mainland China and provision of WTP
(ERREKBERAR) operation services
in Mainland China
FEREKBERAR i/ ERL ARE - 100 FEAREI AR TKERIER Rk
121,000,0007C RS KRR R 2 RS
Kangda Environmental Protection PRC/ RMB33,000,000 - 100 Construction of WTPs
(Gaomi) Water Co., Ltd. Mainland China and provision of WTP
(REBR(RE)KBERAR) operation services
in Mainland China
FERR(BR)KBAER. e/ RER ARE - 100 FEREIAME R SKEER R
33,000,000 RETKERRES RS
Zhengzhou Xinzhongzhou Water Co., Ltd. ~ PRC/ RMB100,300,000 - 100 Provision of WTP
(BRI KBERAR)* Mainland China operation services
in Mainland China
B KBRRAT e/ RER ARE - 100 BRI E 5K ER
100,300,0007T E2RH
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mE I EwAR M EE
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. REAIREEER®

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are as

follows: (Continued)

FRNBLTNER (@)
BRARREEMNERAFEEHIIM
™ (&)

Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/ Percentage of
registration registered equity attributable
Company name and operation share capital to the Company Principal activities
NAEH AR BRITEE/
BRRERBH dfRE  AAFEGEREESN TEXE
Direct Indirect
B E3
Xuzhou Kangda Environmental PRC/ RMB20,000,000 - 100 Construction of WTPs
Protection Water Co., Ltd. Mainland China and provision of WTP
(BMEERRKEBRAR) * operation services
in Mainland China
RMEERRKBAR A RE/HRERY  AR%20,000,0007T - 100 EREIREERTKEERR
RETKREREE R
Tianjin Kangda Environmental PRC/ RMB68,077,000 - 100 Construction of WTPs
Protection Water Co., Ltd. Mainland China and provision of WTP
(RERERRKEBRAR) * operation services
in Mainland China
RERERRABERAF" hE/REAE ARB68077,0007 - 100 EPEAERRTKEERRK
REUTKEERES RE
Chongging Fulunde Technology Co., Ltd. ~ PRC/ RMB20,000,000 - 100 Development and sale
(EEARERRARAF) Mainland China of computer software
in Mainland China
ERARENRARAR hE/PEAE  AR%200000007T - 100 EPEREETE
RHREREE
Suzhou Kangda Environmental PRC/ RMB36,000,000 - 100 Provision of WTP
Protection Sewage Treatment Co., Ltd. Mainland China operation services
(BEMEERRTKERBRAR) in Mainland China
BNEERFSKREBRAF WmE/mERN AR 360000007 - 100 EREIRMRESKEER
B R
Gaomi Kangda Lvyi Sludge PRC/ RMB3,000,000 - 100 Construction and provision
Treatment Co., Ltd. Mainland China of STP operation services
(RREEFEREREERAR) in Mainland China
RERERERREARA hE/REAE ARE3000,0007 - 100 ERERBERSERERR

RESEREEL RS

BEBEBRRRERRAR/ 2 —FEHE
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. REAIREEER®)

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are as

FRNBLTNER (@)
BRARREEMNERANFEEHIIM

follows: (Continued) T (&)
Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/ Percentage of
registration registered equity attributable
Company name and operation share capital to the Company Principal activities
NAEH AR BRITEE/
BRRERBH dfRE  AAFEGEREESN TEXE
Direct Indirect
B E3
Yunan Kangda Liangke PRC/ RMB62,000,000 - 80 Construction, operation
Environment Treatment Co., Ltd. Mainland China and maintenance of WTPs
(BrEERRRRARERAR) and other environmental
protection projects in
Mainland China
PaRESRRARERAR" FE/RERE  AR¥62,0000007T - 80 EFEMER ELRE
FARRER AR
Weihai Kangda Ecological Environment PRC/ RMB100,000,000 - 88 Construction, operation
Treatment Co., Ltd. (“"Weihai Kangda") Mainland China and maintenance of
(RBREE RS RBERAR) WTPs, STPs, pipe
networks and other
municipal infrastructure
in Mainland China
FEREEEREGAE B/ RERY AR 1000000007 - 88 AMEINMRER  BEREE
BRAR([BERE])* KRR  RRRIER -
ERREMTRERRE
Pingdingshan City Bay Water Treatment PRC/ RMB50,000,000 - 80 Construction of WTPs
Co., Ltd. (“Pingdingshan City Bay") Mainland China and provision of WTP
(FIEWMmEEKEBRAR) * operation services
in Mainland China
FRILTEEKEERAR BB/ HRERY  AR¥50,000,0007T - 80 ETERBERTKEERR
(IFIEWmEE]) RETKEERES R
Shenzhen Kangyue Environmental PRC/ RMB50,000,000 - 100 Development and sale
Protection Technology Co., Ltd. Mainland China of WTP equipment
(RYRERRBBEBRAE) in Mainland China
A RERRRIAR A E/RERE  ARES50,000,0007 - 100 EREIRMHEREERKE
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mE I EwAR M EE

31 December 2021 —ZE=-—F+-A=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are as

ARIREBER @)

FRNBLTNER (@)
BRARREEMNERAFEEHIIM

follows: (Continued) T (&)
Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/ Percentage of
registration registered equity attributable
Company name and operation share capital to the Company Principal activities
NAEH AR BRITEE/
BRRERBH dfRE  AAFEGEREESN TEXE
Direct Indirect
B E3
Dongping Kangda Water Co., Ltd. PRC/ US$5,200,000 - 100 Construction of WTPs
(REFREAKBERAR) Mainland China and provision of WTP
operation services
in Mainland China
RYERABBERAF R/ REN 5,200,000 7C - 100 EPERBERSKEERR
RETKREREE R
Chongging Kangda Lvyi PRC/ RMB50,000,000 - 100 Investment in energy
Energy Investment Co., Ltd. Mainland China industry and provision of
(EERESERREERAR) WTP operation services
in Mainland China
ERRERERRRABRAR" E/hERE  ARE50,0000007 - 100 EPERBRELRITER
REUTKEERES RE
Shanggiu Kangda Water PRC/ RMB10,000,000 - 100 Construction of WTPs
Treatment Co., Ltd. Mainland China and provision of WTP
(BEREKEEERAF)* operation services
in Mainland China
BEREKRRERAA" hE/mEA  ARE10,000,0007T - 100 EREIAMERTKERER
RETKEERES R
Chongging Kangda Zhishang PRC/ RMB70,000,000 - 100 Construction of WTPs
Environmental Protection Industry Mainland China and provision of WTP
Co., Ltd. operation services
(EEREEHBREZRRAR) in Mainland China
EEREEHRREFBRAA B/ hERE  ARHK70,0000007 - 100 EFRERBERTKEERR
RETKEERES R
Xinzheng Kangda Water Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB1,000,000 - 100 Construction of WTPs
(FBREKBERAT) Mainland China and provision of WTP
operation services
in Mainland China
HEREKHERAA* E/RER AB#1,000,0007T - 100 FEREMERRSTKEERR

RETKRERESRG

BEBEBRRRERRAR/ 2 —FEHE
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are as

AAIREBER @)

FRNBLTNER (@)
BRARREEMNERANFEEHIIM
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follows: (Continued) T (&)
Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/ Percentage of
registration registered equity attributable
Company name and operation share capital to the Company Principal activities
NAEH AR BRITEE/
BRRERBH dfRE  AAFEGEREESN TEXE
Direct Indirect
B E3
Qishan County Dayuan Sewage PRC/ RMB3,000,000 - 100 Construction of WTPs
Treatment Co., Ltd. Mainland China and provision of WTP
(BIERRSKEEREREFAR) operation services
in Mainland China
UL YN RN BEY ] i/ hEA KB 3,000,000 7T - 100 EREIREERTKEERR
RERA* RETKEERES R
Weifang Shuangjie Water Purification PRC/ RMB8,000,000 - 100 Sale of water purifying
Material Co., Ltd. (“Weifang Shuangjie”) ~ Mainland China materials in Mainland
(O ERTKMHERAR) China
BHEEERAMH e/ PR AR 8,000,0007T - 100 7EF EIR s34 6 F kTRt
BRAR (T EHE])
Dong'e County Kangda Sewage PRC/ RMB110,000,000 - 100 Construction of WTPs
Treatment Co., Ltd. Mainland China and provision of WTP
(R BREKBERLDR) operation services
in Mainland China
ROSREAHARAR E/hERE  ARE110,000,0007T - 100 EFERRRSKEERR
REUTKEERES RE
Liaocheng Jiaming Kangda PRC/ RMB70,000,000 - 100 Construction of WTPs
Sewage Treatment Co., Ltd. Mainland China and provision of WTP
(IR ERRETKRERRAR) operation services
in Mainland China
WP EREE KRR ARAR hE/PEAE  AR%700000007T - 100 EFBERBERTKEERR
RETKEERES R
Linging City Kangda Sewage PRC/ RMB75,000,000 - 100 Construction of WTPs
Treatment Co., Ltd. Mainland China and provision of WTP
(REmEETKEEARAR) operation services
in Mainland China
BETREKERARLA E/hERE  ARHK750000007 - 100 EFRERBERTKEERR

RETKRERER KRB
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mE I EwAR M EE
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are as

ARIREBER @)

FRNBLTNER (@)
BRARREEMNERAFEEHIIM

BRAF

follows: (Continued) T (&)
Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/ Percentage of
registration registered equity attributable
Company name and operation share capital to the Company Principal activities
NAER AR BRITEE/
BRRERBH dfRE  AAIEGEREESNH TEXE
Direct Indirect
E& E:3
Qitaihe Kangda Water Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB90,000,000 - 100 Construction and
(tRMREKBEREERR) Mainland China provision of WTP and
RWTP operation services
and reclaimed water
treatment services
in Mainland China
teABEKEERRELA* E/HERE  ARH90,0000007 - 100 ErERERRSKEERR
BEKRERTREER R
BRIBRBAKEERSE
Xinzheng Xinkang Water Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB60,000,000 - 100 Construction of WTPs
(FEBHFRABERAT)* Mainland China and provision of WTP
operation services
in Mainland China
HEHBEAHERAA E/hERE  ARHK0,0000007 - 100 FEPEMERRSTKEERR
RETKERRES R
Kangda Environmental Protection PRC/ RMB15,000,000 - 100 Construction of WTPs
(Linyi) Water Co., Ltd. Mainland China and provision of WTP
(BERR (BT KBBRAR) operation services
in Mainland China
FERR (BN KBARA A E/ERE AR 15000,0007T - 100 EREREERSTKEERR
RETKERRES R
Fengxian Kangda Environmental Protection  PRC/ RMB20,000,000 - 100 Construction of WTPs
the second Sewage treatment Co., Ltd. Mainland China and provision of WTP
(BERERRE TKREBRAR) * operation services
in Mainland China
LERERRE DITKRE RE/HERY  AR%20,000,0007T - 100 EREIREERSTKERRR

RETKRERER RS

BEBEBRRRERRAR/ 2 —FEHE
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are as

AAIREBER @)

FRNBLTNER (@)
BRARREEMNERANFEEHIIM

follows: (Continued) T (&)
Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/ Percentage of
registration registered equity attributable
Company name and operation share capital to the Company Principal activities
NAEH AR BRITEE/
BRREFLH dfRE  AAFEGEREESN TEXE
Direct Indirect
B GF:

Jining Kangda Environmental PRC/ RMB25,000,000 - 100 Construction of WTPs
Protection Water Co., Ltd. Mainland China and provision of WTP
(RERERRABERAT) operation senices

in Mainland China
BERERRKBARLD E/RERE  ARE250000007 - 100 ERERBERSKEERR
RETKREREE R

Haiyang Kangda Environmental PRC/ RMB6,000,000 - 100 Construction of WTPs
Protection Water Co., Ltd. Mainland China and provision of WTP
(BREERRKGEBRAT) * operation services

in Mainland China
BERERRKBARAT hE/hER AR 6,000,000 7T - 100 EFBERERRTKEERR
RASKERRE S R

Wendeng Kangda Environmental PRC/ RMB10,000,000 - 100 Construction of WTPs
Protection Water Co., Ltd. Mainland China and provision of WTP
(XERERRKBERAR) operation services

in Mainland China
XERERRKBARAR hE/PEAE  AR%100000007T - 100 EERMRRSTKEERR
RESTKEERE S 7%

Weifang Binhai Kangda Environmental PRC/ RMB10,500,000 - 100 Construction of WTPs
Protection Water Co., Ltd. Mainland China and provision of WTP
(B BERERRKBERAR) operation services

in Mainland China
BN ERERRKBARAF RE/HERE  AK10,500,0007 - 100 EREIRMRRTKERER
RETKEERES R

Kangda Environmental Protection (Hebi) PRC/ RMB5,500,000 - 100 Construction of WTPs
Water Treatment Co., Ltd. (“Hebi Kangda") Mainland China and provision of WTP
(RERR(BE)KERERRA)* operation services

in Mainland China
E/hERE  ARHK55000007 - 100 ZEPENBERSTKEERR

FERR(BE)KREARAR
(MEemEl)~
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are as

ARIREBER @)

FRNBLTNER (@)
BRARREEMNERAFEEHIIM

follows: (Continued)

™ (&)

Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/ Percentage of
registration registered equity attributable
Company name and operation share capital to the Company Principal activities
NAER AR BRITEE/
BRREXLH dfRE  AAIEGEREESNH TEXE
Direct Indirect
E& F:

Pingdingshan Kangda Environmental PRC/ RMB10,000,000 - 100 Construction of WTPs
Protection Water Co., Ltd. Mainland China and provision of WTP
(FEWLEERRKBEERAR)* operation services

in Mainland China
TRLIEERRKBERLR RE/HRERY  AK%10,000,0007T - 100 FEAREAMERTKEER R
RETKRERES R

Huadian Kangda Environmental PRC/ RMB10,000,000 - 100 Construction of WTPs
Protection Water Co., Ltd. Mainland China and provision of WTP
(BARERRKEBRAR) * operation services

in Mainland China
BERERRIBERDA hE/PEAE AR%100000007T - 100 EFEASERSKEERR
RETKEERE S %

Fengxian Kangda Environmental Protection  PRC/ RMB3,000,000 - 100 Construction of WTPs
the third Sewage Treatment Co., Ltd. Mainland China and provision of WTP
(BRREE=KRRBRAR) operation services

in Mainland China
LEREESITKBRRERARN hE/hER ABRH3,000,0007T - 100 FEPERRRSKEERR
REUTKRERES RS

Suihua Kangda Environmental PRC/ RMB1,000,000 - 100 Construction of WTPs
Protection Water Co., Ltd. Mainland China and provision of WTP
(B RERRKBEBRAR) * operation services

in Mainland China
BFERRKBARAR E/PERD AR 1,000,000 7T - 100 EREREERTKEERR
RESTKEERESRE

Jixi County Chengjian Sewage PRC/ RMB8,000,000 - 100 Construction of WTPs
Treatment Co., Ltd. Mainland China and provision of WTP
(BREH R TKEEARAR)* operation services

in Mainland China
BRENRIKREARAR" E/PER AR 1:8,000,0007T - 100 EFERERRTKEERR

RETKRERERRB
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. REAIREEER®)

96

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are as

FRNBLTNER (@)
BRARREEMNERANFEEHIIM

follows: (Continued) T (&)
Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/ Percentage of
registration registered equity attributable
Company name and operation share capital to the Company Principal activities
NAER AR BRITEE/
BRRERBH dfRE  AAIEGREESN TEXE
Direct Indirect
E& F:

Dacheng Chengjian Environmental PRC/ RMB9,600,000 - 100 Construction of WTPs
Protection Sewage Treatment Co., Ltd. Mainland China and provision of WTP
(ABEHRRRKERBRAF) operation services

in Mainland China
ABERRRRTKREBRAR* E/REN AE 9,600,000 - 100 EREIREERTKEERR
RETKREREE RS

Jiyuan City Yuchuan Chengjian Sewage PRC/ RMB30,000,000 - 100 Construction of WTPs
Treatment Co., Ltd. Mainland China and provision of WTP
(ERTE)IBREKERERAF) operation services

in Mainland China
BRME) IR kEEER AR hE/PEAE  AR%300000007T - 100 EFERRRSKEERY
REUTKEERESRE

Dandong Kangda Environmental PRC/ RMB27,800,000 - 100 Construction of WTPs
Protection Water Co., Ltd. Mainland China and provision of WTP
(NREERRKEERAR) * operation services

in Mainland China
RREERRKBARAR hE/PEAE  AR%278000007T - 100 ERBEREERTKEERR
RETKEERES R
Sanmenxia Kangda Water Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB10,000,000 - 100 Construction of WTPs
(=P KBERAR) Mainland China and provision of WTP
operation services
in Mainland China
=PIk BARAA E/hERE AR 10,0000007 - 100 EREREERTKEERR
RETKEERES RS

Tianjin Kangda Lvyi Sludge PRC/ RMB2,000,000 - 100 Construction of STPs
Treatment Co., Ltd. Mainland China and provision of STP
(RERESGE S RRBARAR) operation services

in Mainland China
RERERBTRERERAR R/ HER AR 2,000,000 7T - 100 ERENERTIERERK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE I EwAR M EE

31 December 2021 —ZE=-—F+-A=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are as

ARIREBER @)

FRNBLTNER (@)
BRARREEMNERAFEEHIIM

follows: (Continued) T (&)
Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/ Percentage of
registration registered equity attributable
Company name and operation share capital to the Company Principal activities
NAER AR BRITEE/
BRRERBH dfRE  AAIEGREESN TEXE
Direct Indirect
E& E3
Jiaoling Kangda Environmental PRC/ RMB56,172,000 - 97 Construction, operation
Governance Co,, Ltd. (“Jiaoling Kangda") ~ Mainland China and maintenance of WTPs
(EBRERFAEARAR) * and other environmental
protection projects
in Mainland China
RERERRARARAF E/RERE  ARH56,1720007 - 97 EPERERS  EEREE
(BzRE])" KRR R A IRRE R
Wenzhou Chuangyuan Water Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB168,000,000 - 100 Construction of WTPs
("Wenzhou Chuangyuan”) Mainland China and provision of WTP
CRMmEIRKBERRE) operation services
in Mainland China
BMTARKEERAR] hE/hEA AR 168,000,0007 - 100 ERERMRRSKEERR
(DRMENR])* RETKEERES RS
Meiling Environmental Technology PRC/ SGD3,780,000 - 100 Construction of WTPs
(Zibo) Co., Ltd. ("Meiling Zibo") Mainland China and provision of WTP
(RBERERR C41) BB AR operation services
in Mainland China
FRBEHEMR OL8) BR AR e/ ER 3,780,000 1% T - 100 EREIRMRRTKERER
(IEREE])" RETKEERES RS
Jining Meiling Sewage Purification Co., Ltd. ~ PRC/ RMB5,000,000 - 100 Construction of WTPs
(BEEEETRECBRAR)* Mainland China and provision of WTP
operation services
in Mainland China
BEXRIKFHLARRA E/RER AR 5,000,000 7T - 100 FEPEMERRSTKEERR

RETKREREZ RS
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. REAIREEER®)

98

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are as

FRNBLTNER (@)
BRARREEMNERANFEEHIIM

follows: (Continued) T (&)
Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/ Percentage of
registration registered equity attributable
Company name and operation share capital to the Company Principal activities
NAER AR BRITEE/
BRRERBH dfRE  AAIEGREESN TEXE
Direct Indirect
E& E3
Qingzhou Meiling Sewage PRC/ RMB5,000,000 - 100 Construction of WTPs
Purification Co., Ltd. Mainland China and provision of WTP
(BMDEE ST BRAR)* operation services
in Mainland China
BMmER S ERAR E/REN AE 85,000,000 70 - 100 EREIREERTKEERR
RETKREREE RS
Sichuan Weiyuan Hefeng PRC/ RMB45,000,000 - 100 Construction of WTPs
Bioengineering Co., Ltd. Mainland China and provision of WTP
(M) FEREENTRERAR) ** operation services
in Mainland China
MmIEEREENTRAR AR WE/mERN AR 450000007 - 100 EREIRMRERTKEERR
REUTKEERESRE
Taiyuan Kangjin Water Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB194,450,000 - 99.44  Construction of WTPs
(RREBKBERAF) Mainland China and provision of WTP
operation services
in Mainland China
AREEKHERAA* TE/REAE ARE1944500007 - 944 FEREANBERSKEZER
RETKEERES R
Weiyuan Kangda Environmental PRC/ RMB38,496,000 - 95 Construction of WTPs
Protection Co., Ltd. Mainland China and provision of WTP
(RBRERRERAR) operation services
in Mainland China
BERERRERAR E/hERE AR 38496,0007 - 95 ERERBRRTKEERR
RETKEERES RS
Shenyang Jinhai Kangda Environmental PRC/ RMB22,000,000 - 95 Construction of WTPs
Protection Water Co., Ltd. Mainland China and provision of WTP
("Shenyang Jinhai") operation services
(BRI RERRKBERAR) in Mainland China
BSERERRKS RE/HERE  AR22,0000007T - 95 EFRERBERTKEERRR

ARAR(ERLE))
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1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are as
follows: (Continued)

# The names of these companies referred to in this report represent
management's best effort in translating the Chinese names of the companies
registered in Mainland China, as no English names have been registered.

Kangyu Investment Co., Ltd. and Meiling Environmental Technology (Zibo)
Co., Ltd. are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under PRC law.

* These companies are registered as limited liability companies under PRC
law.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

1. AEIREERER @

FENBARNER (&)

BERAARREZENBARMNFIEEIIWM

™ (&)

' F A B 3 S AT X RS R 2 XA
W ARERANZEATNEWENEREE

NEFEPXARAE -

. FRRERR AR REREREMROLE)E
RAFRETBAREM AN BEDE -

* ZERADREFREFEIMAEREER

EE

EERALRFSIEAANBELAEES
5B AN 2 A AR P AN T
HEEHH c EFRATIHEMHEL

ANHEEERERERTIE -

BERFRRERAR/ T —FERSE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M EE

31 December 2021

—E-—F+=-R=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs") (which
include all International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards (“IASs"”) and Interpretations)
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for equity investments designed at fair
value through other comprehensive income which have been
measured at fair value. These financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB") and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Going concern

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's current liabilities exceeded
its current assets by approximately RMB185,439,000 (31
December 2020: net current assets: RMB293,821,000). In addition,
the Group has contracted capital commitments of
RMB198,144,000 and commitments in respect of service
concession arrangements of RMB2,442,938,000. Part of such
commitments is expected to be due in the foreseeable future.
The directors of the Company have considered the Group's
available sources of funds as at the date of approval of these
consolidated financial statements, which are as follows:

o Unutilised banking facilities available to the Group that the
directors of the Company are confident of them being able
to be continuously renewed upon their respective
expirations in the foreseeable future based on the Group's
past experience and good credit standing;

o Unutilised facilities to issue domestic short-term notes by
the Group as approved by the relevant PRC government
authorities;

° Cash inflows arising from the Group's activities subsequent
to 31 December 2021; and

. Other available sources of financing from banks, financial
institutions and other institutions given the Group's credit
history.

2.1 REEE

ZEPHHRRORBER S LERIES
(ARG EAEES ) BHNEK
B R ([BBRM B HREER ) (8
ERABRMBHREER  BHRSE
Al (TEIFR g 2R ) ki) - BE AR
ST RAIREE R RERBIH 35 FE AR E R
8o

M mRORELRANEGIRE - K
EREAFER AR 2 Y s /R

BRERI - ETVRAFEE - ZFH
BHREAARE(ARE] 25 - Ak
BRI HEBEONBERERD
B TRLER -
BEgE

R-_ZE-_—F+-_A=1+—H A£EH
MRBBEEBEBERBEENARKE
185,4390007( — T = F F + = R
—t+—H: RBHEEFE: AR
293,821,0007T) ° AN - REBEFTHE AR
AAE A AR 198,144,000 7T + I 5t AR
5 5T M = HE AR A R 5 2,442,938,000
TL o TRETE A GEE T T8 RS R B A o
ARRAESRABEZERAMBHRE
ZHEZ BIERSBERFAMNESKIRER
—|T :

AEBEN R HRITHE - AR
AEERE  ERNAKENEER
BERFERMR - R AR
BRARITRVE % B B HIR A T
B

o AREEET BEIERBUT EFIRL R
RABRITEAE AR RN KRB AR
B

s ARERZFTZ-—FF+ZA=1—
AZEXBELENRERA K

o  AKERBEMREAKRT 2
BEEMEMRBERNRERE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE I EwAR M EE

31 December 2021 —ZE=-—F+-A=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2.1 REEE (&)

Going concern (Continued)

In light of the available funding as mentioned above, and after
taking into account the operating performance of the Group and
cash flow projection prepared by the directors of the Company.
The directors of the Company are confident that the Group will
have sufficient working capital to meet with its financial
obligations and operation requirements in the foreseeable future
of at least up to 31 December 2022. Hence the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that it is appropriate to prepare
these consolidated financial statements under the going concern
basis.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has

power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

BERE (&)

ENLilnAES UWERBAEENLK
ERANANFEERENBEESRETE
Bl RAREFHEELAEEBBERA
MEBES  BRUAEABRARK(ED
BEE_E - _F+-_A=1+—RH)EFE
PBEEREENS - Bt - XARFE
ERE EBELCEAERRZSRE
FEmERIBEE -

GRoBR%E
AEAHBRREESEERE 2
——F+ A=t BIEENR SR
R-MWBARNAAAEERBEES
MER(BEAEEER) X AEEHA
SEBIRA T LB ARG RS T
REH - AHENBBYRENRITHE
HAER (B T A E BB R A R
MEERNRAERN) MY EREER
B - EDRE/S R -

HARBEEABMERERAIRNRELHR
REBORESEOUEN - AAEER
AHEEEEHEHRESRNENE -
SEE—EBEERER B

(@) EREHRHMEEFEANGLD
2k

b) HMENLHPIELNEN @ &

@ &A%

JiE)

MR RSB R -

BEBEBRRRERRAR/ 2 —FEHE
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control described above. A change
in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control,
is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the
fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus
or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on
the same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.1 REEE &)

mEEE(E)

B A R AR AR R AR RS
ARE - WA BN BRER -
MEBARNEERASEESERZE
BEa AR EERMEHIRRILE
AR -

BakHEME2mEEN S EARED B
BRASBEGRRNGER A NIFZERE
@ AU RS S HIRERER G A
mRe TBEAMAKRESEXERBIRA
RHNEEBRARRBEERARG &
@ WA AxXkBREZREENEAA
RAF 2 BUEEH -

% Bi

MEEMELBE R L =RIEFFA =P
M—ARZELRE L AEESEHN
AHAEERGEFIREHR - WEAKEE
HIRERNE AR RAEEREE AR
LN UN:

fidf AN &= [ 55 25 3 — R P /B8 1% A) A9 92
B AR IERROZMBRARNEE (S
EEE) REE - () T HERER AR
EE R (i) RN EZA RN RETELE
B RERNDWRENRFE )
RE IR E A FE K (i) Bas P EMA
Rt EE R AR EA - TR SR EM
2HWREAERNAREREILD EHN
PEERDAARBEN(WEE)  EE
HEASBERLEHREEXRREMS
R EEAER -
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for the first
time for the current year's consolidated financial statements.

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2

Amendments to IFRS 9,
IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4
and IFRS 16

Amendment to IFRS 16

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021
(early adopted)

The nature and the impact of the revised IFRSs are described

below:

(a)

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16
address issues not dealt with in the previous amendments
which affect financial reporting when an existing interest
rate benchmark is replaced with an alternative risk-free rate
("RFR"). The Phase 2 amendments provide a practical
expedient to allow the effective interest rate to be updated
without adjusting the carrying amount of financial assets
and liabilities when accounting for changes in the basis for
determining the contractual cash flows of financial assets
and liabilities, if the change is a direct consequence of the
interest rate benchmark reform and the new basis for
determining the contractual cash flows is economically
equivalent to the previous basis immediately preceding the
change. In addition, the amendments permit changes
required by the interest rate benchmark reform to be made
to hedge designations and hedge documentation without
the hedging relationship being discontinued. Any gains or
losses that could arise on transition are dealt with through
the normal requirements of IFRS 9 to measure and
recognise hedge ineffectiveness. The amendments also
provide a temporary relief to entities from having to meet
the separately identifiable requirement when an RFR is
designated as a risk component. The relief allows an entity,
upon designation of the hedge, to assume that the
separately identifiable requirement is met, provided the
entity reasonably expects the RFR risk component to
become separately identifiable within the next 24 months.
Furthermore, the amendments require an entity to disclose
additional information to enable users of financial
statements to understand the effect of interest rate
benchmark reform on an entity’s financial instruments and
risk management strategy.

2.2 S ERERKENEE

FAEBOHAFESE PV BHREERR
AT RIERT BRI 75 5 2R -

BRERSREEAEIR ARG AREENE-FBA
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—E-—F+=-R=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

The Group had certain interest-bearing bank borrowings
denominated in United States dollars based on the London
Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR") as at 31 December 2021.
For the LIBOR-based borrowings, since the interest rates of
these instruments were not replaced by RFRs during the
year, the amendments did not have any impact on the
financial position and performance of the Group. If the
interest rates of these borrowings are replaced by RFRs in a
future period, the Group will apply the above-mentioned
practical expedient upon the modification of these
instruments provided that the “economically equivalent”
criterion is met. Additional information about the transition
and the associated risks is disclosed in note 39 to the

financial statements.

Amendment to IFRS 16 issued in April 2021 extends the
availability of the practical expedient for lessees to elect
not to apply lease modification accounting for rent
concessions arising as a direct consequence of the covid-19
pandemic by 12 months. Accordingly, the practical
expedient applies to rent concessions for which any
reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally
due on or before 30 June 2022, provided the other
conditions for applying the practical expedient are met.
The amendment is effective retrospectively for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021 with any
cumulative effect of initially applying the amendment
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained profits at the beginning of the current accounting
period. Earlier application is permitted.

The Group has early adopted the amendment on 1 January
2021. However, the Group has not received covid-19-
related rent concessions and plans to apply the practical
expedient when it becomes applicable within the allowed
period of application.

22 B HERREENEEH (9
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.3 B FEM1B & R 4 R AT Bl PR B 7

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in the

consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

IFRS 17
Amendments to IFRS 17

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1
and IFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 8

Amendments to IAS 12

Amendments to IAS 16
Amendments to IAS 37
Annual Improvements to

IFRS Standards
2018-2020

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework’

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Insurance Contracts?

Insurance Contracts**

Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current?
Disclosure of Accounting Policies?

Definition of Accounting Estimates?
Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single

Transaction?
Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use'
Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract!
Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9,
lllustrative Examples
accompanying IFRS 16,
and IAS 41

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

4 As a consequence of the amendments to IFRS 17 issued in June 2020, IFRS 4
was amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits insurers to

apply IAS 39 rather than IFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1

January 2023
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to IFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference to the
previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of
Financial Statements with a reference to the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting issued in March 2018 without
significantly changing its requirements. The amendments also
add to IFRS 3 an exception to its recognition principle for an
entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to determine what
constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception specifies that, for
liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within the scope
of IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 if they were incurred separately rather than
assumed in a business combination, an entity applying IFRS 3
should refer to IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 respectively instead of the
Conceptual Framework. Furthermore, the amendments clarify
that contingent assets do not qualify for recognition at the
acquisition date. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
prospectively from 1 January 2022. Since the amendments apply
prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition
date is on or after the date of first application, the Group will not
be affected by these amendments on the date of transition.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an inconsistency
between the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full
recognition of a gain or loss resulting from a downstream
transaction when the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business.
For a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is
recognised in the investor's profit or loss only to the extent of the
unrelated investor's interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28
was removed by the IASB in December 2015 and a new
mandatory effective date will be determined after the completion
of a broader review of accounting for associates and joint
ventures. However, the amendments are available for adoption

now.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.3 C 1B |8 7R & XY B BR B 35

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

IFRS 17 is a comprehensive new accounting standard for
insurance contracts covering recognition and measurement,
presentation and disclosure. Once effective, IFRS 17 will replace
the existing IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts. The standard applies to
all types of insurance contracts (i.e., life, non-life, direct insurance
and re-insurance), regardless of the type of entities that issue
them, as well as to certain guarantees and financial instruments
with discretionary participation features. A few scope exceptions
will apply. The overall objective of the standard is to provide an
accounting model for insurance contracts that is more useful and
consistent for insurers. In contrast to the requirements in IFRS 4,
which are largely based on grandfathering previous local
accounting policies, the standard provides a comprehensive
model for insurance contracts, covering all relevant accounting
aspects. The core of the standard is the general model,
supplemented by:

° a specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation
features (the variable fee approach); and

° a simplified approach (the premium allocation approach)
mainly for short-duration contracts.

IFRS 17 is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023. Early application is permitted, provided the entity
also applies IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 on or before the date it first
applies IFRS 17. The standard is not expected to have any impact
on the Group.

Amendments to IFRS 17 include changes to simplify certain
requirements in the standard and make financial performance
easier to explain. The amendments also provide additional reliefs
to reduce the effort required for the transition to IFRS 17. In
addition, the amendments defer the effective date of IFRS 17 to
annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
with earlier application permitted. As a result of the deferral, the
IASB issued the amendments to IFRS 4 to extend the temporary
exemption that permits insurers to apply IAS 39 rather than IFRS
9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023. The
amendments are not expected to have any impact on the Group.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.3 C A 1B 18 7R & R Y B BR B 7%

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities as
current or non-current. The amendments specify that if an entity’s
right to defer settlement of a liability is subject to the entity
complying with specified conditions, the entity has a right to
defer settlement of the liability at the end of the reporting period
if it complies with those conditions at that date. Classification of a
liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will exercise
its right to defer settlement of the liability. The amendments also
clarify the situations that are considered a settlement of a liability.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied retrospectively.
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group's financial
statements.

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies require
entities to disclose their material accounting policy information
rather than their significant accounting policies. Accounting
policy information is material if, when considered together with
other information included in an entity’s financial statements, it
can reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the
primary users of general purpose financial statements make on
the basis of those financial statements. Amendments to IFRS
Practice Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance on how to
apply the concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosures.
Amendments to IAS 1 are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2023 and earlier application is permitted.
Since the guidance provided in the amendments to IFRS Practice
Statement 2 is non-mandatory, an effective date for these
amendments is not necessary. The Group is currently assessing
the impact of the amendments on the Group's accounting policy
disclosures.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.3 C 1B |8 7R & XY B BR B 35

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes in
accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies.
Accounting estimates are defined as monetary amounts in
financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty.
The amendments also clarify how entities use measurement
techniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates. The
amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2023 and apply to changes in accounting
policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur on or
after the start of that period. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exception so that it no longer applies to transactions that give
rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences, such
as leases and decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities
are required to recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax
liability for temporary differences arising from these transactions.
The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied to
transactions related to leases and decommissioning obligations
at the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented,
with any cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained profits or other component of equity
as appropriate at that date. In addition, the amendments shall be
applied prospectively to transactions other than leases and
decommissioning obligations. Earlier application is permitted.

The Group has applied the initial recognition exception and did
not recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for
temporary differences for transactions related to leases. Upon
initial application of these amendments, the Group will recognise
a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for deductible and
taxable temporary differences associated with right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities, and recognise the cumulative effect of
initially applying the amendments as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained profits at the beginning of the
earliest comparative period presented.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from
the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any
proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that asset
to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management. Instead, an
entity recognises the proceeds from selling any such items, and
the cost of those items, in profit or loss. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
and shall be applied retrospectively only to items of property,
plant and equipment made available for use on or after the
beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial
statements in which the entity first applies the amendments.
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group's financial
statements.

Amendments to IAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contract is onerous under IAS 37, the cost of fulfilling
the contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the
contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract include both the
incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct labour and
materials) and an allocation of other costs that relate directly to
fulfilling that contract (e.g., an allocation of the depreciation
charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in
fulfilling the contract as well as contract management and
supervision costs). General and administrative costs do not relate
directly to a contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly
chargeable to the counterparty under the contract. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied to contracts for which
an entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of
the annual reporting period in which it first applies the
amendments. Earlier application is permitted. Any cumulative
effect of initially applying the amendments shall be recognised as
an adjustment to the opening equity at the date of initial
application without restating the comparative information. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group's financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)
Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, Illustrative Examples
accompanying IFRS 16, and IAS 41. Details of the amendments
that are expected to be applicable to the Group are as follows:

o IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an entity
includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or
modified financial liability are substantially different from
the terms of the original financial liability. These fees
include only those paid or received between the borrower
and the lender, including fees paid or received by either
the borrower or lender on the other’s behalf. An entity
applies the amendment to financial liabilities that are
modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of the
annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the
amendment. The amendment is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendment is not expected to have a
significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

° IFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments from
the lessor relating to leasehold improvements in Illustrative
Example 13 accompanying IFRS 16. This removes potential
confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives when
applying IFRS 16.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights
and over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control
or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require the
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group's investments in associates and joint ventures are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group's share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses. Adjustments are made to
bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures is
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. In addition, when there has been a
change recognised directly in the equity of the associate or joint
venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associates or joint ventures are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s investments in the associates or joint
ventures, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included as part of
the Group's investments in associates or joint ventures.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESTHRERME @)

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)
If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under the
equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant
influence over the associate or joint control over the joint venture,
the Group measures and recognises any retained investment at
its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the
associate or joint venture upon loss of significant influence or
joint control and the fair value of the retained investment and
proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture is classified
as held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5
Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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Business combinations and goodwill ¥KaREE
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition EBRAMHERREEAR EERER
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the WE RN AFESNFE  ZAFEAR

acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date
fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at
fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the
acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.
This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESTHHREME @)

POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within

equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of
this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of
the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units, or groups
of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets
or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of

units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESTHRERME @)

POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion
of the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity investments at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or
the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in
its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1T — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy
by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESTHRERME @)

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, contract assets, deferred tax assets, financial assets,
investment properties, and non-current assets), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount
is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit's value in use
and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. In testing a
cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion of the carrying
amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is
allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if it can be
allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to
the smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s

family and that person

() has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions

applies:

() the entity and the Group are members of the same

group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of

the other entity);

(iii)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the

same third

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity

party;

related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity);

and
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties (Continued)
(b) (Continued)

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which itis a
part, provides key management personnel services to

the Group or to the parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. When an item of property, plant and
equipment is classified as held for sale or when it is part of a
disposal group classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated
and is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5. The cost of an
item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to

its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in
the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to
be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them

accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual

rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings and other infrastructure
Machinery
Office equipment and others

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at

each financial year end.

3.13%-4.50%
6.67%—18.00%
9.50%—-18.00%
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment losses,
and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of construction. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold property held as a right-of-use asset
which would otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property) held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the
ordinary course of business. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of such properties to its residual value over
its estimated useful life. The principal annual rate used for this
purpose is as follows:

Buildings 4.50%
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESTHRERME @)

POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either
finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and
the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Software

Purchased software is stated at cost less any impairment losses
and is amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated
useful life of 10 years.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that
it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its
ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future
economic benefits, the availability of resources to complete the
project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during
the development. Product development expenditure which does
not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised using the straight-line basis
over the commercial lives of the underlying products not
exceeding five to seven years, commencing from the date when
the products are put into commercial production.

Operating concessions
For details of the accounting policy of operating concessions,
please refer to “Service concession arrangements” below.

Operating contract rights

Operating contract rights represent the fair value of operating
rights of WTPs or RWTPs acquired through business combination.
These intangible assets are amortised on the straight-line basis
over the remaining period of the operating contract rights.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is,

or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the

contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset

for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee
The Group applies a single recognition and measurement

approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of

low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make

lease

payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to

use the underlying assets.

(a)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost,
less any accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the
amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful
lives of the assets as follows:

Land
Office

19 years
2 to 3 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of
a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate
the lease. The variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the
period in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in
the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in lease
payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

The Group's lease liabilities are included in interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of office properties (that
is those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option). It also applies the recognition exemption
for leases of low-value assets to leases of office properties
that are considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. When a contract contains lease
and non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for on
a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in other
income and gains in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income due to its nature. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income. Contingent rents are recognised as other income and
gains in the period in which they are earned.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESTHRERME @)

POLICIES (Continued)

Service concession arrangements

The Group has entered into a number of service concession
arrangements with the Grantors. The service concession
arrangements consist of Build-Operate-Transfer (the "BOT")
arrangements and Transfer-Operate-Transfer (the "TOT")
arrangements. Under the BOT arrangements, the Group carries
out construction work of the WTPs, RWTPs, WDPs, STPs or other
municipal infrastructure for the Grantors and receives in return
the rights to operate the service project concerned for a specified
period of time (the "operation period”) in accordance with the
pre-established conditions set by the Grantors, and the service
project should be transferred to the Grantors with nil
consideration at the end of the operation period. A TOT
arrangement is similar to a BOT arrangement, except that the
Group pays consideration for the rights to operate the WTPs,
RWTPs, WDPs, STPs or other municipal infrastructure that have
been built.

Consideration given by the Grantors

A financial asset (financial receivable) is recognised to the extent
that the Group has an unconditional right to receive cash or
another financial asset from or at the direction of the Grantors for
the construction services rendered and/or the consideration paid
and payable by the Group for the rights to operate WTPs, and
the Grantors have little, if any, discretion to avoid payment,
usually because the agreements are enforceable by law. The
Group has an unconditional right to receive cash or another
financial asset if nothing other than the passage of time is
required before payment of the consideration is due and the
Grantors contractually guarantee to pay the Group specified or
determinable amounts even if the payment is contingent on the
Group ensuring that the infrastructure meets specified quality of
efficiency requirements. The financial asset (financial receivable)
is accounted for in accordance with the policy set out for
Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments) under
“Investments and other financial assets” below.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Service concession arrangements (Continued)
Consideration given by the Grantors (Continued)

An intangible asset (operating concession) is recognised to the
extent that the Group receives the rights to charge users of
public service or the grantors remunerate the Group on the basis
of the extent of use of the WTPs, RWTPs, WDPs, STPs or other
municipal infrastructure by users, but with no guarantees as to
the amounts that will be paid to the Group, which is not an
unconditional right to receive cash because the amounts are
contingent on the extent that the public use the service. The
intangible asset (operating concession) is accounted for in
accordance with the policy set out for “intangible assets” above,
which is amortised on a straight-line basis over the terms of
operation ranging from 25 to 30 years.

If the Group is paid for the construction services partly by a
financial asset and partly by an intangible asset, then each
component of the consideration is accounted for separately and
is recognised initially at the fair value of the consideration.

Construction or upgrade services

Costs relating to construction or upgrade services comprise
direct materials, the costs of subcontracting, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of variable and fixed construction
overheads. Revenue from the construction or upgrade services
under the BOT agreements is estimated on a cost-plus basis with
reference to the prevailing market rate of gross margin at the
date of the agreement applicable to similar construction services
rendered in similar locations, and is recognised using the
percentage of completion method, measured by reference to the
proportion of costs incurred to date to the estimated total cost of
the relevant contract.

Operating services

Revenue relating to operating services is accounted for in
accordance with the policy for “Revenue recognition” below.
Costs for operating services are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESTHRERME @)

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets RERHMWESRMEE
Initial recognition and measurement NETEARE

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and
the Group's business model for managing them. With the
exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under IFRS 15 in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”
below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI") on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are not
SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or
loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at
amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows, while financial assets classified and measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income are held within a
business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are not
held within the aforementioned business models are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESTHHREME @)

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (debt instruments)

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and
impairment losses or reversals are recognised in profit or loss and
computed in the same manner as for financial assets measured at
amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised
in other comprehensive income. Upon derecognition, the
cumulative fair value change recognised in other comprehensive
income is recycled to profit or loss.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
when they meet the definition of equity under IAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The
classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESTHRERME @)

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

RERHMWERMEE (B)

Subsequent measurement (Continued) BETE (B
Financial assets designated at fair value through other EEBEAFEFAEMEZEKZHE
comprehensive income (equity investments) (Continued) WMEE (RERE)(EB)

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to
profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income in profit
or loss when the right of payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend
will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably, except when the Group benefits from such
proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in
which case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive
income. Equity investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income are not subject to impairment
assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the consolidated statement of financial position at fair value with
net changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are also recognised as other
income in profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial
liability or non-financial host, is separated from the host and
accounted for as a separate derivative if the economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host; a
separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded
derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the
hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or
loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Reassessment
only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract
that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be
required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair
value through profit or loss category.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)
A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a
financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The financial
asset host together with the embedded derivative is required to
be classified in its entirety as a financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset
or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or
° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows

from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a)
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset
nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESTHRERME @)

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at
an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a
loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.

The various group companies have different credit policies
depending on the requirements of their markets in which they
operate and the businesses they engage in. However, in certain
cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in
default when internal or external information indicates that the
Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts
in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held
by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are classified
within the following stages for measurement of ECLs except for
trade receivables and contract assets which apply the simplified
approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not
credit-impaired financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Stage 3 Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group applies the simplified approach
in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables and contract assets that contain a
significant financing component and lease receivables, the Group
chooses as its accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach
in calculating ECLs with policies as described above.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESTHRERME @)

POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities cRAaE
Initial recognition and measurement NETEARE

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in
an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and bills payables,
other payables, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, and
corporate bonds.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate

amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit
or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to
cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Provisions (Continued)

A contingent liability recognised in a business combination is
initially measured at its fair value. Subsequently, it is measured at
the higher of (i) the amount that would be recognised in
accordance with the general policy for provisions above; and (ii)
the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the
amount of income recognised in accordance with the policy for
revenue recognition.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the year, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

24 FESTHRERME @)

e e

REBEHTERNAARBENSIZE
RNFEFE - BRRARO)BRE Lt —
R mBRERN D « B>) TP HER
TR (FEEERBRT) RIgka iR
BRERANRESEME PR ER

=
E-°

FRriE®t

PIEH e @B MELRE - BB
IASMER H)TH B ABRA M TS TR B e A
SMNEERR - BT B 2 W s sk B

KRR -

BMHEEENAE  HRERFERE
ERIAREROBRER(RBOE) - TR
AAKREREMAEBRRATRERE
7] LATE HA A] B 0 745 44 B8 U 100 =k [R) A% 7%
BESXNHNESRITE -

EEFIRTMERBEE AR wEHK
BERABNHEREEMERRAE
MAREERMA GRS ZRELEE -

BERBRENHAEEARNERZER
B AT ERERS -

s WEEHBREBEXRBVIERDE
FEEBEHIHGTHNEESRR
& AR ZEHEEN RER
P RERYEZE &

o HRHEMBAR BEATRASE
CEREBRNERNERZ/
{1 BE S 422 Il % [0 B B E RR AV B ]
ARAASRET SRR ERZE
B e

BEBEBRRRERRAR/ 2 —FEHE

135



136

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M EE

31 December 2021

—E-—F+=-R=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it
has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESTHRERME @)

POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant
relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a
systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to profit or loss over the
expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
instalments or deducted from the carrying amount of the asset
and released to profit or loss by way of a reduced depreciation
charge.

Where the Group receives grants of non-monetary assets, the
grants are recorded at the fair value of the non-monetary assets
and released to the profit or loss over the expected useful lives of
the relevant assets by equal annual instalments.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with
the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group with a
significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between the payment
by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or
services is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted
for the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in IFRS 15.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

BOT arrangements

Revenue from the construction services under the BOT
agreements is estimated on a cost-plus basis with reference
to the prevailing market rate of gross margin at the date of
the agreement applicable to similar construction services
rendered in similar locations, and is recognised using the
percentage of completion method, measured by reference
to the proportion of costs incurred to date to the estimated
total cost of the relevant contract.

EPC arrangements

Revenue from the provision of construction services is
recognised over time, using an input method to measure
progress towards complete satisfaction of the service,
because the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced. The input method recognises revenue based on
the proportion of the actual costs incurred relative to the
estimated total costs for satisfaction of the construction

services.

Claims to customers are amounts that the Group seeks to
collect from the customers as reimbursement of costs and
margins for scope of works not included in the original
construction contract. Claims are accounted for as variable
consideration and constrained until it is highly probable
that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved. The Group uses the expected value
method to estimate the amounts of claims because this
method best predicts the amount of variable consideration
to which the Group will be entitled.

Provision of operation services

Revenue from the provision of operation services is
recognised over the scheduled period on a straight-line
basis because the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Other income

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as income in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for
goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Group
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before
the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a
contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is
conditional. Contract assets are subject to impairment
assessment, details of which are included in the accounting
policies for impairment of financial assets.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to
the customer).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESTHRERME @)

POLICIES (Continued)

Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories,
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, costs
incurred to fulfil a contract with a customer are capitalised as an
asset if all of the following criteria are met:

(@)  The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated
contract that the entity can specifically identify.

(b)  The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity that
will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy)
performance obligations in the future.

(c)  The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to
profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the
transfer to the customer of the goods or services to which the
asset relates. Other contract costs are expensed as incurred.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group's operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled

transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants
is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using a binomial model.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in
equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for
equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group's best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for a period represents the movement in
the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end
of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken
into account when determining the grant date fair value of
awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed
as part of the Group's best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance
conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any
other conditions attached to an award, but without an associated
service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting
conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value
of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award
unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or non-
vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition,
an expense is recognised for any modification that increases the
total fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESTHRERME @)

POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This
includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the
control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it is
granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
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Other employee benefits HittEEEF
Pension schemes BIREFE

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of
their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme. The employer contributions vest fully once made.

The Group also operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme in Hong Kong (the
"MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees who are eligible
to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based
on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group's employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESTHHREME @)

POLICIES (Continued)

Other employee benefits (Continued)

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an
undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is
provided.

Housing fund and other social insurances

The Group has participated in defined social security contribution
schemes for its employees pursuant to the relevant laws and
regulations of the PRC. These include a housing fund, basic
medical insurance, unemployment insurance, injury insurance and
maternity insurance. The Group makes monthly contributions to
the housing fund and other social insurances. The contributions
are charged to profit or loss on an accrual basis. The Group has
no further obligations beyond the contributions made.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when the Group recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends
Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESTHRERME @)

POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies S
The consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB, ZEREVSHRRARNDRININEEE
which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the AREZT - REFETSERETE

Group determines its own functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by
the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency rates
of exchange ruling at the end of the year. Differences arising on
settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost

TEHIMEER MBEBEENYHHRKA
JIMIER KRB B E - AREE
TEEBARENINERZNERAES
BRXZBEHBITHNINGEEEEXD)
BRe OMNERHENEBEERARBREF
RIZBRANGEERERRE - BFHEKL
BEERELNERNERER

IASNEE R S KA G 2 3EE IR B 57 A

in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at BAXR S BHNEXRBRE - UINERAD
the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items TEFENIFEYEBRATEATE
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using EAMEXRKRE - BRAFEFENIES

the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.
The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item
measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of
the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance
consideration, the date of initial transaction is the date on which
the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If there

MIEEMEMELN KA NER  RE
WRZEB A TEZSH KRN EE—
TS AR (AR ¥ B R SR RO
fhEEB RN ERERNEENREE
BEND AR EMmEEKEIBRTER)

R LR EBAN R ERRENIFERE
BENFERUERER /SETMIE
RIEBEE AXHWARAESR
NER5ARSAEENFERANK
ﬁ?iﬂ’]%fﬁg’\!{ﬁ?i#f%Iiiéﬁ
o WFES ERANMNREIWH - &

are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group ;%I,ﬁyt SHRMRENMN R MHETE
determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of ZTH5HE -

the advance consideration.

As at the end of the year, the assets and liabilities of the entities RER D EKEZT|EERE E’Jﬁ

whose functional currencies differ from the presentation currency

MERMNEENRBBERRSHARN

are translated into RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at the [ERBE B ARE  MiEsdBEE EIJ};Z
end of the reporting period and the consolidated statements of B S HENEREXREANEXRKBRE
profit or loss are translated into RMB at the exchange rates that BAREE -

approximate to those prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
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2.5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result
in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group applied the following judgements that significantly
affect the determination of the amount and timing of revenue
from contracts with customers:
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2.5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)
Judgements (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(i)

Accounting for service concession arrangements

The Group engages in certain service concession
arrangements in which the Group carries out construction
work of the WTPs, RWTPs, WDPs, STPs or other municipal
infrastructure for the Grantors and receives in return the
rights to operate the WTPs, RWTPs, WDPs, STPs or other
municipal infrastructure concerned in accordance with the
pre-established conditions set by the Grantors. In
accordance with IFRIC 12 Service Concession
Arrangements, the WTPs, RWTPs, WDPs, STPs or other
municipal infrastructure under the service concession
arrangements may be classified as intangible assets or
financial assets. The WTPs, RWTPs, WDPs, STPs or other
municipal infrastructure are classified as intangible assets if
the Group receives a right (a licence) to charge users of the
public service or if the Grantors remunerate the Group on
the basis of the extent of use of the WTPs, RWTPs, WDPs,
STPs or other municipal infrastructure by users, but with no
guarantees as to the amounts that will be paid to the
Group. Whenever only part of the investment by the Group
under these service concession arrangements is covered by
a payment commitment from the Grantors, it is recognised
as a financial receivable up to the amount guaranteed by
the Grantors, and as an intangible asset for the balance.
The Group recognises a financial receivable if it has an
unconditional contractual right under the service
concession arrangements to receive a determinable amount
of payments during the concession period irrespective of
the usage of the WTPs, RWTPs, WDPs, STPs or other
municipal infrastructure.
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2.5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)
Judgements (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(i)

Accounting for service concession arrangements
(Continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, the financial receivable is
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Revenue from the construction service under the terms of
service concession arrangements is estimated on a cost-
plus basis with reference to a prevailing market rate of
gross margin at the date of agreement applicable to similar
construction services rendered in similar locations, and is
recognised on the percentage of completion method,
measured by reference to the proportion of costs incurred
to date to the estimated total cost of the relevant contract.
The Group's prevailing margins of gross construction
margin were valued by Crowe Horwath First Trust Appraisal
Pte Ltd (“Crowe Horwath"”), an independent third-party
valuer that has appropriate qualifications and recent
experience in the valuation of gross construction margin.

When the Group receives a payment during the concession
period, it will apportion such payment among (i) a
repayment of the financial receivables (if any), which will be
used to reduce the carrying amount of the financial
receivables on the statement of financial position, (ii)
interest income, which will be recognised as revenue in
profit or loss and (iii) revenue from operating and
maintaining the WTPs, RWTPs, WDPs, STPs or other
municipal infrastructure in profit or loss.

Judgement is also exercised in determining the fair value of
the financial receivables. Discount rates, estimates of future
cash flows and other factors are used in the valuation
process.
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2.5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(i)  Accounting for EPC arrangements
The Group seeks to collect claims from the customers as
reimbursement of costs and margins for scope of works not
included in the original construction contract, which give
rise to variable consideration. The Group determined that
the expected value method is the appropriate method to
use in estimating the variable consideration for claims in
construction services, given there is a wide range of
possible outcomes which are subject to negotiations with
third parties.

Before including any amount of variable consideration in
the transaction price, the Group considers whether the
amount of variable consideration is constrained. The Group
determined that the estimates of variable consideration are
not constrained based on its historical experience, current
negotiations with customers, profitability of the head
contracts of the customers and the current economic
conditions.

Withholding tax arising from the distribution of dividends
The Group's determination as to whether to accrue for
withholding taxes arising from the distributions of dividends from
certain subsidiaries according to the relevant tax jurisdictions is
subject to judgement on the timing of the payment of the
dividends or on whether certain subsidiaries of the Group are
determined to be Chinese resident enterprises by the PRC
governing tax authorities in the future. Management considered
that it is not probable that the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC
will distribute retained profits as at the end of the year in the
foreseeable future, and accordingly no additional provision for
withholding tax was made. Where the final outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts originally rewarded, the
difference will impact the deferred tax provision in the period in
which the difference arises.
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2.5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the year, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

Useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant
and equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of items of
property, plant and equipment, the Group periodically reviews
the changes in market conditions, expected physical wear and
tear, and the maintenance of the asset. The estimation of the
useful life of the asset is based on historical experience of the
Group with similar assets that are used in a similar way.
Depreciation amount will be adjusted if the estimated useful lives
and/or the residual values of items of property, plant and
equipment are different from previous estimation. Useful lives
and residual values are reviewed, at the end of the year, based
on changes in circumstances.

Current income tax and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and
Mainland China. Estimation is required in determining the
provision for taxation. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts originally
recorded, the differences will impact on the current income tax
and deferred income tax in the periods in which the differences
arise. Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences or unused tax losses are recognised as management
considers it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences or the unused losses can
be utilised.

The realisation of the deferred tax assets mainly depends on
whether sufficient future profits will be available in the future. In
cases where the actual future profits generated are less than
expected, a material reversal of deferred tax assets may arise,
which will be recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
such a reversal takes place. Details of deferred tax assets are
contained in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.
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2.5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 25 EXETHEREST @

AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued) fEET T EEM (8)

Percentage of completion of construction services ERBREZRIADL

The Group recognises revenue according to the percentage of AEBBREERSTREENGLHMNETH
completion of individual contracts of construction works, which DEEERN G MZERTEEEREE

requires estimation to be made by management. The stage of
completion is estimated by reference to the actual costs incurred
over the total budgeted costs. Due to the nature of the activity
undertaken in construction works, the date on which the activity
commences and the date on which the activity completes usually

HibeEr - RTEBRELERBENLKE
ENERKRARETHEE - ARERT
RATETTRBNMEE  EBFE AR
AR T A —REN TR HIRE -
Hit» AEEEHERTIERTENLL

fall into different accounting periods. Hence, the Group reviews EITEFRER - WERALHKBRER
and revises the percentage of completion of construction works. BRI B A LKA SN TEES - ARl At

Where the actual contract revenue is less than expected or actual
contract costs are more than expected, a foreseeable loss may
arise.

Estimation of total budgeted costs and cost to completion for
construction services

Total budgeted costs for construction contracts comprise (i)
direct material costs and direct labour, (i) costs of subcontracting,
and (iii) an appropriation of variable and fixed construction
overheads. In estimating the total budgeted costs for
construction contracts, management refers to information such

as (i) current offers from sub-contractors and suppliers, (ii) recent
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offers agreed with sub-contractors and suppliers, and (iii) WE - (i) BEYERKAR - S TRAR
professional estimation on material costs, labour costs and other = DN = s o

costs.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables, EZEVURE SRERRERGNE
financial receivables and contract assets EfEBECEEERE

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade $’$ BFERABREEMTEE S BRI
receivables, financial receivables and contract assets. The SREKRTBBLENEETEREZE

provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of
various customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by
geography, product type, customer type and rating, and
coverage by letters of credit and other forms of credit insurance).
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2.5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables,
financial receivables and contract assets (Continued)

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e.,
gross domestic products) are expected to deteriorate over the
next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in
the manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are adjusted.
At each reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The Group's
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic
conditions may also not be representative of a customer’s actual
default in the future. The information about the ECLs on the
Group's financial receivables, trade receivables and contract
assets is disclosed in note 19, note 21 and note 23 to the financial
statements, respectively.

Financial receivables

Estimation is exercised in determining the fair values of the
financial receivables at initial recognition. These fair values are
computed on the discounted cash flow method using a discount
rate based upon the market-related rate for a similar instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. The assumptions and
estimates used can materially affect the fair values of the financial
receivables.

Impairment of goodwiill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on
an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of
the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-
generating units and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. Further
details are given in note 18.
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2.5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 25 EXETHEREST @

AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a
lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR")
to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the
Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with
a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would
have to pay”, which requires estimation when no observable
rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into
financing transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect
the terms and conditions of the lease. The Group estimates the
IBR using observable inputs when available and is required to
make certain entity-specific estimates.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets (including the right-of-use
assets) at the end of each reporting period. Indefinite life
intangible assets are tested for impairment annually and at other
times when such an indicator exists. Other non-financial assets
are tested for impairment when there are indicators that the
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of
the fair value less costs of disposal is based on available data
from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of
similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs
for disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations are
undertaken, management must estimate the expected future
cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M EE

31 December 2021 —ZE=-—F+-A=+—H

3. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group’s operating businesses

are structured and managed separately according to their nature.

Each

of the Group's operating segments represents a strategic

business unit that provides services which are subject to risks and

returns that are different from those of the other operating

segments. Summary details of the operating segments are as

follows:

(a)

the segment of Urban Water Treatment engages in the
design, construction, upgrade and operation of WTPs,
RWTPs, STPs and WDPs, and in the operation and
maintenance of waste water treatment facilities entrusted
by governments ("O&M");

the segment of Water Environment Comprehensive
Remediation engages in river harnessing and improvement,
foul water body treatment, sponge city construction; and

the segment of Rural Water Improvement engages in the
construction and operation related to “the Water
Environment Facilities of Beautiful Village” such as: waste
water treatment facilities and pipeline construction for
collecting waste water so as to achieve rural living
environment improvement.

REDHER

RITBER AEEEEXBHNERLR
EEDRAMEDFRE - AEBERK
SRR —EBREBELC  REDN
AR % Be B [\ g % [2] ¥ £ EL A 48 2 ) &F
TR - EEDFRFFBHALT -

(@) MEKIED BRI MERE - R X
ENGEE)TKEIER - KRR
T~ 75 e BE R M AR BB
Ko e BT & B RS /KR B &Rk
(HEE R ME])

(b) IKIBEGZEAEES IS RREAE
RohE - BROKEBE BB
B &

(© HEFOSHOREDBF R ERNEE
[SEBARFKIRIZRGE | 1A+ J57KEE
IR R M AR KOS KR B RIAER
BN EERITRE -
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mE I EwAR M EE

31 December 2021 —ZE=-—F+-A=+—H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on the reportable segment
results, which is a measure of adjusted profit before tax. The
adjusted profit before tax is measured consistently with the
Group's profit before tax except that unallocated income and
gains, finance costs as well as corporate and other unallocated
expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets and liabilities mainly comprise operating assets
and liabilities that are directly attributable to the segment or can
be allocated to the segment on a reasonable basis.

Segment assets exclude investment properties, unallocated
intangible assets, unallocated deferred tax assets, unallocated
prepayments, other receivables and other assets, unallocated
pledged deposits, unallocated cash and cash equivalents,
unallocated investments in associates and a joint venture and
other unallocated head office and corporate assets as these

e HER @)

EREIHAERASESKENNE
o UMEL B IR BL A RGHEIRE o
DERBIRA MO MEEFAE AR
RABBBAEMOGTET RN - KHRE
B A5 A1 ) RO R 8 B AN SR [ B A ATt A
—H EZFTETEBRADEARAR
W RERAA R D ERHEAMARD R
RS

DHEENMBEE
HAIREDLERZ
BB

u 1 IP
u>
]:7&
5
F!aw
il

/m
W
XA o
m

DHEETRERENE  ROEEW
BE AOBERBEEHBEEE  AHEHE
MHE - HEEFEREMBEE - K
DEEBRER  ROERERASEFE
W RBERR R —RKEELENKRD
FEREAREMRD BT REEE

assets are managed on a group basis. E RARZZEENSBEENG—F
I o
Segment liabilities exclude corporate bonds, unallocated other DESBETBEARES Ao EM

payables and accruals, lease liabilities, and other unallocated
head office and corporate liabilities as these liabilities are
managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to
the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then
prevailing market prices.

ENRELEER HERBEARA
ARDEBHLEEEEE  RARZSE
BEDAEEASR—EE -

DEREIHE M ER 2 ERERRITH
BREZTHENEELETRS -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M EE

31 December 2021 —ZE=-—F+-A=+—H

3. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 3. BESMER®
(Continued)
Water
BE Environment
—E-_-#+-A=1+-H Urban Water Comprehensive Rural Water
Year ended 31 December 2021 LEE Treatment ~ Remediation  Improvement Total
KBRR A
HEKE RERE KRR CH
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT ARBTTT ARBT R ARET R
Segment revenue APKE
Sales to external customers mINIRPHE 2,668,356 147,690 102,912 2,918,958
2,668,356 147,690 102,912 2,918,958

Segment results AHEE 715,981 44,609 21,072 781,662
Reconciliation: Hig -
Unallocated income and gains AT R UGS 23,525
Share of profits and losses AERAEBE L ANER

of unallocated associates 1,392
Share of profit and loss of MERPEAERENER

an unallocated joint venture (1,821)
Corporate and other unallocated EEREMKAEAZ

expenses (38,838)
Unallocated lease-related APEMERBERENE

finance costs (98)
Unallocated finance costs RAMAERA

(other than interest on lease liabilities)  (TRE&EF 2B ) (215,577)
Profit before tax BRATRF 550,245
Segment assets PHEE 15,424,670 1,215,755 696,706 17,337,131
Reconciliation: %
Corporate and other unallocated assets (¥R Ef AN EEE 944,277
Total assets BEE 18,281,408
Segment labilties SBEME 11,763,185 496,509 492470 12752164
Reconciliation: #ik -
Corporate and other unallocated PEREBANEER

liabilities 121,623
Total liabilities 2af 12,873,787
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE I EwAR M EE

31 December 2021 —ZE=-—F+-A=+—H

3. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 3. REaHER W
(Continued)
Water
8z Environment
“E--F+-A=1+-H Urban Water Comprehensive Rural Water
Year ended 31 December 2021 LEE Treatment ~ Remediation  Improvement Total
KB -]
HEKE RERE BARE Bt
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETT
Other segment information ﬁﬂbﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁl
Investments in associates RELARINKRE - 230,929 - 230,929
Unallocated investments in associates P2 N Al ADERE 145,844
Investment in a joint venture R—REELENERE 72,472 - - 72,472
Unallocated investment in a joint venture R —R AL EN XD AR E 9,537
Share of profits and losses of associates 2 EEE& A AIHIEZ - (1,662) = (1,662)
Share of profits and losses of HMERDEHE R AIMER
unallocated associates 1,392
Share of profit and loss of a joint venture S {E—FAE L EMER (329) - - (329)
Share of profit and loss of an AE—FAPEAENENESR
unallocated joint venture (1,821)
Impairment losses recognised RERRANRESETE
in profit or loss, net (30,029) (15,084) - (45,113)
Depreciation and amortisation WEREH 62,408 123 6,560 69,091
Unallocated depreciation and RO E R
amortisation 3,192
Total depreciation and amortisation ~ #7& i1 % 72,283
Capital expenditure BARHY 104,783 - 88,290 193,073
Unallocated amounts Ao EE 70
Total capital expenditure* BRGY B+ 193,143
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment * BARAEYBEREDE  BMENEK
and service concession contract assets. {% J/\/( &Hﬁﬁ%q;%;q:i«( %l/:l\ 2{] ’éig
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BRRME

31 December 2021 —ZE=-—F+-A=+—H

4

n

RA
i3

E I EERE ()

Water
HE Environment
—E-EF+-A=1—H Urban Water ~ Comprehensive Rural Water
Year ended 31 December 2020 HEE Treatment Remediation Improvement Total
KR 2
WK maniE AKBE &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Segment revenue Al
Sales to external customers FANEPHE 2,899,601 311,661 121,170 3332432
2,899,601 311,661 121,170 3,332,432
Segment results PHEE 790,451 70,130 19,348 879,929
Reconciliation: -
Unallocated income and gains KRB R 39,008
Share of profits and losses of MERARHE DR ER
unallocated associates (1,279)
Share of profit and loss of PERPEEERENER
an unallocated joint venture (2,450)
Corporate and other PERABAAERX
unallocated expenses (51,745)
Unallocated lease-related AARHERBRERA
finance costs (237)
Unallocated finance costs RABBERA
(other than interest on lease (REBEFERM)
liabilities) (255,691)
Profit before tax BB A& R 607,539
Segment assets PHEE 14,467,713 1,391,395 724,220 16,583,328
Reconciliation: %
Corporate and other unallocated ~ EREMAIREE
assets 1,062,502
Total assets BEE 17,645,830
Segment liabilities TBER 10,801,996 519,291 531,704 11,852,991
Reconciliation: -
Corporate and other unallocated ~ EREMASHEE
liabilities 674,641
Total liabilities BaE 12,527,632
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

31 December 2021 —ZE=-—F+-A=+—H

3. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 3. ReEsPER @
(Continued)
Water
EES Environment
—E-EF+-A=1—H Urban Water ~ Comprehensive Rural Water
Year ended 31 December 2020 HEE Treatment Remediation Improvement Total
KEH D)
SRR TS FERE KRR CE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTL ARETT ARETT ARETT
Other segment information HipHEs
Investments in associates REE N REIRE - 230,787 - 230,787
Unallocated investments in associates P B & A BIH A D BLIR A 144,452
Investment in a joint venture R—REELEMTE 72,801 - - 72,801
Unallocated investment in R—REE0REN
ajoint venture APERE 11,358
Share of profits and losses of DB E ARIRER
associates - (1,413) - (1.413)
Share of profits and losses of AERDEBE R TN ER
unallocated associates (1,275)
Share of profit and loss of ME-REBLENER
ajoint venture (2,311) - - 2,311
Share of profit and loss of PERDPEEERENER
an unallocated joint venture (2,450)
Impairment losses recognised REFARR LA
in the consolidated statement 2HANEREZR
of profit or loss and other REBETE
comprehensive income, net (23,995) (8,543) - (32,538)
Depreciation and amortisation NEREH 61,260 131 3,552 64,943
Unallocated depreciation FOWTE R H#H
and amortisation 6,764
Total depreciation and amortisation ¥ [ #4185 71,707
Capital expenditure BARX 127,924 - 119,489 247413
Unallocated amounts FoEEE 48
Total capital expenditure* BAREXEE" 247 461
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment * BEARAZBEABYE  BERZHURR
and service concession contract assets. BRTKEEHNEE -
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eV BRRME

31 December2021 —ZE-—HF+_-HA=+—H

3. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 3. RESIER @
(Continued)
Geographical information it EE R
(a) Revenue from external customers (a) HBEFUKE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-EF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETIT
Mainland China AR A 2,918,958 3,332,432
The revenue information above is based on the locations of itz E R TV ENE R 2 o

the customers.

(b) Non-current assets (b) FARBEE
2021 2020
—E—F —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREFIT
Mainland China ==y EiRvap:i) 12,802,978 12,690,836
All the non-current assets are located in Mainland China. FiBEmEN B EIA AR B A
The non-current asset information above excludes deferred FHIERBEENERTBIEELE
tax assets. TRIBEE -
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e BRRME

31 December 2021 —ZE=-—F+-A=+—H

3. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)
Information about major customers

The revenue derived from the Group's two largest customers

during the year is as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2021

e HER @)

HIREFAENER
IS

=

NER  REBEMARFEEM D
T
BE-Z-_—F+-HA=+—HLFE

Urban Water

Treatment Total

W E K &t

RMB’'000 RMB’'000

AR¥T T ARET T

Customer A ZEA 229,661 229,661

Customer C ZEC 206,772 206,772

436,433 436,433

Year ended 31 December 2020 (2 _EF+_A=+—HILEFE
Urban Water

Treatment Total

R AK FS A&t

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETTT AREETIT

Customer A ZEA 527,121 527,121

Customer B ZEB 185,225 185,225

712,346 712,346
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31 December 2021 —ZE=-—F+-A=+—H

4.

REVENUE

The Group has entered into a number of service concession
arrangements with the Grantors on a BOT or a TOT basis in
respect of its WTPs, RWTPs, WDPs, STPs or other municipal
infrastructure. These service concession arrangements generally
involve the Group as an operator in (i) constructing WTPs, RWTPs,
WDPs, STPs or other municipal infrastructure for those
arrangements on a BOT basis; (i) paying a specific amount for
those arrangements on a TOT basis; and (iii) operating WTPs,
RWTPs, WDPs, STPs or other municipal infrastructure on behalf
of the Grantors for periods ranging from 17 to 30 years (the
"Service Concession Periods”), and the Group will be paid for its
services over the Service Concession Periods at prices stipulated
through a pricing mechanism.

The Group carries out construction works of other municipal
infrastructure under EPC arrangements and agrees with EPC
customers to enter into a settled agreement for the construction
work during the construction.

Revenue represents: (i) an appropriate proportion of contract
revenue from construction contracts under BOT arrangements,
EPC arrangements and other construction service projects, net of
tax and government surcharges; (ii) revenue from operation of
WTPs, RWTPs, WDPs, STPs or other municipal infrastructure
under BOT arrangements and TOT arrangements and the
provision of Operation and Maintenance services; (iii) revenue
from sales of water purifying materials; and (iv) financial income
on financial receivables. The amounts of each of the significant
categories of revenue during the year are as follows:

Wz

AEBEBCRSKEERK  BAEKER
R~ KRR SRR R sk AL TH IR &
FERRMELABOT 8k TOT 5 X E2 IR F ART AL
ZIERBGIFTEELH - Z SRR
KEZE M RAEEBEREEE()
LABOTH AR E L HER IS KER
R~ BAEKEIER - HKER - 5B E
iR o HL At T B B RERR B ¢ (i) ATOT 77 =\
MZELHINEESR  R(i)W172
30F AR A ([ ARFSFFF A& i D 1R
ERTAGLESKERR - BEKERE
R~ AROKER SRR IR B sk E A TH R
RERR TG MASEE SRR E
MR ERBIZBBTEERSRTHER
EZE I

Wil*ETFEPC%JFL‘ﬁE@%BZ%W
REHER TR WHRER HHF'EJEEEPC
RPERFIVERTIENEE S

Wzts () BOTZ HE - EPCRHE R EH A
= HW%IEET%*“/\%UE@mthIJ:.
49 Uy 3% vm’%fmﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁﬁbu% ")
BOTL HE RTOTL #f TiB &5 K&
R BAEKEIER - K - E/JEEEI%
iR 2 L At T B B AR BB B S ¢ (i) SHE
SRR BRI ¢ R (iv) & BRE R E 8
BN - RERSEAREERNH S
BT

Revenue from contracts with customers EESHKEF
2021 2020
== ﬂi —= —%éf'z
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETIT
Revenue from operating services B2 RS UL 1,200,545 1,046,264
Revenue from construction services R ARFS W = 1,008,451 1,613,074

Revenue from sales of water purifying THEFKM B AU ES
materials - 12,045
Financial income b ON 709,962 661,049
2,918,958 3,332,432
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31 December 2021 —ZE=-—F+-A=+—H

4. REVENUE (Continued) 4. q&ﬁ(%)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) EFEAHWE (8)
(a) Disaggregated revenue information (a) WEERMAD
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BEz—_FE-—-F+=-H=+—8Lt
FE
Water
Environment
Urban Water Comprehensive  Rural Water
Treatment ~ Remediation Improvement Total
Segments 2 KEBR EEn
WK RERE BXRE |t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT AR®TTT
Revenue from contracts ZEAHkE
with customers 2,668,356 147,690 102,912 2,918,958
Geographical market BENS
Mainland China elElaNg: i 2,668,356 147,690 102,912 2,918,958
Total revenue from contracts BEEAMNNEESE
with customers 2,668,356 147,690 102,912 2,918,958
Timing of revenue recognition IR
Services transferred over time FER BB AR 2,668,356 147,690 102,912 2,918,958
Total revenue from contracts BEA#NNEsE
with customers 2,668,356 147,690 102,912 2,918,958

BEBEBRRRERRAR/ 2 —FEHE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M EE

31 Decemb

4. REV
Reve
(a)

(b)

er2021 —E-—F+-A=+—H

ENUE (Continued)

4. R (E)

nue from contracts with customers (Continued) BEEEHREE (5B)
Disaggregated revenue information (Continued) (a) l&%‘ﬁﬁﬂ‘ﬁ (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-_ZT-ZFF+-_A=+—HI
FE
Water
Environment
Urban Water Comprehensive Rural Water
Treatment ~ Remediation  Improvement Total
Segments Al KIERE i)
KT RERE BIKARE Gl
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AREFT AREFT
Revenue from contracts BEFEEHKE
with customers 2,899,601 311,661 121,170 3,332,432
Geographical market BENS
Mainland China R A, 2,899,601 311,661 121,170 3,332,432
Total revenue from contracts RPAHNEEE
with customers 2,899,601 311,661 121,170 3,332,432
Timing of revenue recognition R
Goods transferred at a point RE-BEEEZNER
intime 12,045 12,045
Services transferred over time BERs BB A R 2,887,556 311,661 121,170 3,320,387
Total revenue from contracts REe4NGEE
with customers 2,899,601 311,661 121,170 3,332,432

Revenue from construction services, operating services of
waste water treatment, reclaimed water treatment, water
distribution and sludge treatment and financial income are
recognised over time. For sales of water purifying materials
in operating services, revenue is recognised at a point in
time.

Performance obligations

The aggregate amount of the transaction prices allocated
to the performance obligations of BOT and TOT
arrangements that are unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied)
as at 31 December 2021 was RMB38 billion(2020: RMB36
billion). The performance obligations expected to be
recognised in more than one year relate to the services to
be performed in respect of the BOT and TOT
arrangements. The amounts disclosed above do not include
variable consideration which is constrained.

(b)

JEKEREE - EE*F@ fmu&
ﬁfb&%iﬁsﬁ@_ SRR - 1B BRGU
LA&EM%H&ZA%B@*&M’%WEE

R o BB RIS EF R E M
5 WEBIER AR
EHEE

RZBE-Z—F+=-—A=+—HHE
ZEBOTRTOTEZHEMI KRBT (A
DARBIT)BHEINRSERE

SHEAEANRENBET(ZE-Z
¢ AR 360187T) - TEAFR —F
NEHERZBHEMTEEHKBOT
NTOTZHRBITHREER - EX
WENSBETEES RIS ER

(=
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31 December 2021 —FE—

=

—FtZA=1—H

5. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

5. Httr ARz

2021 2020
- ZEEF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTFT
Government grants* IRF B * 60,491 49,958
Interest income from loans to third parties A58 =77 B ZEY R B U A 22,869 18,099
Investment income from other current HEMReEmEEmN
financial assets LERKA 8,508 26,246
Foreign exchange differences, net MEHZR - F5 7,250 5,557
Bank interest income HRITHEWA 2,557 4,665
Interest income from loans to a m—RaEEEERD
joint venture FEUA 700 820
Rental income less depreciation of HEWABEEMENE
investment properties 490 536
Others Hith 3,692 1,276
106,557 107,157

Government grants primarily represented the value-added tax refund and

the environmental protection funds for environmental technological

improvements granted by government authorities. Certain environmental
protection funds related to the upgrading of WTPs granted by government

authorities are recognised as deferred income that is recognised in profit or

loss on a systematic basis over the expected upgrade interval cycle. There

are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these grants.

* B B & B FE R AT BR 1 T RO IB E TR
RAEBBRREMBGENRERERS - BT
BT E R E5 KR 2 BEUE R B RIR
RESCHERBRELKA - REHUER
PRI Rt 2 BN R AR o W

HEZEWBA B AW R IR R AEH -
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31 December 2021 —ZE=-—F+-A=+—H

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. ERBLATEF
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ A5 B W B AT R R TR (REA)
(crediting): A TRIAREE
2021 2020
—E—— —E-F
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
iz ARET T ARBT T
Cost for construction services B IR AR 824,663 1,333,485
Cost for operation services 82 RIS R 759,017 662,144
Cost for sales of water purifying SHE KM R AR AR
materials = 11,166
Total cost of services 8RR RSB AR 1,583,680 2,006,795
Depreciation of property, M - BERRETE
plant and equipment 12 6,814 10,471
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ¥ FIEEEITE 13(a) 283 1,932
Amortisation of service concession G E — 148 S RE Y
intangible assets 17 63,925 57,870
Amortisation of other intangible E b L E
assets 385 501
Impairment of goodwill* BN 18 1,894 -
Impairment of financial receivables & @l fiE W X IE R (B 19 452 1,801
Impairment of contract assets AHEERE 23 962 403
Impairment of trade receivables B ZRYGRIERME 21 26,404 22,459
Impairment of other receivables H b e IR RE 22 17,295 7,875
Lease payments not included inthe WET AR EBETEM
measurement of lease liabilities HERR 13(c) 286 409
Auditor's remuneration 1% EREN N & 2,826 2,850
Employee benefit expense EERAIMX
(including directors’ remuneration):  (BiEEEHEH) ¢
Wages, salaries and allowances, T& - %4 M2 -
social securities and benefits HEREREF 241,038 229,278
Pension scheme contributions RIS ETEIMH R
(defined contribution scheme)* (REMETED > 23,293 5,992
Total employee benefit expense 1 B2 NF 264,331 235,270
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31 December 2021

—E-—F+=-R=+—H

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (Continued)

6. BRBIANER &)

2021 2020
—F-F ke 2
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Liks3 ARBT T ARETT
Operating lease income REHERA (1,366) (1,469)
Less: Depreciation of investment & : I8 BT E
properties 876 933
Rental income less depreciation of TS UWARIKEMEIRE
investment properties 5 (490) (536)
Bank interest income RITHREUA 5 (2,557) (4,665)
Government grants 2GR Y| 5 (60,491) (49,958)
Interest income from loans to third A28 = EFHHIF| B YA
parties 5 (22,869) (18,099)
Interest income from loans to M—REEREERHFE
a joint venture 1 ON 5 (700) (820)
Investment income from other HEMREEmEER
current financial assets "E WA 5 (8,508) (26,246)
Loss on disposal of items of property, HE ¥ « Fi/E A&
plant and equipment, net TH B W BB 58 478 n
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEME A REE 31 4,530 708
Foreign exchange differences, net [ i, 248 - %48 5 (7,250) (5,557)
Gains on disposal of service HEREEE—FT
concession intangible assets,net EERENIES T8 (694) -

The impairment of goodwill is included in “Other expenses” in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by the Group as the

employer to reduce the existing level of contributions.

* BERRERREERAREREMEEKER

B [ EABBR | & e

* BB KA RAREERETA

RIRIEER A K -
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=
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7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BMERAK
2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETIT
Interest on interest-bearing bank STERTT REAE TS
and other borrowings 536,451 484,890
Interest on corporate bonds NRIEHFE 29,139 76,654
Interest on lease liabilities HEAERNE 98 237
565,688 561,781
8. DIRECTORS’' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EERESITTHAEHM

REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c)

AEREENRSITRAEMESRE L
MR - BEAFIEGIE383(1)) ~ (b)

and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the QEOERRR (HEEEFFZER) R
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) 125 2 SRR 0T ¢
Regulation, is as follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
RMB'000 RMB’'000
AR¥ET T ARETIT
Fees wE 1,793 1,915
Other emoluments: Hib B4 :

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind #4285 R E W& A 4,553 5,575
Total wEt 6,346 7,490
(i) Independent non-executive directors () BIFHTES

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors REEFEEOMNBYIEHITEENGE
during the year were as follows: oy NI

2021 2020

—E-—F —_ZT_TF

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARMTR  ARETL

Mr. Chang Qing (%5) BERE 299 319

Mr. Peng Yongzhen (k%) EKBEAE 299 319

Mr. Chau Kam Wing ([E$84%) IEEGESD 299 319

Total 5T 897 957

AEEYWBENBILIFRITESD
HitngrB (— 2 —TF : |) -

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year (2020:
Nil).
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31 December 2021

(i)

—E-—F+=ZA=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EERBRETHAEFHFM@
REMUNERATION (Continued)
Executive directors iy #MITE=S
Equity- Salaries,
settled  allowances Pension
share option and benefits scheme Total
Fees expenses in kind contributions remuneration
DEREE #HéE - 2R Rk
e BRERX ENER TR B
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT AR®TT AR%ET
Year ended 31 December HE-ZT=-—f

2021 TZA=+—-BLEE
Executive directors: HTES
Mr. Zhao Juanxian HEELE

(alias, Zhao Junxian)

(HEE) 299 - 1,451 - 1,750
Mr. Li Zhong (£+) bt 199 - 1,363 - 1,562
Mr. Duan Jerry Linnan B %

(B ) 199 - 1,241 - 1,440
Ms. Liu Yujie (ZIE7R) ROy 199 - 498 - 697

896 - 4,553 - 5,449
Year ended 31 December HE_ZT_TF

2020 +TZA=T—HLEE
Executive directors: PTES!

Mr. Zhao Juanxian HEELE

(alias, Zhao Junxian)

(HEE) 319 - 2,105 - 2,424
Mr. Li Zhong (FH) Tk 213 - 1,518 - 1,731
Mr. Duan Jerry Linnan B

(BHE) 213 - 1,388 - 1,601
Ms. Liu Yujie (ZIE7R) IO 213 - 564 - 777

958 - 5,575 - 6,533

There was no arrangement under which a director waived

or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

BEEERNFAELRLAFAERH

RAEIH A 2

BERFRRERAR/ T —FERSE
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31 December 2021 —ZE=-—F+-A=+—H

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. EEBEEFMES
The five highest paid employees during the year included four iﬁq hEERFEERENRES(Z
directors (2020: four directors), details of whose remuneration are E-FF  NELEE)  REZHWEFE
set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year HN EXzE8 REEHRT—Z(=ZZ
of the remaining one (2020: one) highest paid employee who is ZEF  —B)BRFERRBEENIERES
neither a director nor a chief executive of the Company are as THRAEZRSHNES 2 F 15w
follows: N
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind &4 - 5$E£&§%*E*'J 985 1,103
Performance related bonuses %EEEJE BEItA 348 247
Pension scheme contributions B2 u+2UT/\T¢\ 21 3
1,354 1,353
The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid HMEATHEANIFESE RIFRSTT
employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is Eﬁz/\g\a—ﬁiﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁgj\%{ﬁﬂ"l— :
as follows:

Number of employees

EEAH
2021 2020
—E-—F T4
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 & T £ 1,500,000 T = 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 /& T £ 2,000,000 78 T 1 -
1 1
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31 December 2021 —ZE=-—F+-A=+—H

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FAIBFHiAX

Pursuant to The PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law Implementing
Regulations (R ZE A R MBI TS HUEE MERBI), most of
the subsidiaries established in the PRC, engaged in the
operations of waste water treatment projects, are eligible for tax
holiday of a three-year full exemption followed by a three-year
half exemption commencing from their respective first years of
generating operating revenue (the “3+3 Tax Holiday"”). At the
end of the year, these subsidiaries were qualified for the 3+3 Tax
Holiday or in the process of preparation and submission of the
required documents to the respective tax authorities to apply for
the 3+3 Tax Holiday.

Pursuant to Caishui [2011] No.58 Circular of the Ministry of
Finance, the State Administration of Taxation, the General
Administration of Customs on Issues Relating to Preferential Tax
Policies for the Development of the Western Region (BfIXEB
REBER  BHASHAN AN ARENRKEEBRRMENBN),
certain subsidiaries operated in the western region of Mainland
China are entitled to a preferential corporate income tax rate of
15%, provided that the main business of the subsidiaries belongs
to the industrial projects stipulated in the Catalogue of
Encouraged Industries in the Western Region, and such main
business income accounts for more than 70% of the total income
of the subsidiaries.

Under the relevant PRC Corporate Income Tax Law and
respective regulations, except for the preferential treatments
available to certain subsidiaries as mentioned above, other
subsidiaries within the Group were subject to corporate income
tax at the statutory rate of 25%.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and
the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to any income
tax in the Cayman Islands and British Virgin Islands.

RIB(PEARKMBECEMEHREZENR
By - AP BRI (EEI5/KERIEIR R
BEMARSOWBARSGERBERR
EELERENEEFERERRER=
FRREEBR=FRFNOHEEE(T=
RERAFBBEE]D - RNER ZEW
BRAAREAEREXRZR-BFHBEE
BREAESEH LA BOREEEER
B BRB == RERGESE -

W B ES - BIXFHER - BEEE
B R 7 50 A [ 35 B A (B R I % T B Y 4
A1y (BAFE[2011]585%) + £ B A b 7 B
[ 3B K E T B A BB IR 15% K
BECEMSHBEEEH  AiRISWB
NEIRE B ETEPTE R 70 [ B B AR
EXBSAETNEXEE  mMABE
DEBIA G B A B 2K A K 70% A
J: °

REAB(PEARKMBEEEMEHR
EVSBRER - B LA THEBARE
REEFEN  AEBEANEMLHEL
BIZBR25% AT R R BN RPAEH -

RERSHSEMNEBRELESNARA R
R ARBEERSHS MEBRE XA
SHABMNERMSH

BEBEBRRRERRAR/ 2 —FEHE

171



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M EE

31 December 2021 —ZE=-—F+-A=+—H

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 10. FREBIF X (#)
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the R AN & B F (A 8 7 08 A A sl BRER
Group had no assessable profits derived from or earned in Hong JERBL R F - WA EETIRE A RS #
Kong during the year. & o
2021 2020
=—f —ZE_FTF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT
Current [HIEE
— Mainland China — FEAH 44,342 34,249
Deferred IRAE 87,722 103,033
Total tax charge for the year FABIAS BB 132,064 137,282
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax BRARTREKRBHHE AT MEBEK
at the statutory rate for the country in which the Company and BOE TE T R 5T B BV BR T B s A E B Y R
the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense AR ERERNEA TN HIAR Y
at the effective tax rate, and a reconciliation of the applicable B ARGERABE(BEER X ) SHER
rate (i.e., the statutory tax rate) to the effective tax rate, are as HEAEHERENT ¢
follows:
2021 2020
—E--F “E-BF
RMB’000 % RMB'000 %
AR®TT ARETT
Profit before tax Br B AT R A 550,245 607,539
Tax at the statutory tax rate BEEREFENHIE 137,561 25.0 151,885 250
Lower tax rates for specific provinces 15 E 4 7 5k & 1 BT 1 B
or enacted by local authority B MBIER X (37,374) (6.8) (48,679) (8.0)
Expenses not deductible for tax N 2,233 0.4 1,559 0.2
Tax losses not recognised RERBEER 30,222 515 32,566 5.4
Tax losses utilised from previous B AR BEMNHEER
periods (2,697) (0.5) (3,116) 0.5
Reversal of tax losses recognised 71t HIRHER M 7%
in previous periods BERE 3,968 0.7 1,690 0.3
Tax effect of disposal of subsidiaries HEM BRI 2 (2,454) (0.4) (485) 0.1)
Profits and losses attributable to A& EREE A F
joint ventures and associates e 605 0.1 1,862 0.3
Tax charge at the Group's BRASEERBEFER
effective rate Biig it 132,064 24.0 137,282 226
The share of tax attributable to associates and joint ventures DMEBERNTIRESPEEEHNBEAR
amounting to negative RMB480,000 (2020: RMB838,000) is 480000 —ZE 2 F: AR
included in “Share of profits and losses of associates” and “Share 838,0007T) R IEEmAH [ D58 & A 7
of profits and losses of joint ventures” in profit or loss. BRI DEEEhEEF B TARE -
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31 December 2021 —ZE=-—F+-A=+—H

11. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO M. BRAEEBREEREARGE

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE R 2 F
PARENT
The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based BREARBFNSCENERERNTGATE
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders BREZEBEAAELGGANNFRNEEITE
of the parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary B INFEE S 2,139,735,000 % (==
shares of 2,139,735,000 (2020: 2,100,877,000) in issue during the — & :2,100,877,000 %) (EHE AR
year, as adjusted to reflect the rights issue during the year. MLaEREIR) 5T E
The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue BE T -_—FK_FT-_FTF+=-A
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. =+—RHIEFE AEBUWESETE
S LR -
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are FREAREERF DENATFIER
based on: &
2021 2020
—E-—F —T-TF
RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT

Earnings: B
Profit attributable to ordinary equity ARFTESREANEERN A
holders of the parent used in the basic BRAREBERTAA
and diluted earnings per share FEAG i A
calculations 412,752 470,488
Number of shares
ROEE
2021 2020
=—f —E_TF
Shares: 8
Weighted average number of ordinary b #iﬂx%ﬂ‘&%%ﬁ’ﬂm
shares in issue during the year used in the FRE#ETE B
basic and diluted earnings per share hnkEFE
calculation 2,139,735,000 2,100,877,000

BERFRRERAR/ T —FERSE
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31 December 2021 —ZE=-—F+-A=+—H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. 1% - BERRE
31 December 2021 —E-—-#+=-A=+—H
Buildings Office
and other equipment  Construction
infrastructure Machinery ~ and others in progress Total
BEREM BARE
EWRIE HE Rt EEIR -

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB000
ARBTR AR®TR ARMTR ARETR ARETR

At 1 January 2021: RZZZ-5-A—-H:

Cost AR 101,206 46,897 38,594 19,402 206,099

Accumulated depreciation ZEMERAE

and impairment (35,306) (22,557) (28,764) - (86,627)

Net carrying amount RHFE 65,900 24,340 9,830 19,402 119,472
At 1 January 2021, net of WZE=—-%¥-A—-8"

accumulated depreciation Mk 2TITE LRE

and impairment 65,900 24,340 9,830 19,402 119,472
Additions NE - 91 967 1 1,059
Disposals HeE = (98) (545) = (643)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 31)  (HEMBAA (FizE31) (18,392) (18,886) - (10,185) (47,463)
Depreciation provided FRTERRE

during the year (3,313) (955) (2,546) - (6,814)
Capital contribution from a FERRRTE

non-controlling shareholder 1,173 - - - 1,173
Transfer from construction in BEERIRREA

progress 7,318 - - (7,318) -
At 31 December 2021, net of RW-ZE-—%+-A=1+-8"

accumulated depreciation Nk 2HTERAE

and impairment 52,686 4,492 7,706 1,900 66,784
At 31 December 2021: RZE-—F%+-A=+—H:

Cost XA 85,866 22,915 37,943 1,900 148,624

Accumulated depreciation ZEMERAE

and impairment (33,180) (18,423) (30,237) - (81,840)
Net carrying amount ERTE 52,686 4,492 7,706 1,900 66,784
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31 December 2021 —ZE=-—F+-A=+—H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. 1% - BERRE @
(Continued)
31 December 2020 —E-—Ta+-—F=+—§
Buildings Office
and other equipment  Construction
infrastructure Machinery and others in progress Total
BFREM MORE
AR s REfM ERIR L

RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARBTE  ARETR ARRTT ARBTT ARETR

At 1 January 2020: RZEZZE-A-H:

Cost A 105,821 47,566 38,050 20,276 211,713

Accumulated depreciation SEENAE

and impairment (30,405) (19,618) (27,018) - (77,041)

Net carrying amount KEFE 75,416 27948 11,032 20,276 134,672
At 1 January 2020, net of RZBZZE-A-H"

accumulated depreciation MR EFINERRE

and impairment 75,416 27,948 11,032 20,276 134,672
Additions NE - 621 624 2 1,247
Disposals e (269) - (573) - (842)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 31)  tH&—HBAR (1331 (180) (861) (17) - (1,058)
Depreciation provided during ~ ERFEEE

the year (4,991) (3,368) 2,112 - (10,471)
Transferred to investment BRERBNE

properties (4,076) - - - (4,076)
Transfer from construction in BERTIREA

progress - - 876 (876) -
At 31 December 2020, net of N_E-ZF+-A=+-H-

accumulated depreciation k& ERAE

and impairment 65,900 24,340 9,830 19,402 119,472
At 31 December 2020: RIEZZET-A=1-H:

Cost %N 101,206 46,897 38,594 19,402 206,099

Accumulated depreciation SETENAE

and impairment (35,306) (22,557 (28,764) - (86,627)
Net carrying amount RHFE 65,900 24,340 9,830 19,402 119,472
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31 December 2021

12.

13.

—E-—F+=-R=+—H

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

At 31 December 2021, certain of the Group's buildings with a net
carrying amount of approximately RMB13,619,000 (2020:
RMB15,447,000) were pledged to secure certain interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings granted to the Group (note 28). As
the payments of the land use rights for the buildings cannot be
separated reliably from the payments for the purchase of office
buildings, the entire payments are included in the costs of the
relevant buildings.

Certain infrastructure with a net carrying amount as at 31
December 2021 of approximately RMB10,903,000 (2020:
RMB11,541,000) is situated on a piece of land which is legally
owned by the non-controlling shareholder of Jilin Kangda
Environmental Protection Company Limited (“Jilin Kangda”), a
subsidiary of the Group. The subsidiary is contractually authorised
to use the land without charge throughout its operating period.

LEASES

The Group as a lessee

The Group leases certain land properties and one office property
under operating lease arrangements with leases negotiated for
terms ranging from 1 to 18 years. Generally, the Group is

12.

13.

M BERRKE®

R-ZZ-—_—®F+=-A=+—H8 ' ~5%H
REFELNABARK 13,619,000 (==
—TE AR¥15,447,00070) HE T8
FERFER TAEEE T EEBITR
HAabERER(H5E28) - R LH(F
ARNMNRELTSEHEEERQEF
R DB 2B AT AR E
FRA o

NZ_E-—F+=-A=+—8" @EE@
EX A ARE10,903,000(ZE =
AE#11,541,00070) By & T AR Eﬂzi’]
IR AL B E QR &R ERR
*ﬁﬁi/&ﬂ(ﬁa‘%}%%ﬁ%#%@ﬁﬁ%%é
EHEAN—IELI L - ZWEB AR

AR RER R (E EMHﬁFﬁﬁa%fiﬁmif@

HE

AEEEREEA
AERRBEELEBERHEEET it
MER—BHANE  BEHTHRN

wricted f o 4 sublessing the | 4 . F—ZE2+N\F-—KME  AEEHR
restricted from assigning and subleasin e leased assets . .
. 9ning 9 ST E A E R R T A EE S
outside the Group.
EOMNE]
(a) Right-of-use assets (a) BEAREE )
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets ALKERFANEBEEENERET
and the movements during the year are as follows: BERESHMT
Land Office Total
T i WAZE &5t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFTT ARETT
As at 1 January 2020 R-E-ZTF—H—H 1,465 1,796 3,261
Additions NG - 558 558
Depreciation charge WERY (75) (1,857) (1,932)
As at 31 December 2020 and R-IEBE-ZTF
1 January 2021 TZA=+—BR
—E-—F—H—H 1,390 497 1,887
Additions NG 114 - 114
Depreciation charge TERX (96) (187) (283)
As at 31 December 2021 RZEBEZ—F
+-—A=+—8H 1,408 310 1,718
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13. LEASES (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Lease liabilities

—E-—F+=ZA=+—H

The carrying amount of lease liabilities (included under
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings) and the
movements during the year are as follows:

13.

HE @)

REBERABA (E)

(b) HERME

RER - HERE(E
T REMES) WEREENRESH N

SHEHBR

I
2021 2020
—E-—fF ZEEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARETT
Carrying amount at 1 January N—A—HBREEE 2,241 3,938
New leases HEE 114 558
Accretion of interest recognised FAEREF B0
during the year 98 237
Covid-19-related rent concessions kg AR EL 2019 FH A
from lessors Ak ERAEENESESR - (89)
Payments (B (243) (2,403)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—HWEEE 2,210 2,241
Analysed into: FaR)iNe
Current portion RVERER 5> (335) (310)
Non-current portion FERNERE (1,875) (1,931)

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note

39 to the financial statements.

The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to

HE B BN DRI RER N

39 EE -

(0 REAEABNEZTRIANSE

leases are as follows: mE
2021 2020
—E=-—F —E-TF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTFT
Interest on lease liabilities HEAENE 98 237
Depreciation charge of right-of-use FREESENERY
assets 283 1,932
Expense relating to short-term leases  E25C HATH E#HRI AV & 286 409
Covid-19-related rent concessions R E HE A BB 2019 37 EY
from lessors TARREM A IEENESES - (89)
Total amount recognised in RIBEERNE S
profit or loss 667 2,489
RERBIRRBRAR / T Z—FERSE
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31 December 2021

13.

14.

—E-—F+=ZA=+—H

LEASES (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(d) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 32(c) to
the financial statements.

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties consisting of four
commercial properties under operating lease arrangements. The
terms of the leases generally require the tenants to pay security
deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments according to
the then prevailing market conditions. Rental income less
depreciation of investment properties recognised by the Group
during the year was RMB490,000 (2020: RMB536,000), details of
which are included in notes 5 and 6 to the financial statements.

At 31 December 2021, the undiscounted lease payments
receivable by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants are as follows:

13. HE W)

REBEREEA ()

(d) %ﬁgﬁl\]iﬁi/mﬁj “AEE Y B B TS R

ZRPEE 32(c)

REEERBEA

AEERBEEERE ?TJFTH,
X(BRENEFAYE) -

“ﬂH :U]]HI

HEEY
RGBT

zzjifﬁ}f'fﬂ‘ﬂ% il I*EFE?E%E’J

MRERABRES - AEEFARER
E’ﬁﬂ%ﬂﬂlki)ﬁi&ﬁ%%ﬁ%%kﬁﬁ%
490,000 L (ZE =T : AR¥ 536,000

JC) + HEF

EE NI ERRMFES K6 -

KRB —F+-A=+— EI REE

E2E H PRI A A A A

EHETH

RIRHE R WCR B R A E SR T -

2021 2020
== ﬂi —= —gfﬁ
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T AREFIT
Within one year —FR 1,504 1,440
After one year but within two years —FERERFA 1,456 1,504
After two years but within three years MERB=ZFA 1,325 1,456
After three years but within four years =FREIFA 628 1,325
After four years but within five years MR ERFA 456 628
After five years AF1E 952 1,408
6,321 7,761

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 14. REEERTINEBE
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR® T AREFIT
Share of net assets SMEFEE 366,332 364,798
Goodwill on acquisition WEnmE 10,441 10,441
376,773 375,239
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14. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Particulars of the associates are as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE I EwAR M EE

31 December 2021

14. REBEERNTINRE (8

BRAEZE AR

Percentage of
Issued and equity interest
Place of incorporation fully paid- attributable to
Company name registration and operation up capital the Group  Principal activities
GRS AR REBES
BLREENY BRTRHERE RERSL TEXH

Jiangsu Eastern Biological Sludge PRC/Mainland China RMB35,000,000 49 Treatment of sludge in rivers
Treatment Engineering Co., Ltd. and lakes
("Eastern Sludge Treatment”)

(IER A ERERIRARAR)!

IHRNERBRIRARRT E/ BN A% 35,000,000 AR R T REE
(MRAEEER])

Zhongyuan Water Group Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000,000 31 Construction, operation and
("Zhongyuan Shuiwu”) management of
(RRABERERAR)! environment protection

and infrastructure projects

PRABERERRAA /PR ABRH500,000,000 ¢ BR BEREERRR
(T Rk ) ERREER

Fuzhou Fuhe River Investment & PRC/Mainland China RMB300,000,000 24 Investment, construction,
Development Co., Ltd. (“Fuzhou Fuhe") operation and management
(BNFETRAREREERAA) of municipal projects

ENmETREREREERAF hE /e AR 300,000,000 RE BR BER
([T ]) BEMHER

Sichuan Kangda Zhonghuan Municipal PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 30 Design and consulting of
Engineering Design Co., Ltd. construction projects
("Sichuan Zhonghuan”)

(M EErETRIRSHERAR)!

W) REPRT R IR R e/ hER AFEH5,000,0007C BRAE R R
ARAR(TMIIFRR])

Leping Hehu Ecological Environmental PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 44 Construction, operation and
Treatment Co., Ltd. ("Leping Hehu") management of
(EFmHERRE R EERAR) environment protection

and infrastructure projects

RFTAREERAREERAT hE/ PR ARE500000007C BR EEREERRRR

(T8Fma))

#

The names of these companies referred to in this report represent

management’s best effort at translating the Chinese names of the companies

registered in Mainland China, as no English names have been registered.

ERREER

FI A o B 3 AT A A RS S A T 2 X
Mo ARERANZSEATNEHDEREER
NEFEP ARG -
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31 December 2021

14. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

—E-—F+=-R=+—H

14. REBEE RNTINRE (8

The percentages of voting power held and profit sharing are the

same as the percentages of equity interest attributable to the

Group. The Group's shareholdings in the associates comprise

equity shares held through wholly-owned subsidiaries of the

Company.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial

information in respect of some investments in associates, which

are individually material, reconciled to their carrying amounts in

the consolidated financial statements:

FBREEMENDEH A DL RARE
BEE R RE B D AR - NREBERE
ERANEEBEARRZENB AR
FrA RS o

TRFARDE @R BRI E QA
MR B BELRA M B RERTOEREEY
RIS ERBLE -

2021 2020
—BC-f —_T_EF
Fuzhou  Zhongyuan Fuzhou Zhongyuan
Fuhe Shuiwu Fuhe Shuiwu
N S5 FEREXE SN HRIKH
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T AR®T R AREFTT AREFTT
Current assets REAE 558,413 194,364 775,805 235,969
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,645,719 453,611 1,455,160 460,501
Current liabilities mEaE (280,162) (17,971) (250,655) (78,547)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (1,292,570) (160,581) (1,348,910) (153,545)
Net assets EEFE 631,400 469,423 631,400 464,378
Reconciliation to the Group's e N
interests in the associates: SR
Proportion of the Group's REBOMRARELH
ownership 24% 31% 24% 31%
Group's share of net assets REEDEEE AR
of the associates FRE 151,536 145,521 151,536 143,957
Carrying amount of the REREA
investments 151,536 145,521 151,536 143,957
Revenue g = 51,074 - 39,541
Profit/(loss) for the year FREF(FE) - 5,045 - (739)
Total comprehensive income FRNEEKRSEE
from the year - 5,045 - (739)
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—E-—F+=-R=+—H

14. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

15.

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information

14.

REBENTNRE (8
TEIRLIEENEANAEBY LA

of the Group's associates that are not individually material: AN E BT IEE R
2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-TF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT
Share of the associates’ loss for the year D& N G F R EE (1,834) (2,459)
Share of the associates’ total PRk ay: AN TN Gt
comprehensive income (1,834) (2,459)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's ZN& BB L A AR E R
investments in the associates RHE®E 79,716 79,746
INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 15. REELENRE
2021 2020
:—ﬂi —= —;EE'E
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETT
Share of net assets TMEEEE 82,009 84,159

Particulars of the joint ventures are as follows:

BREAELERNFELT

Percentage of

Issued and  equity interest

Place of registration fully paid-up attributable to Principal

Company name and operation capital the Group activities
AEEEA

DAEH BREREXELH ERTRBZRE REBSE FEEK

Zibo Tiangiyuan Water Supply Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB5,190,000 49  Central water supply
("Tiangiyuan”) Mainland China
CEEmRERBKBERRA)!

BT R MK PR BN ARH¥5,190,000 7T RREK
BRAR(TREH])

Gaomi Kangrui Environmental Protection ~ PRC/ RMB28,000,000 50 Sale and maintenance
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Gaomi Kangrui") Mainland China of environmental
(BEMEmRREHBRAR)! protection equipment

BEMREINRRER e/ R A AR HERRE
BRAR(BEER]) 28,000,000 7T RIRRE

#

management's best effort in translating the Chinese names of the companies
registered in Mainland China, as no English names have been registered.

The names of these companies referred to in this report represent

#

MR B A T ) A B3 B R M A XA

W ARERANZER
NBFEPR ARG -

RaBEEER

BEBEBRRRERRAR/ 2 —FEHE
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15. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)  15. EAA%ﬁiﬂ’J?xﬁ &)

The above investments are held through wholly-owned WG E TE B AN R R EN B A R
subsidiaries of the Company. "ﬁ_ o
The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information TRI R IFEFEREANAERS L1
of the Group's joint ventures that are not individually material: A HTBEER -
2021 2020
—E-—fF ZETF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARMTR  ARETFR
Share of the joint ventures' loss for the year D& &> EF AEIE (2,150) (4,761)
Share of the joint ventures' total SMEEEREEEKRERE
comprehensive income (2,150) 4,761)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's REBN A E P EIRER
investments in the joint ventures AR 4218 82,009 84,159

16. EQUITY INVESTMENTS DESIGNATED AT FAIR 16. EE AR A ET AEM4ZE

VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE KERERE
INCOME
2021 2020
—E-—& —EZTF
RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARBFR ARETT

Equity investments designated at fair value f§ & A AFEFAEMEE

through other comprehensive income W IR IR E
Unlisted equity investments, at fair value  JE FTIRERE @ LA FE 248,000 338,000
During the year, the loss, net of tax, in respect of the Group's REA - RAEBRFREEEEBR
equity investments in Zhongyuan Asset Management Co., Ltd. NAWBRERENBE(HERTE) AR
recognised in other comprehensive income amounted to 76,500,000 7T B 58 7 H fth 2 T U &
RMB76,500,000 (2020: loss in other comprehensive income (ZE-FF  Hv2EBEFHEEA
amounted to RMB21,250,000). FR#21,250,0007T) °
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17. SERVICE CONCESSION INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. BILEE — BrKER
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETIT
Cost at 1 January, net of accumulated R—HA—BHRAE -
amortisation FOBR 2T 5 1,133,188 802,417
Additions NG 154,100 388,641
Amortisation provided during the year FEREHIRE Y (63,925) (57,870)
Disposal He (138,857) -
At 31 December Rt+—A=+—H 1,084,506 1,133,188
At 31 December: R+—A=+—H
Cost B%N 1,308,905 1,293,662
Accumulated amortisation Sty (224,399) (160,474)
Net carrying amount BREFE 1,084,506 1,133,188

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's service concession
intangible assets with a carrying value of RMB1,033,590,000 (2020:
RMB937,310,000) were pledged to secure certain interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings granted to the Group (note 28).

RZE-_—F+_A=1+—0  x5H
IREE AR 1,033,590,000 T (—F -
& AR#937,310,0007T) M E B E
— B EERDRBERTASEST
ETBERTT M EME AR (F5E28) -

BRRREARLAR/ T —FERE
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18. GOODWILL

—E-—F+=-R=+—H

18. &

Cash-generating units
REFEEEN
Manufacture of

Waste water  chemicals for

treatment waste water
plant treatment Total
EESKEE
5K EE K FrR{t2m e
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT ARETT
2020 ZECTF
Cost and carrying amount at RZFEZFTF—H—HH
1 January 2020 B K BRI B 58,325 1,894 60,219
At 31 December 2020 RZZEZZF
+=-A=+—8H0 58,325 1,894 60,219
2021 —T-—fF
Cost at 1 January 2021, netof R ZZTE=-—F—HF—HHK
accumulated impairment RN - ik 2EHEE 58,325 1,894 60,219
Impairment during the year FRRE - (1,894) (1,894)
Cost and net carryingamount R Z-ZZE-—F—HF—HHN
at 31 December 2021 AN K BREF (B 58,325 = 58,325
At 31 December 2021: RZE——F
+=ZA=+—8:
Cost AR 58,325 1,894 60,219
Accumulated impairment 2EHRE - (1,894) (1,894)
Net carrying amount EREDF(E 58,325 - 58,325
Impairment testing of goodwill BERENR

Goodwill acquired through business combinations in the amount
of approximately RMB60,219,000 as at 31 December 2021 has
been allocated to the cash-generating units of “waste water
treatment plant” and “the manufacture of chemicals for waste
water treatment” for impairment testing.

The recoverable amounts of the cash-generating units of “waste
water treatment plant” and “the manufacture of chemicals for
waste water treatment” have been determined based on a value
in use calculation using cash flow projections based on a financial
budget covering a three-year period approved by the Group.
The pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is
10.67%.

R F+_A=1+—"HEBEB
BN E LY AR 60,219,0007T
Bl E [V5KEERR] & [ HESFKE
BATAER] ReEEBMIERER

Al

[VEKERE] & [ EESKERAL
BRIReELBEMMNATKESEDR
BERAUAEEMEN=FHTREE
BEENRSRERAGFTENFEAER
BT - e mE T80 AR AIELIR X
£10.67% °

KANGDA INTERNATIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL COMPANY LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2021

\



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE I EwAR M EE

31 December 2021 —ZE=-—F+-A=+—H

18. GOODWILL (Continued) 18. %%(Zﬁ%

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

AERENR (&)

In the annual goodwill impairment assessment, the Group RARFEEHERENET  XEERE

concluded that the carrying amount of “the manufacture of fiéﬁ*ﬂéﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ:%uuj R ERE(E
chemicals for waste water treatment” exceeded its recoverable BEOKE 28 TRAEE_ZE-—F
amount and recorded impairment losses of RMB 1,894,000 during +=-—A=+—8H ﬁifﬁ SEEEE A

the year ended 31 December 2021.

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the
“waste water treatment plant” and “the manufacture of chemicals
for waste water treatment” cash-generating units for 31
December 2021. The following describes each key assumption on
which management has based its cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine the
value assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the average
gross margins achieved in the year immediately before the
budget year, increased for expected efficiency improvements,
and expected market development.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are before tax and
reflect specific risks relating to the relevant units.

Price inflation — The basis used to determine the value assigned
to price inflation is the forecast price indices during the budget
year for the relevant markets.

The values assigned to the key assumptions on market
development of waste water treatment plant and the manufacture
of chemicals for waste water treatment, discount rates and price
inflation are consistent with external information sources.

R #1,894,000 7T °

FE T —F+ZA=+—HI)3XK
J‘Ei%fj N [EEEKERER AL SR
fﬁé?i%hﬁ’]@é%ﬁ‘iﬁﬁqaﬁﬁﬁfﬁx

TK%EHLT EEEREHEESRE
%E/HIJ TRZERENZRNSEERRRK

HREENE —BENRTREENEN
BEMRANEESERBEFEN —
FRAMBEROFHENE - gRBEHD
MEERLETT R IR T 5B R A AN o

MEE — FRMBAERARNGRE YR
R A BA B AL R4S E AR

BBk — ARNEEDETERERE
ENEESHEMT SR EEFENTER
L

7 B T 5 7K B 3 R Ko A B S 7K B 3R P R
fEEmnmBER  MAXRERBR
M EZRRERINTER AR 2K -
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19. FINANCIAL RECEIVABLES 19. EREWRRIE

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETIT

Receivables for service concession BRES S R & HE
arrangements FEU FhIE 10,980,465 10,008,498
Impairment A (2,253) (1,801)
10,978,212 10,006,697
Portion classified as current assets DEAERSEESD (1,878,059) (1,692,798)
Non-current portion FERNERER > 9,100,153 8,313,899

Receivables for service concession arrangements arose from the
service concession contracts to build and operate WTPs or STPs
and were recognised to the extent that the Group has an
unconditional contractual right to receive cash from or at the
direction of the Grantor.

Financial receivables were unbilled receivables, mainly due from
governmental authorities in Mainland China, as the Grantors in
respect of the Group's service concession arrangements. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements

RBFFFELLHREVFAELEBRER
Ko iE 25K BRI R 305 e B T R ) AR 75
FRrReaRth  YNASERA ERN
BRENBR T AR T ANERK
BUIR & B HERR

TREBREARSRAZEEFE T2
AW BEABTHENTRIR - B
BT R R AN SR B IR A 1 AT E R
BTN - AEBY BERZFERTAE

over these balances. Financial receivables represent contract

assets as the rights to considerations have yet to be

unconditional.

EARNEMEERTEM - £ RUE
WHRIBERAKNEE  RAZKIAED

R 1) AR A B AR ©

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of financial SRIEWRIERERBEBREESHMT
receivables are as follows:

2021 2020
—E=-—F —E-THF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARETTT
At beginning of year F4) 1,801 -
Impairment losses BIEEE 452 1,801
At end of year FR 2,253 1,801

KANGDA INTERNATIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL COMPANY LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2021

\



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE I EwAR M EE

31 December 2021 —ZE=-—F+-A=+—H

19. FINANCIAL RECEIVABLES (Continued) 19. ERBEWRIE @)
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using BESMRNSME AR AR EEEE

a provision matrix. The provision matrix is initially based on the
probabilities of default rates which are estimated based on
historical observed default rates and published credit ratings of
credit bonds issued in Mainland China. The calculation reflects
the probability-weighted outcome, and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date

T BBEEEDZVREBEENERR
FEARBEEITEEEFNEAMEER
AR B OB R EH c AT ERBR
BERNEGER RN RE B AR SNAERE
BEEE  EMRREATREEERR
BHONEERAIEER -

about past events, current conditions and forward-looking credit
risk information.

The increase in the loss allowance was due to the increase in the

E B RHE L N TH B A AR TS R AP A & R BE
gross carrying amount of the receivables for service concession FEWFENEREETERBOTERH
A B IS ANFTEL

arrangements mainly attributable to the commencement of
operations of BOT projects.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure

FRASESREURAENEERRE

on the Group's financial receivables: HE5ImT
2021 2020
== ﬂi — —%éf'z
Expected credit loss rate TBEMEEEER 0.02% 0.02%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) FEAE(ARETT) 10,980,465 10,008,498
Expected credit losses (RMB’000) EHEEBER(ARETT) 2,253 1,801

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's financial receivables with a
carrying value of RMB7,120,278,000 (2020: RMB7,168,543,000)
were pledged to secure certain interest-bearing bank and other

RZEZ—F+ZA=+—H ~5H
BREEARE7,120,278,000 (= E-F
&0 AR¥7,168,543,0007T) )5 B FE UL
FEBEIFER FAEESE T BRTT
N E AR R (FisE28) -

borrowings granted to the Group (note 28).
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188

20. DEFERRED TAX 20. IEZERIE
The deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised by the Group, NEBAREERANELEHRBEEELE
and the movements thereon, during the year are as follows: SLARESBHINT -
31 December 2021 —E-—-H+=-HA=+—H
Transaction
costs for
interest-
bearing bank
Service borrowings One-off
concession and corporate deduction
arrangements bonds  of machinery Total
TTERT
ERR
PRAAF T AEEHH HaEm
e REBAE — R st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET R ARET T ARBT T
Deferred tax liabilities ELERIBEEE
At 31 December 2020 RZTZEF
+-A=+—H (888,077) (22,001) (182) (910,260)
Deferred tax charged to profit FREERNRE
or loss during the year EERIE (93,697) 4,192 (90) (89,595)
Deferred tax liabilities HEH B AR R
derecognised from the BLVEEE
disposal of the subsidiaries (1,747) - - (1,747)
At 31 December 2021 NZEZ—
+-R=+—8H (983,521) (17,809) (272) (1,001,602)
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20. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

20. RIEFHIE (&)

Fair value
adjustments
of the equity
investments
Fair value Losses  designated at
adjustments available for fair value
arising from  Impairment of offsetting  through other
acquisitionof  financial and  against future ~ comprehensive
asubsidiary contract assets taxable profits income Total
A
BOTVEFA
WiE-% TRREH  HtzEks
WEAREL ERREN RRERB HRERE
NATESE EERE RANEE NV ERE @zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT ARET T ARETT ARET T
Deferred tax assets BRERBAE
At 31 December 2020 R-E-ZF+-A=1+-H 229 2,184 53,723 24,900 81,036
Deferred tax credited to equity FRFARSHELRE
during the year - - - 13,500 13,500
Deferred tax charged to profitor R & B MR AELHE
loss during the year (16) - 1,889 - 1,873
At 31 December 2021 RIBZ-F+-A=1-8H 213 2,184 55,612 38,400 96,409
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20. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 20. EREM A (&)
31 December 2020 TE-EFE+-_A=1+—H
Transaction
costs for
interest-
bearing bank
Service borrowings One-off
concession  and corporate deduction
arrangements bonds  of machinery Total
ATRRTT
E N
PR 3T RAEHH =AY
rawh LTS — R st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TT AR®TT AR®TT AR®TT
Deferred tax liabilities BEEHEEE
At 31 December 2019 RZZE—-hF
+-A=+—H (803,341) (17,169) (60) (820,570)
Deferred tax charged to profit FREBRMBRE
or loss during the year EETIE (84,736) (4,832) (122) (89,690)
At 31 December 2020 R-E-TF
+=ZA=+—H (888,077) (22,001) (182) (910,260)
Fair value
adjustments
of the equity
investments
Fair value Losses  designated at
adjustments available for fair value
arisingfrom  Impairment of offsetting  through other
acquisition of financialand ~ againstfuture  comprehensive
asubsidiary  contract assets  taxable profits income Total
RER
BRTFEA
W% IRREH  EtiEka
WEAREL ERRAH ARERH HRERE
MRTEEE BERE aNHER NHERE it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AREFT AREFT ARETT
Deferred tax assets BRERBAE
At 31 December 2019 RZF-NE+-A=1-H 244 2,184 67,051 21,150 90,629
Deferred tax credited to equity FERFAESH
during the year EREFHA - - - 3,750 3,750
Deferred tax charged to profitor  ER B ERIKRH
loss during the year EEFHIA (15) - (13,328) - (13,343)
At 31 December 2020 RZE_ZE+-A=+-H 229 2,184 53723 24,900 81,036
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20. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 20. EAEHE )

The Group also has tax losses arising in Mainland China of
RMB289,511,000 (2020: RMB280,554,000) that will expire in one to
five years for offsetting against future taxable profits.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in
Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008
and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5% or 10%. The
Group is therefore liable to withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in
respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 December 2021, no deferred tax liability has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable on
unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the
Group's subsidiaries established in Mainland China. In the
opinion of the directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries
will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future. The
aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred
tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled approximately
RMB3,428,807,000 at 31 December 2021 (2020:
RMB2,975,947,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment
of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

NEBFEFRAMELHREBEAR
#289,511,000L(ZE = F : AR
280,554,0007T) * A —ERFAEM
AR R EERBUEF o

REB(PEARKMBECERAEBIE)
ERBE AR OINERE D E RS
KREETRORESBUI0%N I -
ZHREE —TENF-A-HEERY
BRAR-_ZZLFT _A=+—BRE
R RA o fis i B A BE BN IR E A
EBrRAERZHERARBERRARE
EFEMBERGHR - AEEERLER
5% 10% » At - NREBEAERZFET
BAtKZHBARRE — T NF—
A—BEELNER TP KRS AR
B o

RZEZ—F+=_A=+—H &
REERA B E R A BB A R ES
MTEFNFL A R B 1 2 B A M TE 0 T A
RAMEEHBEE -EZRE #5
WEARRAERRKTAIEDIKE B
B - RZFE=-_—F+=-_A=+—8"
BB ARENBARMNIEE S BNER
MEEABE(HMARUHERELEHEA
FZA%%EAE%M%&Wwwﬂ—
TFTE 0 ARBE2,975,947,0007T) °

745 8 1 A SRR 7583 4 B 5 E )

PRSI E -
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31 December 2021 —ZE=-—F+-A=+—H

21. EZBUREREBERERE

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-TF

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARET T ARETIT

Trade receivables Z 5 WA 1,820,962 1,555,762
Bills receivable R ZE % = 627
Impairment BIE (44,402) (29,366)
1,776,560 1,527,023

The Group's major customers are the PRC government
authorities or agencies. The Group not only provides construction
service and operation service pursuant to its service concession
arrangements, but also provides construction service under other
construction service projects.

Trade and bills receivables represent the unsettled amounts
being billed to the customers in accordance with the terms
specified in the contracts governing the relevant transactions.
The Group does not have a standardised and universal credit
period granted to the construction service customers. The credit
period for individual customers of construction service is
considered on a case-by-case basis. Trade receivables are non-
interest-bearing.

Included in the Group's trade receivables are amounts due from
the Group's joint ventures and associates of nil (2020: nil) and
RMB209,649,000 (2020: 225,254,000), respectively, which are
repayable on credit terms similar to those offered to the major
customers of the Group.

At 31 December 2021, the Group's trade receivables with a
carrying value of RMB777,488,000 (2020: RMB748,253,000) were
pledged to secure certain interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings granted to the Group (note 28).

AEENEEEP STEBTHERN
# e K’EIT@?FETFﬁHEF%ﬁ?&%
BRI RS B2 IRAS - TR HEE
b2 HIW‘IEETE']% % ARTS ©

B 5 RWFIERERREERERE R
AR S A XI5 R G R E P
B R 4B R © AN B\ AR Hfﬁé‘
EPELG—RENERE - @5
REEFPHOERADNZENEZEEZR -
B RKFIARE

ZIK‘%@E’JT%JEH&?HIE BIEE A EE

BErERBERNTIRELIAE(ZE
_?i D) AR 209,649,000 7T (=
T T4 ARM225254,0007T) ¢ #%
EREZAEEREETFRENAMU

EEFRER -

/=

R_E-_—F+-A=+—8 ~5£H
IREEARKT777,488000C(—E =&
F: ARMET48,253,0007T ) B E 5 e UL
FEOHTER TASEEE T B8R
N E M ERA R (F3E28) o
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21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 21. ESRRRIEREREE @)
An ageing analysis of the Group's trade receivables as at the end RERR - RIEZEZHE LK EE
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss BiEE ANEENE FERTIBNER
allowance, is as follows: DT -

2021 2020
=B —F —ETTF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT
Within 3 months 3EAN 411,569 432,308
4 to 6 months 4AZ 61 A 241,979 245,572
7 to 12 months 7E12{8A 401,819 287,593
Over 12 months @128 A 721,193 560,923
1,776,560 1,526,396
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade 2 2 RERFIERENEEREZESHNT ¢
receivables are as follows:
2021 2020
—E_—fF —E-F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT
At beginning of the year REA) 29,366 7,265
Impairment losses, net BEERFE 26,404 22,459
Amount written off as uncollectible EE AW B miZiEe & 58 (11,368) (358)
At end of the year NER 44,402 29,366

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using
a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The
provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of
various customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by
geographical region, product type, customer type and rating,
and coverage by letters of credit or other forms of credit
insurance). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.

RERE A RRABEREETRED
o U EBEHMEEEE - BEXHE
REBBEUEBREX(ABE - EmnlE
Al BPERIRFF R RERBESREAM
FEERBRZANRESE) HZETPS
BRIV B A BEE o AT E R
AEMELER  EERBEERNRSE
BHERI S A BESE - EAiR R
ARREBEARTBRANSIER I SEER -
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21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 21. B RUREREREE @
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure TREIEBETRABREREOANERE
on the Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix: SEWHENEZERBHELR -

As at 31 December 2021 R=-B-_—-F+=-A=+—H
Within 4to6 7 to 12 Over
3 months months months 12 months Total
iR
3IEAR 4ZF6fEA 7E12MEA 1218 A Bt
Expected credit lossrate ~ FAHIE EEER 0.52% 1.75% 1.02% 4.48% 2.44%
Gross carrying amount MRERTEE
(RMB'000) (AREBTIT) 413,707 246,296 405,972 754,987 1,820,962
Expected credit losses TEEMEEEE
(RMB'000) (ARETIT) 2,138 4,317 4,153 33,794 44,402
As at 31 December 2020 R-E-_ZEF+-_A=+—H
Within 4to 6 7to 12 Over
3 months months months 12 months Total
bl
AN 4E6fEA 7E12MA 1218 7 a&f
Expected credit loss rate ~ FEHIEEEEXR 0.52% 0.82% 1.20% 3.70% 1.89%
Gross carrying amount RERTEE
(RMB'000) (AR®FT) 434,583 247,597 291,094 582,488 1,555,762
Expected credit losses EEEEERE
(RMB'000) (AR®TT) 2,275 2,025 3,501 21,565 29,366
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

31 December2021 —ZE-—HF+_-A=+—H

22. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

22. EFIA - HttERRIERE

OTHER ASSETS HEE
2021 2020
—E=-—F —E-TH
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®ET T ARETFIT
Loans to third parties EBEFE=ZTHNER 220,000 230,000
Deductible input VAT AR IS R E R IE 214,287 238,722
Deposits b 47,366 56,598
Prepayments TEfTRIE 30,962 53,382
Loans to a joint venture BT —HaEtENER 18,083 17,334
Staff advances BTI#H 4,015 3,706
Other receivables H o fE Y R IE 353,335 210,500
888,048 810,242
Impairment allowance BB (32,918) (19,080)
855,130 791,162
Portion classified as current assets DEAERBDEENTD (734,365) (617,705)
Non-current portion JERNHERER 120,765 173,457

BERFRRERAR/ T —FERSE
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22. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

OTHER ASSETS (Continued)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of other
receivables are as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M EE

31 December 2021 —ZE=-—F+-A=+—H

22. AR - HttERFERHE

EE &)
H b UK R IE R (B B IS 1B B B
—F:

2021 2020

=B —F —ETEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETT

At beginning of the year REH) 19,080 11,333
Impairment losses BEEE 17,295 7,875
Amount written off as uncollectible EE AW B miZiEn & 58 (3,457) (128)
At end of the year RER 32,918 19,080

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date by
considering the probability of default of comparable companies
with published credit ratings. As at 31 December 2021, the
probability of default applied ranged from 1.65% to 7.02% (2020:
0.94% to 2.00%) and the loss given default was estimated to be
100% (2020:100%). Included in the above provision for impairment
of other receivables is a provision for individually impaired other
receivables of RMB32,918,000 (2020: RMB19,080,000) with a
carrying amount before provision of RMB452,259,000 (2020:
RMB357,034,000).

Apart from described above, the financial assets included in the
above balances relate to receivables for which there was no
recent history of default and past due amounts. As at 31
December 2021 and 2020, the loss allowance was assessed to be
minimal.

BAESMTREREAHEREEAAD
N EEFARR AT B LB R R A E 498
i1 - RZEZ—F+=ZA=+—
H - FIEAMENBEN F1.65%%
702%(ZF ZFF : 094% £ 2.00%) -
MEXBERRGETA100%( —Z T F :
100%) o L it K i i U5 30 I8 8k B 75 4
BIET BB AR 32,918,000 T (==
T4 AR 19,080,000 7T ) KM@ BI 2 R
EE MR IE (AEL B # AT R EE
A ANR 452259000 ( —FE - FF
AFR#E 357,034,000 7T) ) BT {EHY B o

Br baitE oh - A Bt FEUR FOE AR R A
BRH) S RLE EE BT B0 HE R R 8% T8
HRBE RZE_—FR_ZE_ZF
+-A=+—8 ' EEREHMIARK -

KANGDA INTERNATIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL COMPANY LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2021

\



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE I EwAR M EE

31 December 2021 —ZE=-—F+-A=+—H

23. CONTRACT ASSETS

23. ENEE

31 December 31 December

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TH
+=-—B=+—H8 +=—A=+—H
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR® T AREFIT

Contract assets arising from: LATIEEMEEARNEGNEE -
Construction services 2R 1,974,400 2,297,650
Impairment R (1,365) (403)
1,973,035 2,297,247
Proportion classified as current assets NEERBEELD (323,761) (222,337)
Non-current portion JEBNERER > 1,649,274 2,074,910

Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue earned from
construction services as the receipt of consideration is conditional
on successful completion of construction. Included in contract
assets for construction services are retention receivables. Upon
completion of installation or construction and acceptance by the
customer, the amounts recognised as contract assets are
reclassified to intangible assets and contract assets included in
financial receivables under service concession arrangements and
operating concession for BOT arrangements and trade
receivables for other construction contracts when the rights to
considerations are unconditional. The decrease in contract assets
in 2021 was the result of completion of construction services.

HRRERFERKINE TR ATK
B AKEES B ERIRTS AT HRER AU
S EBTANBER - BRRBEOHE
ERRERRES - AL ERER
THEFEZMR  ERRENEENS
HENOBEENEE  ERERNS
BN AHNEERRERBEFLSE
LA N & BB WA K BOT & HF A8
LRFTRAREMERENNE S RIK
RBEZF - R_T_—FENEERD
TR R BRFE TR PSR

BEBEBRRRERRAR/ 2 —FEHE
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23. CONTRACT ASSETS (Continued)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of contract
assets are as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M EE

31 December 2021 —ZE=-—F+-A=+—H

23. EHNEE

BRNEEREBRBEESIT

2021 2020

—EB—-F —E-TF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT T AR¥EFIT

At beginning of the year F1) 403 -
Impairment losses,net B E 1R e 962 403
At end of the year FR 1,365 403

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using
the probability of default approach to measure expected credit
losses. The probabilities of default rates are estimated based on
default rates and published credit ratings of credit bonds issued
in Mainland China. The calculation reflects the probability-
weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forward-looking credit
risk information.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure
on the Group's contract assets:

BEDTNERSE BMRAENOR X
FETT L ETRHEEER - EOM
EDBRBEOERTEAMD EITEE
BEFNE XM EEFRMEF - ZER

PRI OSSR - SO R 0
EEHTANERAEEE  BARR
A S LR A 2 8 o
# o

BRASBEAENEENEERRERH
T

2021 2020

:—ﬂi — = —%éf'z

Expected credit loss rate TEEMEEBER 0.07% 0.02%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) BEmaE(ARKTIT) 1,974,400 2,297,650
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) EEEEEE (AREFIT) 1,365 403

At 31 December 2021, the Group's contract assets with a carrying
value of RMB274,223,000 (2020: RMB552,464,000) were pledged
to secure certain interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
granted to the Group (note 28).

Included in the Group’s contract assets are amounts due from
the Group's associates of RMB114,141,000 (2020: RMB4,413,000),
which are repayable on credit terms similar to those offered to
the major customers of the Group.

RZEZ—F+ZA=+—H ~5H
BEEEARK27422300T(ZE=-F
F: ANRMES52464,0007T) A B EE
ERFERTAEES T8 RITRE
fth & FRAIHER (BT 5k 28) ©

AEENENEERTRERIRAEERE
NARIEANRE114,141,0000( —F =
TE: ARMEA413,0007T)  ZERE
EASEREFERFREMNBLUEER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

31 December 2021

T —F+=ZA=+—H

24. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

25.

As at December 2021, bank wealth management products
amounting to RMB28,431,000 were purchased by the Group from
certain banks. They were mandatorily classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss as their contractual cash flows
were not solely payments of principal and interest. The aggregate
changes of fair value of the financial assets were immaterial since
their respective acquisition dates.

On 4 January 2022, the Group redeemed one bank wealth
management product amounting to RMB28,007,000.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
PLEDGED DEPOSITS

24.

25.

HivRBEemEE
RZZEZ—F+=ZH r&EEAETR
THERTEVER 2HEAARE
28,431,0007L - AR EAHNBSRET
[ARINASRFE - Bt ioasH5E
BEAFEFABRZNECREE - &8/
EEASABERURAFEEDAE
B o

R-E-__—F—AMNH  KEBEERL—
BRTEVER 28AARE
28,007,000 7T, °

RERAESEYRERER

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-TH

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR¥T T AREEFIT

Cash and bank balances IRe NIRTTH R 623,768 645,812

Less: Pledged deposits VB TR R (333,870) (215,550)

Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEEY 289,898 430,262
Cash and bank balances denominated in: LA T3 B HEMIR S MIRTTEAES ¢

—RMB — AR 214,112 425,446

— United States dollars = 75,341 3,268

— Hong Kong dollars —BT 445 1,548

Cash and cash equivalents HERIREEEBY 289,898 430,262

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies. However,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

ARBATABRLBREMLER - A
i AR ¥R B A HNE E AR TE DA R A
£ EEMIEEERTE AEERE
FERERENEINEXEBHRITHAR
BAMAEME -

BRRREARLAR/ T —FERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M EE

31 December 2021

25.

26.

—E-—F+=-R=+—H

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
PLEDGED DEPOSITS (Continued)

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying
periods of between one day and seven days depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at
the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank balances
and pledged deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks
with no recent history of default. The carrying amounts of cash
and cash equivalents and pledged deposits in the consolidated
statement of financial position approximate to their fair values.

At 31 December 2021, the Group's pledged deposits with a
carrying value of RMB67,430,000 (2020: nil) were pledged to
secure certain interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
granted to the Group (note 28).

At 31 December 2021, the Group's bills payable were secured by
the pledged deposits amounting to RMB228,224,000 (2020:
RMB169,305,000) (note 26).

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

Trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing. The credit
periods granted by each individual supplier are on a case-by-case
basis and are set out in the supplier contracts.

For retention money payables included in trade payables, in
respect of guarantees granted by the suppliers, the due dates
usually range from one to two years after the completion of the
construction work or the preliminary acceptance of equipment.

25.

26.

RERASE/YREAEK
()
BAREREESARTERARRIH
IR A8 - TR — K5
EXTE RFFEENARRSE
S 3R B 9 A T Y F R R R ER
FI8. o $R1T A58 RIKIRE SUF AN ER YD
ERORBNEBRITRT - RAMG
WARNAS RASSEWURERT
HEIR EE B A TEARE -

R_ZE-_—F+-_A=1+—8 A£EH
IREEA AR 6743000 (ZE -
FE)NEBTHRE TER  UERE
FAREENSE T ERITREME K (T
£¥28) °

R-_ZE-_—F+-_A=1+—H A£EH
B B =45 DA A R 5 228,224,000 7T ( =
T -FTF: AR¥169,3050007T) K E
IR RAEH IR (B 5k 26) ©

BEZRAREARENR

B 5 18 HR R TS - & 18
BRI B E A B TR T AR R
T - WRMAREEA LI o

SEHERE TRAEAFAE S ENKIE
MENREEME - AREBABEN
FERIBRIHINTRKRREER =
M o

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-TF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARETT

Bills payable (note (a)) e =R (BT EE (a)) 217,595 177,334
TOT payables (note (b)) TOT FEfI 1A (M3t (b)) 3,985 3,985
Trade payables B 5 ERNRIE 1,835,235 1,878,609
2,056,815 2,059,928

Less: Non-current portion R FERVEREL > 62 1,756
Current portion BNERER 7> 2,056,753 2,058,172
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

31 December 2021 —ZE—

—FtZA=1—H

26. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (Continued)

Notes:

(a) As at 31 December 2021, the Group's bills payable were secured by the
pledged deposits amounting to RMB228,224,000 (2020: RMB169,305,000).

(b) TOT payables represented amounts due to the Grantors based on payment

schedules set out in the relevant TOT contracts at the end of the year.

An ageing analysis of the Group's trade and bills payables as at

the end of the year is as follows:

26. ESERRIERESEE @)

GEE

(a) RIEB-—F+-A=+—8B rEENE
NERBE T REA KR8 228,224,000 L (= F
—EF : AR169,3050007T) #)HE A F
PRI o

(b)  TOTENFIERFRRZEIEMTOTA LI
B RR AT E RN R T AR -

RER AEBEZRNRERENE

BEEOREDOMAT

2021 2020

=B —F —ETEF

RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREETIT

Within 3 months 3EAR 448,342 654,033
4 to 6 months 4%z 618 A 392,028 467,291
7 to 12 months VEIVALED;] 434,152 424,537
Over 12 months HBi@1218 A 782,293 514,067
2,056,815 2,059,928

The carrying amounts of the current portion of the trade and bills

payables approximate to their fair values.

Included in the Group's trade and bills payables are amounts due
to the Group's associates of RMB10,120,000 (2020: RMB9,622,000)

(note36).

B 5 RN RIERENZ R D iR
EEEEQNFEES -

AEBMEZEMNZERENZESRE
ERAAREBEBESARREARE
10,120000( — T T F: AR
9,622,000 7T ) (Mi7E36) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BRRME

31 December 2021 —ZE=-—F+-A=+—H

27. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 27. Ht BN RERETER
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBTT

Payables for the acquisitions FERT U BB RIE 76,199 62,499

Amounts due to related parties (note (a))  FEAT BEES A 78 (M7 (a) 69,330 64,884

Contract liabilities (note (b)) BB E (b)) 30,996 26,622

Salary and welfare payables (note (c)) JER T & REF (M5 () 28,290 18,000

Other taxes payables HAb BRI 9,067 9,795

Other payables HAb BT FIE 64,301 58,379

278,183 240,179

Portion classified as current other o FE R BV ERE A FE < R 1E |2

payables and accruals FEETE RS (247,192) (217,116)

Non-current portion JEBNERER > 30,991 23,063

Notes: fsT -

(@)  The amounts mainly represent borrowings provided by an associate, (a) CEIERBEDNAPFRKE  AEEFES
Zhongyuan Shuiwu, the non-controlling shareholders of Huizhou Kangda BNBARBMNEERZ Z2KEERA A
Yingzhihuang Water Co., Ltd. (B FZEHE 2 2/KFBHR R F)) (“Huizhou (MR BEE |) e & MR B FE I AR AR SRR 41t
Kangda”), which is a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, and Jilin MER LWARREMEERSTWEENYD
Kangda, to finance the construction of property, plant and equipment of ¥  BENMREREES -

Huizhou Kangda and Jilin Kangda.

(b) Details of contract liabilities are as follows: (b) AHAEFBOT

2021 2020

—B_—F —E-TF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREBT T ARETT

Construction services B 30,996 23,231

Advance from sales of water purifying materials SHE FKM BB - 3,391

Total contract liabilities aRBERRE 30,996 26,622
Contract liabilities include advances received to deliver industrial products AHEBEREARNIEERRIRHTER
and render installation and construction services. The increase in contract HMIREMBEEBBER . —T-—F0NE88
liabilities in 2021 was mainly due to the increase in advances received from BEENEZEHRERKBNRE S KEE

customers in relation to the operating services of waste water treatment and K5 R RR IR B 4 RIS R B R AE AN -

sludge treatment at the end of the year.

() The salary and welfare payables are non-interest-bearing and are payable on (0) ENTERENATTEABIRERS -
demand. Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have no fixed terms HibfERRIB AT B R EEFEKE -

of repayment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE I EwAR M EE

31 December 2021 —ZE=-—F+-A=+—H

28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER

28. R RITREMER

BORROWINGS
31 December 2021 31 December 2020
ZZ--F+ZA=t-H ZE-EET-A=T-H
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB'000 rate (%) Maturity RMB'000
RS EEFI%
(%) HMER AR®TR (%) HEER  ARETR
Current &R
Lease liabilities (note 13(b)) HEBB(HF130) 4.91 2022 335 491 2021 310
—E-CfF —Zo-F
Bank loans FITER 3.45-4.35 2022 462,300 4.35-6.72 2021 986,204
— secured — BHE —E-CF ZE=-F
Bank loans BITER 3.85-7.08 2022 1,033,290 3.85-4.90 2021 38,043
— unsecured — mIE —E-CF —Z--F
Current portion of long term bank loans  REISFTERAE DS 4.60-6.50 2022 562,448 375-6.18 2021 582,369
— secured —HER —E-CE —E-—F
Current portion of long term bank loans R HIR7TEF MBS 4.55-6.18 2022 791,783 - 2021 -
— unsecured — IR —E-CE —E-—fF
Current portion of long term other loans & Hi & it EF AR ZE 5.60-6.65 2022 305,211 4.50-9.90 2021 302,533
— secured — RER —E-CF —Z--F
Current portion of long term other loans & HIE {1 EF MBS 4.35-8.43 2022 42,630 4.20-7.80 2021 24913
— unsecured — EIEE —E-CE —E-—F
3,197,997 1,934,372
Non-current JEBNER
Lease liabilities (note 13(b)) HEBB(HF130) 2023-2039 2022-2039
“E-ZER - St}
491 Z—EBZhE 1,875 491 —ZB=HE 1,931
Long term bank loans RERTER 2023-2045 2022-2045
— secured =0 “E-CER —E-CEF
4.25-650 —EWNREF 4,075,765 375618 Z—EWMEF 4,368,344
Long term bank loans RERTER 2022-2023
— unsecured — BEA 2023 —E-—Fz
490-530 Z—B-=% 319,141 455499 —E-= 647 676
Long term other loans REEMER 2023-2026 2022-2026
— secured — BEH “E-=F3% “EC--ER
5.60-6.65 Z—E-AE 880,115 280990 Z—Z-RF 1,141,220
Long term other loans REEMER 2023-2026 2022-2026
— unsecured 3100 =t =Sk )
1.20-8.43 Z—Z-RE 994,846 120780 Z—EZNE 595,000
6,271,742 6,754171
9,469,739 8,688,543
Interest-bearing bank and other TS EE5HER
borrowings denominated in STRBRTREMER
—RMB — AR 9,024,961 8,313,318
— United States dollars — % 444,778 375,225
9,469,739 8,688,543

BEBEBRRRERRAR/ 2 —FEHE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M EE

31 December 2021 —ZE=-—F+-A=+—H

28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 28. FTESRITRHEMER @)
BORROWINGS (Continued)
2021 2020
—E-—F BT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARMBFTT
Analysed into: DT
Interest-bearing bank and other FEEEFTERITR
borrowings repayable: HAbER
Within one year —F PN 3,197,997 1,934,372
In the second year EF 2,011,492 2,189,312
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FoZERF (BEEEMFE) 1,984,763 1,928,371
Beyond five years HFig 2,275,487 2,636,488
9,469,739 8,688,543
The above secured interest-bearing bank and other borrowings ARG BRIT R EAMERAE T
are secured by certain assets with carrying values as follows: BEEER - AREEWT -
2021 2020
:—ﬂi —= —gfﬁ
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT R AREBFIT
Property, plant and equipment (note 12)  #12£ 5= M 3R & (BT 12) 13,619 15,447
Financial receivables (note 19) & B E WA (BIFE19) 7,120,278 7,168,543
Trade and bills receivables (note 21) B Z R IE R EREE (FEE21) 777,488 748,253
Pledged deposits (note 25) AR R (P 5E 25) 67,430 -
Service concession intangible assets EEE — SR
(note 17) (BE17) 1,033,590 937,310
Contract assets (note 23) BHEE (H5E23) 274,223 552,464
The Group's interest-bearing bank and other borrowings of REEBBARE 2,599,726,0007L (= F
RMB2,599,726,000 (2020: RMB2,164,284,000) were guaranteed by ZTF  AR¥E2,164,284,0007T) HIFHE
the Company's investments in certain subsidiaries. RITREMEFARRFRE THER
AR BRI -
The Group's interest-bearing bank and other borrowings of KEEBEA R 693,290,000 (=F
RMB693,290,000 (2020: RMB1,427,068,000) were secured by the ZTF  AR¥E1,427,068,0007T) BIFT B
second largest shareholder (note 36). SRIT Ko Hoh 8 R ER 58 — KRR SRR (P 5
36) °
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e BRRME

31 December 2021

T —F+=ZA=+—H

29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. A
Shares vy
2021 2020
—E-—F BT
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®ET T AREFIT
Authorised: JRTE ¢
5,000,000,000 (2020: 5,000,000,000) 5,000,000,000 A%
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each ZZ = Z4 : 5,000,000,000 %)
FREEC.OB T E B 39,766 39,766
Issued and fully paid: BEETREHZ -
2,139,735,000 (2020: 2,139,735,000) 2,139,735,000 A%
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each (ZZEZZF : 2,139,735,0000%)
FHRMEEO0.01 B LA LR 17,125 17,125
A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as BREKNBRANESEESHEN T -
follows:
Number of Issued Share
shares in issue capital premium Total
BT
REE ERTER B EE Fo
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARBT T
At 1 January 2021 and RZZE-_—F—H—H
31 December 2021 NZEZ—%F
+-A=+—H 2,139,735,000 17,125 1,717,384 1,734,509
30. RESERVES 30. f#fE

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein

for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity on page 80 of the consolidated

financial statements.

AEBAFEMBEFENRESER
HEB2INRAMBERRF AN
’\EE“_'*:@JEW
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—E-—F+=-R=+—H

31. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

In 2021, Chongqging Kangda disposed of its entire 90% interests
in Xishui Kangda Environmental Treatment Co., Ltd., 100%
interests in Shandong Fengmin Water Co.,Ltd., 80% interests in
Pingdingshan Rulan New Energy Co., Ltd., and 100% interests in
other six new energy companies, collectively referred to as “Nine
companies”. (In 2020, Chongging Kangda disposed of its entire
70% interest in Guangdong Kangda Ecological Environmental
Protection Industry Development Co., Ltd., hereafter referred to

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M EE

31 December 2021

31. HERB LT

R-T-—F EEFRELHEHERNEK
FERFAIEER A RN 2 0% -
RILRERKEER A FH) 100%
P TR T 2N 8E X BEJR B PR 2 B] #Y 80%
R - AR E A SRR A RH 100%
#am SREAINERAR] - (ZT-F
FOEERELEERNERFELRR
REFXFZRBERARNZE70% x5 (8

as "Guangdong Kangda”).

RIEREZE]) -

Nine Guangdong
Companies Kangda
HEAF BRFRE
2021 2020
—B-—F —E-TF
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000
Liks3 ARBT T AREBTT
Property, plant and equipment WE - WERHE 12 47,463 1,058
Contract assets aREE 67,383 -
Service concession intangible assets E & &E — Rrar & & i 38,942 -
Deferred tax assets RIETRIB A &= 1,747 -
Trade and bills receivables 2 SR GIE & RN EE 2,733 2,497
Prepayments, other receivables TARNFIR - HAbEUYGRIE K&
and other assets Hib &&= 5,563 120
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEY 408 3
Trade and bills payables B RENFIBERENER (86,520) -
Interest-bearing bank and other FFERITREMBER
borrowings (18,018) -
Other payables and accruals H At &N FIE R EFTE A (33,439) (1,452)
Tax payable FERITRIE (5) -
26,257 2,226
Group's share of net assets of REEREELEHBRT]
disposed subsidiaries BEFE 27,184 1,558
Loss on disposal HEER (4,530) (708)
22,654 850
Satisfied by: ATRBN A
Cash Re 22,654 850
Cash consideration BB ERE 13,939 850
Cash and bank balances disposed of B H&ER 4 RIRTTHEE (408) Q)
Net inflow of cash and cash FRHEWBARNERES &
equivalents in respect of the REFEBEWERA
disposal of subsidiaries 13,531 847
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mE I EwAR M EE

31 December 2021 —ZE=-—F+-A=+—H

32. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 32. &R &RBRME
OF CASH FLOWS
(@) Major non-cash transactions (a) FEFHERH
During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right- FA - AEBRBPBAEMERER
of-use assets and lease liabilities of RMB114,000 (2020: NEREEENEEABAIER
RMB558,000) and RMB114,000 (2020: RMB558,000), EREDHA/ARKE114,0007T (=
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for office T-FHF - ARM558,0007T) A
properties. REE114,00t(ZE=ZFF : AR
#& 558,0007T) °
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) METBEENESETH
activities
2021 —E-—fF
Interest-
bearing Other
bank and payables
other Lease  Corporate and
borrowings liabilities bonds accruals*
TEBITR HAith B KRIR
HAbER HESE NEES REGTER*
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®BTR AR%¥®TRT AR®T=R
At 1 January 2021 MN-T-—4F
—HA—H 8,686,302 2,241 584,247 49,940
Changes from financing B{ERE&REE
cash flows 787,435 (243) (576,016) 15,115
New leases g - 114 - -
Foreign exchange HINEE 5 B
movement (8,341) - - -
Interest expense FERL 536,451 98 29,139 -
Interest paid classified DERBMERERE
as financing cash flows BERFLE (516,300) - (37,370) -
Disposal of subsidiaries, H&EHE QA
net of cash HBRE2 (18,018) = - -
At 31 December 2021 R-E——F
+=—A=+—H 9,467,529 2,210 - 65,055
Other payables and accruals mainly represent interest payable, * H AT RIE R ERT B A BIRE R
dividend payable, and certain borrowings provided by related ME - EAIRE RAE T h T R
parties. BfERK ©
REBRBRRARAR/ T —FERE
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31 December 2021

T —F+=ZA=+—H

32. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 32. R BHERERMT &)
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) BMEIBELNEEES (B
activities (Continued)
2020 —E-TF
Interest-
bearing Other
bank and payables
other Lease Corporate and
borrowings liabilities bonds accruals*
FFESRITR H A fE < FRIA
Hth &K HEBE NEfES RETER*
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT AREBTRT ARBTET
At 1 January 2020 N-T-TF
—H—H 7,628,667 3,938 1,476,789 108,870
Changes from financing RIERESREEH)
cash flows 1,015,846 (2,403) (915,994) (15,582)
New leases HEE - 558 - -
Foreign exchange SN 5
movement (2,314) - - -
Interest expense FEFISZ 484,890 237 76,654 -
Interest paid classified ~ DEABRERESAE
as financing cash flows B FLE (440,787) - (53,202) (43,348)
Covid-19-related rent KA HHE AR
concessions from 2019 FF AT AR
lessors REMAREN
HeESE - (89) - -
At 31 December 2020 RIE-FF
+=—A=+—8 8,686,302 2,241 584,247 49,940

Total cash outflow for leases
The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement

(c)

HENRERHARE

FRESRERNWHEERS R LA

of cash flows is as follows: WO
2021 2020
—E-—F —ZE-Z
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARMBFIT
Within financing activities BB R EHE R 243 2,403
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e BRRME

31 December 2021 —ZE=-—F+-A=+—H

33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 33. AREE
At the end of the year, the Group did not have any significant RAFER  REBWLF/EMEARKA
contingent liabilities. afE-

34. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 34. EEEH
Details of the Group's bank and other loans, which are secured BRNAEEEEEROANEFRITR
by the assets of the Group, are included in note 28 to the HERFBEH NG A B mARMIE28 o

consolidated financial statements.

35. COMMITMENTS 35. &g
The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of RIREHIR  REBHUTEAREAIE

the reporting period:

2021 2020

- ZETF

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARMT ARETT

Contracted, but not provided for EHEN RS 198,144 175,575
The Group had the following commitments with respect to NAEREKR  NEFEA 55 ERGE

service concession arrangements at the end of the year: 4R K o ) TR

2021 2020

—EC—F —E-EF

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®TR AREBFIT

Contracted, but not provided for EHENEIEE S 2,442,938 2,775,662

BERFRRERAR/ T —FERSE 209
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eV BRRME

31 December 2021 —ZE=-—F+-A=+—H

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. B AR5
(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in the (a) BEREBBHmREMILD FTEFHY
consolidated financial statements, the Group had the RHIN 0 REBRAFEEEH
following material transactions with related parties during HITHE AR ST ¢
the year:
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT ARETT

Certain expenses of the Group paid by F T%I|2 BIAYFEHEALAS B

a non-controlling shareholder of: SAMAEBRE TR

Huizhou Kangda BINEE 384 -
Certain expenses of the Group paid H—XBE AR

by an associate: REEETHX

Zhongyuan Shuiwu H R IR - 15,075
Certain loans of the Group borrowed ] — SR B4 A FIE A B

from an associate: REEETER :

Zhongyuan Shuiwu F R K7 114,725 83,855

Certain expenses paid by the Group ~ ANEB A T 5|2 R FEZE MK
for non-controlling shareholders of: BRI ANEFTHS

Shenyang Jinhai M il = 1,100

Jiaoling Kangda EaERE 499 217

Pingdingshan City Bay FIELTEE - 100
Services provided to associates FAEENTI N —REEE

and a joint venture: R AR -

Fuzhou Fuhe YR HEOR 140,717 147,274

Zhongyuan Shuiwu HRIK TS - 33,303

Leping Hehu L4754 49,685 72,399

Gaomi Kangrui 2= 749 869
Services provided by an associate: H—REE R FRHENART -

Eastern Sludge Treatment R HEREER 1,998 300
Services provided by a subsidiary HRER —RMB A A

of a shareholder: RESMR

Jiangxi Silver Dragon (i) JIFESREE (i) 69,256 98,255
Services provided by the B TR B IEEARAR R

non-controlling shareholder of: RHORS

Jiaoling Kangda EEmRE = 1,740
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31 December 2021

—E-—F+=-R=+—H

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(Continued)

(a)

(i)

Jiangxi Silver Dragon Water Environment Construction
Co,ltd CIARBEKRERZRAREE LA )
("Jiangxi Silver Dragon”) is a subsidiary of the largest
shareholder of the Group. This related party
transaction also constitutes a connected transaction
or continuing connected transaction as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Group is contractually authorised to use a piece
of land which is legally owned by the non-controlling
shareholder of Jilin Kangda without charge, and such
use also constitutes a related party transaction during
the year.

The Group's interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings in 2021 amounting to RMB693,290,000
(2020: RMB1,427,068,000) were secured by the second
largest shareholder (note 28).

The above related party transactions were conducted
in accordance with the terms mutually agreed
between the parties.

36. B AR Z (&)

(a)

(&)
0]

SITRIRBEKIRIEERBRE
ERR(IAEE]) AARE
ESABRROMBAR - %
Bl A ITERBEERS
SFEEERS (TR L™
RAIFE 14AE) o

AEEERN EERERE
B — S E M EIER
BREZHEAN LI EH
% LI IR K AN F R Y — R
BELIRS -

—TE - —FABHARE
693,290,0007L (=T =T 4 :
AR 1,427,068,000 7T) KA
EEFERITREAME A
B RIRER R (FzE28) »

LABEB IR S REE S
195 7€ RO IR FRAETT

BEBEBRRRERRAR/ 2 —FEHE
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(b)

T —F+=ZA=+—H

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 36. BEEA RS ()
Outstanding balances with related parties (b) ERERBESMIKREZELEE
2021 2020
- ZEEF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFT
Amounts due to non-controlling FERT AT A &) FE4ER
shareholders of: f&ERFIA -
Pingdingshan City Bay FIAWLTEgE 50,337 50,337
Jilin Kangda HMEE 9,285 11,000
Huizhou Kangda BINEE 4,546 4,162
Jiaoling Kangda EaERE 1,478 1,478
Amounts due to associates: FEAT LA TN & A BIFRIE -
Zhongyuan Shuiwu MR KTE 55,499 49,612
Eastern Sludge Treatment R EREER 10,120 9,622
Amounts due to the subsidiary of a FERTRIRER A A T KT
shareholder: UNCIE S
Jiangxi Silver Dragon IR 72,021 55,305
Amounts due from non-controlling FEUMLAT 2 Bl FEE R
shareholders of: AR S FRIE -
Pingdingshan City Bay FIEWL TS 10,649 10,749
Weihai Kangda BEFEE 43 43
Jiaoling Kangda EaEmRE 1,686 1,187
Shenyang Jinhai T anis: 1,100 1,100
Amounts due from associates: FEU A B & R BRI ¢
Zhongyuan Shuiwu Hr R IKFE 124,217 132,758
Fuzhou Fuhe N A 150,339 67,100
Leping Hehu L4504 49,234 29,809
Amounts due from joint ventures: FERUAT & & EFRIE
Tiangiyuan REE i 22,575 22,575
Gaomi Kangrui =% B in 18,083 17,334
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

36. B AR Z (&)

(c) Compensation of key management personnel of () FAEEXEEEEABNHMH
the Group
2021 2020
2= —Z2=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARMEFIT
Short term employee benefits HE BRI 1,354 1,353
Total compensation paid to key YTRTFTEEEEBAEN
management personnel e RG] 1,354 1,353

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in
note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

EFEMEME—FHBENERAR
R MIFES

37. BERIE S WEMTA
R|EIK - SHEBIS BT ANREE

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: mr
31 December 2021 —E-—-H+=ZHA=+—H
Financial assets TREE

Financial

assets at fair

value through Financial
other assets at
comprehensive amortised
income cost Total
BRAFETA RE
Hitt2E K BAGE
MEemERE NEeMEE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AR®T T ARBT T
Equity investments designated at B REDFERA
fair value through other Hin 2 EU
comprehensive income iR & 248,000 = 248,000
Loans to a joint venture A—RAEPENER - 18,083 18,083
Financial receivables S RENIE - 10,978,212 10,978, 212
Trade and bills receivables 2 SN IE K RN E R - 1,776,560 1,776,560
Financial assets included in AT R - HfaEdk
prepayments, other receivables TEREMEBERN
and other assets PREE - 747,600 747,600
Pledged deposits BRER - 333,870 333,870
Cash and cash equivalents BekBLEEY - 289,898 289,898
248,000 14,144,223 14,392,223

BEBEBRRRERRAR/ 2 —FEHE
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31 December 2021

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(Continued)
Financial liabilities

—E-—F+=-A=

+—8

cEas
Financial
liabilities
at amortised

37. REHE TSI A )

cost Total
R
RAGHE
HerEE st
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR¥ET T ARET R
Trade and bills payables B 5 RN IR R EN R 2,056,815 2,056,815
Financial liabilities included in other SFAEMENFIENEERN
payables and accruals cREaE 218,902 218,902
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 5+ 2§87 K H b & 5% 9,469,739 9,469,739
11,745,456 11,745,456
31 December 2020 —ECERFE+-A=1+—H
Financial assets TREE
Financial
assets at fair
value through Financial
other assets at
comprehensive amortised
income cost Total
BATEETA e i
HAth 2 E WS PXARNETE
HEmEE NEmEE #aEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT
Equity investments designated at 3§ A2 A FEFT A
fair value through other Hi2mEmikasa
comprehensive income R 1% & 338,000 - 338,000
Loans to a joint venture A—REEENER - 17,334 17,334
Financial receivables & BRI W IR - 10,006,697 10,006,697
Trade and bills receivables B 5 WG IE R KRR - 1,527,023 1,527,023
Financial assets included in SFATENFIE « B
prepayments, other receivables I8 K& EAth B E Y
and other assets TRIEE - 653,673 653,673
Pledged deposits HEIRF R - 215,550 215,550
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEeEEY - 430,262 430,262
338,000 12,850,539 13,188,539
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31 December2021 —ZE-—HF+_-A=+—H

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 37. RERESTWERMT A (8

(Continued)
Financial liabilities cHaE
Financial
liabilities
at amortised
cost Total
bire 4!
ARG =
HeRARE 5T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T AREFIT
Trade and bills payables B 5 RN IR R EN R 2,059,928 2,059,928
Financial liabilities included in other sEAE MRS B KR ERTE A A
payables and accruals cRaE 199,116 199,116
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 5+ 88817 & E b 15 3K 8,688,543 8,688,543
Corporate bonds NGIIEEs 584,247 584,247
11,531,834 11,531,834

BERFRRERAR/ T —FERSE
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31 December 2021 —ZE=-—F+-A=+—H

38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial

3. ERMTARAFERRIFESER

AEESRMTAHEREERARTEARE

instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that

reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

MHEERIN (REER A FERT

Carrying amounts Fair values
HREE N
2021 2020 2021 2020
—8--§ -"T-TF ZB--§ _T-ITF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRE ARETT ARETR ARETR
Financial assets SREE
Equity investments designated HEERELTETA
at fair value through other Hih2EmUesm
comprehensive income fRiEEE 248,000 338,000 248,000 338,000
Prepayments, other receivables BNFIE - HithERFIER
and other assets, HihEE - FFREBESD
non-current portion 96,418 148,590 100,703 166,353
Financial receivables, S RIEEE - FEANEIE D
non-current portion 9,100,153 8,313,899 9,177,051 8,375,726
9,444,571 8,800,489 9,525,754 8,880,079
Financial liabilities CREE
Trade and bills payables, BORNFERENREE
non-current portion FEENERES 62 1,756 59 1,676
Interest-bearing bank and other FHERITREMER
borrowings (other than lease (HEBERIN) -
liabilities), non-current portion JERNERER 6,271,742 6,754,171 6,309,215 6,918,418
Non-current corporate bonds JEENEA N A B = 256,985 = 256,985
6,271,804 7,012,912 6,309,274 7,177,079

BEECDHG RekReFEY &
WER - BHREFERERRER  H
foRBEMEE - 2 REKFENEH

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, pledged deposits, trade and bills receivables, other
current financial assets, the current portion of financial

receivables, the current portion of trade and bills payables, the o BIREMNFKIERENZERNE
current portion of financial assets included in prepayments, other #o - FTABNEIE - HMERKRIER

HEENSREENNMED - A&
ShENBERRERNENHBLY - 5
ARMENFEREFERNEREE
BBV BB D A e 5T BRTT S B b & 3R Y
BIEEi My A EY EEREEMES
TERHRZEFTANEAZIE -

receivables and other assets, the current portion of loans to joint
ventures and associates, the current portion of financial liabilities
included in other payables and accruals, and the current portion
of interest-bearing bank and other borrowings approximate to
their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of
these instruments.
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38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 3. ERMTEAFERAFESEH

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The Group's finance department headed by the finance manager
is responsible for determining the policies and procedures for
the fair value disclosure of financial instruments. The finance
manager reports directly to the chief financial officer. At the end
of the year, the finance department analyses the movements in
the values of financial instruments and determines the major
inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and
approved by the chief financial officer.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced
or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were
used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of financial receivables,
prepayments, other receivables and other assets, trade and bills
payables, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, and
corporate bonds have been calculated by discounting the
expected future cash flows using rates currently available for
instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities. The changes in fair value as a result of the Group's
own non-performance risks for trade and bills payables, interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings, and corporate bonds as at
the end of the year were assessed to be insignificant.

The fair values of unlisted equity investments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income have been estimated
using a market-based valuation technique based on assumptions
that are not supported by observable market prices or rates. The
valuation requires the directors to determine comparable public
companies (peers) based on industry, size, leverage and strategy,
and to calculate an appropriate price multiple, such as price to
book value (P/B), for each comparable company identified. The
multiple is calculated by dividing the enterprise value of the
comparable company by book value measure. The trading
multiple is then discounted for considerations such as illiquidity
and size differences between the comparable companies based
on company-specific facts and circumstances. The discounted
multiple is applied to the corresponding P/B of the unlisted
equity investments to measure the fair value. The directors
believe that the estimated fair values resulting from the valuation
technique, which are recorded in the consolidated statement of
financial position, and the related changes in fair values, which
are recorded in other comprehensive income, are reasonable,
and that they were the most appropriate values at the end of the
reporting period.

(&)

MU BEEAENARENBEHERE
E2RMTARAFERBENBERENMERF
MHEEERAMGRERS - RAF
EXR MEHstfrem TANEER
VEEHRETERNIESH - AEH
§ 755 4 B R B LA o

TREERABNAFEREBITR -
BERIRZHPRWEBTANSHE (RE
BB ERRIN FIE - AT BEFHRF
BFFREITERRR

& B UCRIR ~ TR SRR - B A R UK
HERHEMEE  BHENFTALENER
& FERIRTT R EAM AR IERN RS
RABEFNATFEDEEHRARRES
mREBREERR - ERRARERGE
WA T A B AE M R RE R R BIR M At
B-REFR AAKEAXAFEZEN
RERENRE  SHERTREMER
RABEFENRRNEEN R TFE
HEWRTERALTERX o

BERBRAFEFAREMEE K
EHABREREN X FEDRAERTS
MEERMEE - ZEEER TR
M5 ERA R R RRET -
BEREERETE  AE BREEE
BETANELBRARAB(AZE) X5t
PRSI B L BAREAENE
REH(MHEER) - BHNFENER
BABUERARNEREERAKREE
AEFE  RHBHERREQFEE
ZERBARAELBRARZENRE
TR ERBEZREEZERRETH
B BRREBUERMNELMREREN
HETMERXAGFEATE - EFRAE
MERMELNG A THEGIAGE R
BRRER) RATFENEEEZS GT AR
hrEkm)BaE  ARBEHRES
FEHEE -
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38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 3. EMITEAFERAFEER

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) (5)

Fair value hierarchy REEER

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TERHEAAEECHMTANAFETE
hierarchy of the Group's financial instruments: S

Assets measured at fair value: BAFEFENEE !

As at 31 December 2021 R-E-_—-F+=-HA=+—H

Fair value measurement using

ATEHBRA

Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ERTE  EATEE EAFUERR
H]RE BWAE BAE
(B-&) (E=%) (E=H) st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AR®TRT ARETR AR%TR

Equity investments designated HEEREDTFERTA

at fair value through other Hith 2 EK
comprehensive income PRIERE - 248,000 - 248,000
As at 31 December 2020 R-ZE-_ZEF+_-_A=+—H

Fair value measurement using

AFEHERA
Quoted

prices Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

ERME BAUBR BATITHER

H$R(E BAE BAE
(B—#) (=) (B=4) Fe
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AREBTT  ARETT AREBTE ARETRT

Equity investments designated EERBRATETA

at fair value through other Hi 2 ks
comprehensive income Mg & - 338,000 - 338,000
218 KANGDA INTERNATIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL COMPANY LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 3. ERMTEAFERAFESEH

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) (&)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued) DNFEER(E)

Assets for which fair values are disclosed: EEEATENEE

As at 31 December 2021 HR-E-_—5+=-H=+—H

Fair value measurement using
AFETERA
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active ~ observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ERME  EATBR EATTHEE
HEE BWAE BAE
(B—-&) (E=H) (E=4) Azt

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR®TR ARMTRT ARNTR

Prepayments, other receivables BNFIA - it EKFIE R

and other assets, non-current Ht &g
portion JEBNEREE - 100,703 - 100,703
Financial receivables, T REWGIE -
non-current portion JERNERE 7 - 9,177,051 - 9,177,051
- 9,277,754 - 9,277,754
As at 31 December 2020 R-EB_TF+_A=+—H

Fair value measurement using

ATEHERA
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EEMS  BAUBER BEATAEE
H$RE BAE BAE
(B—#) (B=8) (B=H) st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT AR®TE ARETRT AR®TR

Prepayments, other receivables B - At EKTIR R

and other assets, non-current HingE

portion JEENEE S - 166,353 - 166,353
Financial receivables, SR MR

non-current portion JEANEE S - 8,375,726 - 8,375,726

- 8,542,079 - 8,542,079
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38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 3. EMITEAFERAFEER

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) (&)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued) DNFEERE)
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed: EEEATENASE

As at 31 December 2021 R-—E-_—%+=-H=+—H

Fair value measurement using

ATEHBRR

Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ERNS  BATHRE EXATTHE
HEE BWAE BWAE
(8—4%) (=& (B=#) st

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRE AR®TR ARETRT ARNTR

Trade and bills payables, B IENTIERENZE -
non-current portion JERNERE A - 59 - 59
Interest-bearing bank and other FTERITREMER
borrowings (other than lease (HEEERN)
liabilities), non-current portion JERNERER - 6,309,215 - 6,309,215
- 6,309,274 - 6,309,274
As at 31 December 2020 RZEZZF+=-A=1+—H
Fair value measurement using
ATEFERA
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ERME BAUBRER BATAUHER
HYRME BWAE BWAE
(B—#) (B=#R) (B=H) st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETR
Trade and bills payables, EIRNFEREMNZE -
non-current portion JERNERER - 1,676 - 1,676
Interest-bearing bank and other FHERITREMER
borrowings (other than lease (REBBERM) -
liabilities), non-current portion JERNERER - 6,918,418 - 6,918,418
Non-current corporate bonds JERNEA N BIE A - 256,985 - 256,985
- 7,177,079 - 7,177,079
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE I EwAR M EE

31 December 2021 —ZE=-—F+-A=+—H

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39. i ERESEEERBE

AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings, corporate bonds, cash and
cash equivalents and pledged deposits. The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group's
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as financial receivables, trade and bills receivables
and trade and bills payables, which arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and foreign currency
risk. Generally, the senior management of the Company meets
regularly to analyse and formulate measures to manage the
Group's exposure to these risks. In addition, the board of
directors of the Company holds meetings regularly to analyse
and approve the proposals made by the senior management of
the Company. Generally, the Group introduces conservative
strategies on its risk management. As the Group's exposure to
these risks is kept to a minimum, the Group has not used any
derivatives and other instruments for hedging purposes. The
Group does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for
trading purposes. The board of directors of the Company reviews
and agrees policies for managing these risks and they are
summarised below.

FEENFESRIABRFEAERITR
HpE3  A6Es ReLReEHFE
WEERER ZFERMTRATEARN
RAEENKEEEES - AEEHA
EERXREHEBLENZREAMEREER
BE WEREWFIR - B 5 EWHKIA
REWRELE S RN FTARENRE

AEEeBMTAEEENTIERRANE
Rk ERRAR  RBESERKLINE
Rk —RME ARARREEES
EHAREHOT R EE®  BEAN
SEEBENZERR - WH > KAFE
EETHIAAEROMEMEARAR
RERBREZMEZ  —RME - A%
R 0 L e 3 AR BR R ST RS o IR
AEEKZERBREFEREKRFE - &
AEBAREREATETAREMTA
RS AR - AERBEL BT HRETH
EXZHITESRMIA - ARAESE
] R AEE IR ZFRAROBR - H5
ZMT o
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e ISR M EE

31 December 2021 —ZE=-—F+-A=+—H

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)
(a) Interest rate risk
The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group's long term
debt obligations with floating interest rates.

The Group regularly reviews and monitors the mix of fixed
and floating interest rate borrowings in order to manage its
interest rate risk. The Group’s interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings, corporate bonds, pledged deposits and
cash and cash equivalents are stated at amortised cost and
not revalued on a periodic basis. Floating rate interest
income and expenses are credited/charged to profit or loss
as earned/incurred.

If there would be a general increase/decrease in the market
interest rates by one percentage point, with all other
variables held constant, the Group’s consolidated pre-tax
profit would have decreased/increased by approximately
RMB49,809,000 and RMB48,845,000 for the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020, respectively, and there would be
no impact on other components of the consolidated equity,
except for retained profits, of the Group. The sensitivity
analysis above has been determined assuming that the
change in market interest rates had occurred at the end of
the year and had applied the exposure to interest rate risk
to those financial instruments in existence at that date.

HREREEEEREE®)

(a)

A = 3 By

REEAR ERERNEEIRF ST
KA EMRHEBEEERNTS
MEREFHRER o

AEEETFHENLEREE LT
@Jﬂ MEREOEES  ABTBERN X
o REBEME BT REME
%’K : ’AET%%%’ B ERMBR S R
REeFEYREHERAE - B
TEEHEMHEEBE - ZSHF KA
BUIRA KB X TR BRER, EE R TE
Bamat Ak o

BE_ZE-_—FR-_ZF-_ZTF+—
A=+— ElJtiJ* TS A E R
LA THR—EAEaH% MAA
ﬁmHE%%T\“ AR B B4R
ABRTATEFIE D B, 1N
A R #49809,000T & A R
48,845,000 © HERIR BB & F4b
B YRR ERE ar) E AR
ﬁli“%ﬁ}z%% FSERRES TR
EMBEANEREHENSFREET
BEAZEsM T AAERZB
BEENFERRMET
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31 December 2021 —ZE=-—F+-A=+—H

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Credit risk
The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents,
pledged deposits, trade and bills receivables, financial
receivables and financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to these
financial assets. Substantially all of the Group’s cash and
cash equivalents and pledged deposits are held in major
financial institutions located in Mainland China and Hong
Kong, which management believes are of high credit
quality. The Group has policies to control the size of the
deposits to be placed with various reputable financial
institutions according to their market reputation, operating
scale and financial background with a view to limiting the
credit exposure to each financial institution to an
acceptable level.

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. In addition, receivable balances are monitored
on an ongoing basis and the Group's exposure to bad
debts is not significant.

As the Group's major customers are either PRC government
authorities or agencies at the provincial and local levels or
other state-owned enterprises, the Group believes that they
are reliable and of high credit quality and hence, there is no
significant credit risk with these customers. The senior
management of the Company keeps reviewing and
assessing the creditworthiness of the Group's existing
customers on an ongoing basis.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure
to credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in
note 21 to the financial statements.

3. IEREEEERBER®

(b)

= RER

RehReEHEY  EMFR - &
SERNGIA R BB RIE - &R
R MAF ATEN IR - EAb R WGR
HEEMEENTSREENREE
RAEERZETEREEMETH
RRERRR - REBBAE DR
& LA EEYNEREFRTIER
KRB AR EE B EIEEE
EEAAREREEENIESHK
B AEERARRRETRAHG
TREBOTISBE  ELREMN
RS SRH I N F 2 R
BOFREUE  EESZRBE
F {5 PR B PR Bl FE AT 2K o

4 S B B R ] L5 ) R0 25
SHEARS - I BB
RUEOBRS - TA SR,
BRA o

HRAEEEEEFPRTEERL
B EREEMEA R
X AEERERFAEERASR
BEREE  MREFEPLEEKX
ERRAR ARAEREEEE T
Brimsd KA A RERAEFNE
PRI SEIE -

BRAKERAEZERKFTIRNE
FARRE T — S B BB N
FRISFE 21 BE5R -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M EE

31 December 2021 —ZE=-—F+-A=+—H

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk
The liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent on its
ability to maintain adequate cash inflows from operations
to meet its debt obligations as they fall due, and its ability
to obtain external financing to meet its committed future
capital expenditure.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities at the
end of the year, based on the contractual undiscounted
payments, is as follows:

3. IEREEEERBE @)

(c)

AEEHNRBE S T BRBEES
FREEREIRAAR B HI BT
B E TN REUSSMNEBRL B A
JBITEAERREAFRHEES

RAFEEF  AEEHSEREBE
1A MR BN 285 1B MR
wmF -

31 December 2021
—®--%t=-R=1+-AH

Within 1to2 2to5 More than
1 year years years 5 years Total
15K 1225 2E5F S5FME st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR AR¥TR AR®TR AR¥TRT AR¥TR
Lease liabilities HERE 318 318 353 1,491 2,480
Interest-bearing bank FHERITREMER
and other borrowings (FREHERR)
(excluding lease liabilities) 3,556,576 2,138,775 2,933,013 2,120,863 10,749,227
Trade and bills payables ~ E SR FIE K
ERRE 2,056,753 62 - - 2,056,815
Financial liabilities FFAEMERZRER
included in other EHERNERAE
payables and accruals 218,902 - - - 218,902
5,832,549 2,139,155 2,933,366 2,122,354 13,027,424
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e BRRME

31 December 2021

T —F+=ZA=+—H

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39. i EREEBEEREE &)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

() RBEZRMRE(E)

31 December 2020

TR+ A=+—H

Within 1t02 2to5  More than
1 year years years 5 years Total
1R 1E2F 2354 5L st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Lease liabilities HERE 318 318 486 1,609 2,731

Interest-bearing bank EHEIRIT REA AR

and other borrowings (TREHEEERE)

(excluding lease liabilities) 2,199,021 1,723,857 2,770,857 2,286,495 8,980,230
Corporate bonds NRIfES 358,975 35,275 104,344 251,556 750,150
Trade and bills payables ~ Z ZENZIEL

ERNZEE 2,058,172 1,756 - - 2,059,928
Financial liabilities AR BN FRIER
included in other B EANSREAE
payables and accruals 199,116 - - - 199,116
4,815,602 1,761,206 2,875,687 2,539,660 11,992,155

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal transactional currency exposures as
the majority of the subsidiaries of the Group operate in the
PRC with most of the transactions denominated and settled

in Renminbi ("RMB").

In addition, the Group has currency exposures from its cash
and cash equivalents and interest-bearing bank borrowings.
The Group manages foreign currency risk by closely
monitoring the proportion of its non-Renminbi borrowings

and assets.

(d) E¥mk

RN AEE AR B AR EFH
REXD  BRBAIRIUARE
TARBDFHEREE
MRS EEREBREN

SN -

72N

o8 o
ZN

AR E

AEBRAERS MRS EE
W) A R s BARTTE SR H e B
- AEEBEBTIEREIEAR
BREEREENHIEEEERE
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31 December 2021 —ZE=-—F+-A=+—H

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES  39.

AND POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end

of the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in
the RMB/HK$ and RMB/USD exchange rates, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group's profit before tax and

the Group's equity.

BERMEEBERBEE®)

(d) BE¥EERE
TRETEMA R Z BT
ERT  AEBEBRBADG N RA
SEESNREPREARE B
TTRARY ETEXRNE B

Increase/
(decrease) in Increase/
profit before (decrease) in
tax equity*
BRBE AT F Rz,
®hn,/ (RD) (R ) *
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT
2021 —E-—-F
If the RMB weakens against the USD by 5% i ARHE H ETTH (B 5% (18,472) (18,472)
If the RMB strengthens against the USD by 5% i AR # 5, £ ST FHE 5% 18,472 18,472
If the RMB weakens against the HK$ by 5% AR H BT ES% 22 22
If the RMB strengthens against the HK$ by 5% i) AR 5B TTHE 5% (22) (22)
2020 —E-FF
If the RMB weakens against the USD by 5% fisf AR 5 3 TTEZ (B 5% (18,598) (18,598)
If the RMB strengthens against the USD by 5% i AR 5 ETTHE 5% 18,598 18,598
If the RMB weakens against the HK$ by 5% MAREEETRES% 77 77
If the RMB strengthens against the HK$ by 5% fil A R ¥ 3578 ST FHE 5% (77) 77)

Excluding retained profits

© TRERDEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE I EwAR M EE

31 December 2021 —ZE=-—F+-A=+—H

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)
(e) Capital management
The Group's primary objectives for managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratio in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk.
The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order
to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to
reduce debts. No change was made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the year.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
net debt divided by the capital plus net debt. Net debt
includes trade and bills payables, certain other payables
and accruals, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings,
corporate bonds less cash and cash equivalents and
pledged deposits. Capital includes the equity attributable
to owners of the parent and non-controlling interests as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group's strategy is to maintain the gearing ratio at a
healthy capital level in order to support its businesses. The
principal strategies adopted by the Group include, but are
not limited to, reviewing future cash flow requirements and
the ability to meet debt repayment schedules when they fall
due, maintaining a reasonable level of available banking
facilities and adjusting investment plans and financing
plans, if necessary. The gearing ratios at the end of the
years were as follows:

3. IEREEEERBER®

(e)

BEXER
AEEEAREENEEZARERE
AEENFEL LN MRS R
MERLE  UXHBEBRARER
wREA(EE -

AEBEZRERLPIREESSHE
AEBERBLESANE S LEEE
ENRBEFHEENARBRENG
B BERAREBEAERE A%
EHERABRN TRROKRES
B MRRBEEARN - BITHBRMN
FHEEEARDER - RAF
B EAEEREBR BRIEFL
EEfAEH -

AEBUNERABLERETER
LR Ty MBS F IR A B A A
BRRAE - BFREREIE
NHRELENRE & THEMBERN
FIBNEEER - T RRITREM
B AREFRRE LIRS EHE
Y EERER - EARESEEWH
eSS YNCIE S PNy 3
EZEI T Tl

AEENREREFEERBLL X
FERBEEARKT - A FFHE -
REERRO EFERBBIFETR
PR AR RBE 2 REERKRNER
DR IR ERERHBE N - M
AIEAIRITRIE S IRKFIA K H
BREFERBEFE(NET
) REFRNEEBBLL XN
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31 December 2021 —ZE=-—F+-A=+—H

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39. BiEREE B ERBER @)

AND POLICIES (Continued)

(e) Capital management (Continued)

(e) BEXEE®E

2021 2020
—EB—-F —E-TF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREFIT
Trade and bills payables (note 26) B o EMNTIE L ENEE
(P 3E26) 2,056,815 2,059,928
Other payables and accruals (note 27)  EAth e FIE M FEETE R
(B&E27) 278,183 240,179
Interest-bearing bank and other FHEERTT R E A
borrowings (note 28) (Ffi7E28) 9,469,739 8,688,543
Corporate bonds NEIfESH - 584,247
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B ReRREEED
(note 25) (Bf&E25) (289,898) (430,262)
Less: Pledged deposits (note 25) B A E R (M RE25) (333,870) (215,550)
Net debt B15%5 11,180,969 10,927,085
Total equity R 5,407,621 5,118,198
Capital and net debt BARRERFRE 16,588,590 16,045,283
Gearing ratio BEABLE 67% 68%

40. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

No significant events took place subsequent to 31 December

2021.

40. HEMRBE
RoT-—F+-A=t+-ARLESE
EHMEAFHE -
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31 December 2021 —ZE=-—F+-A=+—H

41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

41. KR BB R T+

BEMRARBHBRRROERMAT

2021 2020
=B —F —ETEF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RSB RRIMILE 1,217,802 1,217,802
Total non-current assets IERBEELE 1,217,802 1,217,802
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Prepayments, other receivables FERTRRIE - Hoh e R TE K
and other assets Hi&EE 1,014,758 1,059,121
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREEEY 470 2,431
Total current assets RBEERE 1,015,228 1,061,552
CURRENT LIABILITIES RENEE
Other payables and accruals Hh e < 5RIE M e AT B 195,548 199,505
Interest-bearing bank and FHERTT R EM AR
other borrowings 105,199 -
Total current liabilities B RESERE 300,747 199,505
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 714,481 862,047
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EERERRBERE
LIABILITIES 1,932,283 2,079,849
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Interest-bearing bank and ETRIRIT R EAME K
other borrowings 239,141 347,676
Net assets BEFE 1,693,142 1,732,173
EQUITY =
Issued capital B3 ITIR AN 17,125 17,125
Reserves (note) e (BEE) 1,676,017 1,715,048
Total equity b e 1,693,142 1,732,173
FEBBRRERAR/ T —FERE
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41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

41

. AR BB AR R TR ()

Note: MEE -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: AARIFEHEOREOT -
Retained
profits/
Share Share option (accumulated
premium reserve losses) Total
REBEF
it s (B fEIRIE AR (RETER) st
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT AREFT AREFT ARBFT
At 1 January 2020 RZE=TF—HA—H 1,643,661 65,553 12,356 1,721,570
Share options exercised during N B 1T{# A I A% 1
the year 73,723 - - 73,723
Loss for the year FAEE - - (80,245) (80,245)
At 31 December 2020 and RZZ=TF
1 January 2021 +ZA=+—HK
T —4§—HF—H 1,717,384 65,553 (67,889) 1,715,048
Loss for the year FREE - - (39,031) (39,031)
At 31 December 2021 R-ZT——F
+=—A=+—H 1,717,384 65,553 (106,920) 1,676,017

42. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 March 2022.

42.

RS M RER

REGRAVBRRIRN_T__F=A
“tHN\BEE=EHERFETIE -

230 KANGDA INTERNATIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL COMPANY LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2021



Financial Summary

B HEE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and total equity of

AEBESOAEYRFENREAREE - &

the Group for the last five financial years is as set below: BEREREEREHIINT
RESULTS E 4
Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=1t—HLEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—B--% —T-TF —T-NF T\ ZTLF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTR AREBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Revenue Wz 2,918,958 3,332,432 2,815,203 3,021,327 2,523,940
Profit before tax MR R E A 550,245 607,539 509,841 455,691 536,796
Income tax Fr{8H: 132,064 137,282 125,770 145,801 109,187
Profit for the year F R F 418,181 470,257 384,071 309,890 427,609
Other comprehensive income  H 2 EWE (76,500) (21,250) (107,100) (112,200) 99,450
Total comprehensive income  FRAZE WA 4E%E
for the year 341,681 449,007 276,971 197,690 527,059
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO: AT ALFEMEER -
Shareholders of the Company ~ AR5 412,752 470,488 376,868 303,350 414,448
Non-controlling interests FEIE R bR 5,429 (231) 7,203 6,540 13,161
418,181 470,257 384,071 309,890 427,609
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE UTATEGEZENE
INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO:  #a%F :
Shareholders of the Company ARG E 336,252 449,238 269,768 191,150 513,898
Non-controlling interests IR 5,429 (231) 7,203 6,540 13,161
341,681 449007 276,971 197,690 527,059

BEBEBRRRERRAR/ 2 —FEHE
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B HEE

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND TOTAL EQUITY

AE  BERERAE

As at 31 December

Rt+t=A=1+—-H

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

—E--fF ZZ-TF ZT-hEF ZEZ-NF ZT—+F

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARETR AREBTT AREFT ARETT AREFT

Total assets BERAE 18,281,408  17,645830 16,698,491 16,525,227 15,235,594

Total liabilities BiEEE 12,873,787 12,527,632 12,104,339 12,203,554 11,028,733

NET ASSETS BEFE 5,407,621 5,118,198 4,594,152 4,321,673 4,206,861
Equity attributable to ARERR LS

shareholders of the Company 5,270,006 4,918,730 4,395,102 4,114,653 4,003,314

Non-controlling interests TR 137,615 199,468 199,050 207,020 203,547

TOTAL EQUITY RS 1A 5,407,621 5,118,198 4,594,152 4,321,673 4,206,861
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